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April 11, 2022

Dear Stockholders,

2021 was another outstanding year for indie Semiconductor. Despite global capacity constraints, we successfully navigated a

challenging supply chain environment and executed operationally to meet increasing customer demand for our innovative Autotech

solutions. Our outperformance is a true testament to the strength of the indie team, our differentiated product portfolio, and

importantly, our underlying IP. Further, as next generation ADAS, user experience and electrification applications proliferate, indie

is well positioned to capitalize on these strategic megatrends.

Our strong performance also reflects our disciplined approach to growing the business over the past decade. indie’s talented team

built our Company through innovation, tenacity and integrity, consistently exceeding what our customers demanded and taking

no shortcuts along the way. From our founding, we have overcome extremely high barriers to entry and are now poised to solve

some of the most demanding Autotech design challenges. We have successfully partnered with some of the leading global Tier 1

automotive suppliers and our solutions have been validated by the market, with over 150 million cumulative units shipped to date.

Specifically, we delivered a record $48.4 million in revenue in 2021, more than doubling the prior year’s top line. We expanded our

gross margins by approximately 140 basis points to 43.7%, which was all the more remarkable in light of the challenging global

supply chain environment. To support future growth, we significantly increased our R&D investments in strategic product areas.

We also continue to strengthen our processes and infrastructure with respect to being a newly publicly traded company.

With enhanced financial flexibility and our expanded sensor modality capabilities, we captured several major design wins with

leading tier 1 customers spanning each of our addressed market segments. In addition, we acquired TeraXion and ON Design Israel

Ltd and announced our intent to acquire Symeo GmbH. TeraXion is highly synergistic with indie and positions us to accelerate

mass market deployments of LiDAR platforms. At the same time, we expect our combinations with ON Design Israel Ltd and

Symeo GmbH to accelerate our entry into the radar market and enable us to capture strategic opportunities among leading

automotive OEMs.

The impact of these efforts are positioning indie to become the premier supplier of embedded mixed signal solutions for user

experience and full system offering spanning LiDAR, radar, ultrasound and vision, precisely as the automotive industry increases

its demands for these complex solutions. Tier 1 customers are demanding a step function increase in electronic performance

and complexity while simultaneously experiencing a reduction in qualified, field-proven suppliers caused by semiconductor

industry consolidation. This market inflection has created enormous opportunities across the Autotech landscape, and for indie in

particular, as these applications require highly integrated semiconductor and embedded software technologies.

Finally, we remain committed to advancing our environmental, social, and governance efforts and believe responsible and

sustainable business practices support our long-term success. As a company, we are committed to protecting and supporting our

people, our environment, and our communities. This commitment is reflected through our day-to-day activities, including adoption

of socially responsible policies and procedures, our focus on fostering an inclusive workplace, our constant drive toward more

efficient use of materials and energy, our careful supply chain management, our products which help enhance road safety, and our

ethics and compliance program.

We couldn’t be more excited about indie’s future, or more thrilled about how indie's differentiated solutions are driving the next

wave of the automotive industry innovation. The indie team will continue to apply the same principles and follow the cultural

values that got us here, positioning us to sustainably outpace our addressable markets and create strategic shareholder value.

Thank you for your strong support.

Donald McClymont

Co-founder and Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD-LR OOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains “forward-looking statements” (including within the meaning of Section 21E of the United States Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended). Such statements include, but
are not limited to, statements regarding the Company’s future business and financial performance and prospects, and other
statements identified by words such as “will likely result,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,”
“project,” “outlook,” “should,” “could,” “may” or words of similar meaning. Such forward-looking statements are based
upon the current beliefs and expectations of the management and are inherently subject to significant business, economic and
competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are difficult to predict and generally beyond our control. Actual
results and the timing of events may differ materially from the results included in such forward-looking statements. In addition
to the factors disclosed under “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A herein, the following factors, among others, could cause actual
results and the timing of events to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the forward-
looking statements: the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic; the Company’s reliance on contract manufacturing and outsourced
supply chain and the availability of semiconductors and manufacturing capacity; competitive products and pricing pressures;
our ability to win competitive bid selection processes and achieve additional design wins; the impact of any acquisitions the
Company may make, including our ability to successfully integrate acquired businesses and risks that the anticipated benefits of
any acquisitions may not be fully realized or take longer to realize than expected; management’s ability to develop, market and
gain acceptance for new and enhanced products and expand into new technologies and markets; trade restrictions and trade
tensions; and political and economic instability in the Company’s target markets. indie cautions that the foregoing list of
factors is not exclusive.

All information set forth herein speaks only as of the date hereof, and the Company disclaims any intention or obligation to
update any forward-looking statements made in this report or in its other public filings, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

4



PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Company Overview

indie Semiconductor, Inc. (“indie”) and its predecessor for accounting purposes, Ay Dee Kay, LLC, a California limited
liability company (“ADK LLC”), and its subsidiaries, are collectively referred to herein as the “Company”. The Company
offers highly innovative automotive semiconductors and software solutions for Advanced Driver Assistance Systems
(“ADAS”), connected car, user experience and electrification applications. The Company focuses on edge sensors across
multiple modalities spanning light detection and ranging (“LiDAR”), radar, ultrasound and vision. These functions represent the
core safetyff systems for next generation vehicles and set the stage forff trulyr autonomous cars and trucks, while the advanced user
interfaces are transforming the in-cabina experience to mirror and seamlessly connect to the mobile platforms we rely on every
day. indie is an approved vendor to Tier 1 automotive suppliers and its platforms can be found in marquee automotive
manufacturers around the world.

Through innovative analog, digital and mixed signal integrated circuits (“ICs”) with software running on the embedded
processors, we are developing a differentiated, market-leading portfolio of automotive products. Our technological expertise,
including cutting edge design capabia lities and packaging skillsets, together with our deep applications knowledge and strong
customer relationships, have enabled us to cumulatively ship over 140 million semiconductor devices since our inception.

Our go-to-market strategy focuses on collaborata ing with key customers and partnering with roughly a dozen of Tier 1s via
aligned product development, in pursuit of solutions addressing the automotive industry’s highest growth applications. We
leverage our core capaa bia lities in system-level hardware and software integration to develop highly integrated, ultra-compact and
power efficient solutions. Further, our products meet or exceed the quality standards set by the more than 20 global automotive
manufacturers who utilize our devices today.

With a global footprint, we support leading customers from our design and application centers located in North America, Asia
and Europe, where our local teams work closely on their unique design requirements.

Recent Acquisitions

TERAXIONAA ,NN INC

In August 2021, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire TERAXION INC, a Canadian corporation (“TeraXion”) from
the existing stockholders of TeraXion (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on October 12, 2021 and the total
consideration paid for the acquisition consisted of (i) approximately $75.3 million in cash (including debt paid at closing and
net of cash acquired); (ii) the issuance by indie of 5,805,144 shares of indie Class A common stock with a fair value of $65.2
million based on the market value of $11.23 per share; and (iii) the assumptim on by indie of TeraXion options, which became
exercisable to purchase 1,542,332 shares of indie Class A common stock with a fair value of $17.2 million.

TeraXion produces low noise lasers, Bragg gratings and integrated photonic elements to address high-performance applications.
More recently, TeraXion was an optical sensing reference design partner of indie, supporting next-generation Frequency
Modulated Continuous Wave systems for automotive LiDAR. The addition of TeraXion is expected to be highly synergistic
and will position us to accelerate mass market deployments of LiDAR platforms.

ON Designi Israel Ltd

On October 1, 2021, we entered into a definitive agreement and completed the acquisition of ON Design Israel Ltd. (“ON
Design Israel”), for $5.0 million in cash paid upon close (net of cash acquired), $7.5 million of cash in 2022 and up to $7.5
million of cash based on certain contingent considerations.

Symeo GmbH

On October 21, 2021, we entered into a definitive agreement with Analog Devices to acquire Symeo GmbH (“Symeo”) for
$10.0 million in cash at closing, $10.0 million in cash in 2023 and an equity-based earn-out of up to 858,369 shares of indie
Class A common stocks based on futuret revenue growth. The Symeo transaction closed on January 4, 2022.
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The acquisition of ON Design Israel and Symeo will bring us engineering development teams with broad experience in
millimeter wave technology and radar system implementation, respectively. We expect these combinations to accelerate our
entry into the radar market and enable us to capta uret strategic opportunities among Tier 1 customers.

Reverse Recapitalization with Thunder Bridge Acquisition II

On June 10, 2021, we completed a series of transactions (the “Transaction”) with Thunder Bridge Acquisition II, Ltd (“TB2”)
pursuant to the Master Transactions Agreement dated December 14, 2020, as amended on May 3, 2021 (the “MTA”). In
connection with the Transaction, Thunder Bridge II Surviving Pubco, Inc, a Delaware corporation (“Surviving Pubco”), was
formed to be the successor public company to TB2, TB2 was domesticated into a Delaware corporation and merged with and
into and a merger subsidiary of Surviving Pubco. Additionally, we consummated a Private Investment in Public Equity
(“PIPE”) financing, pursuant to which Surviving Pubco issued 15 million Class A common shares, generating net proceeds of
$150 million as a result of the Transaction. Also on June 10, 2021, Surviving Pubco changed its name to indie Semiconductor,
Inc., and listed our shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC under the
symbol “INDI.”

The Transaction was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). We are deemed the accounting predecessor of the combined business and is the
successor registrant for U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) purposes, meaning that our financial statements forff
previous periods will be disclosed in the registrant’s future periodic reports filed with the SEC. The most significant change in
our reported financial position and results of operations was gross cash proceeds of $399.5 million from the merger transaction,
which includes $150 million in gross proceeds from the PIPE financing that was consummated in conjunction with the
Transaction. The increase in cash was offset by transaction costs incurred in connection with the Transaction of approximately
$43.5 million plus the retirement of indie’s long-term debt of $15.6 million. Approximately $29.8 million of the transaction
costs and all of indie’s long-term debt were paid as of June 30, 2021. Approximately $21.8 million of the transaction costs paid
as of June 30, 2021 were paid by TB2 as part of the Closing. The remainder of the transaction costs were paid in the third
quarter of 2021.

Industry Overview

At the highest level, semiconductors can be classified either as discrete devices, such as individual transistors, or integrated
circuits, where a number of transistors and other components are combined to form a more complicated electronic subsystem.
ICs can be divided into three primary categories: digital, analog, and mixed-signal. Digital ICs, such as memory devices and
microprocessors, can store or perform arithmetic functions with data. Analog ICs, by contrast, handle real-world signals such as
temperature,t pressure, light, sound or speed, and also perform power management functions such as regulating or converting
voltages for electronic devices. Mixed-signal ICs combine digital and analog functions onto a single chip and play an important
role in bridging real world inputs into the digital domain.

Historically, growth in the semiconductor industry has been driven by content expansion in computing, mobile and consumer
electronics. However, research analysts anticipate that as each of these markets approach saturation, the automotive sector will
become one of the fastest growing opportunities. Specifically, according to a November 2021 report from Allied Market
Research, the global automotive semiconductor market, which was valued at $38 billion in 2020, is projected to reach $114
billion by 2030, registering a compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of nearly 12 percent from 2021 to 2030.

indie’s Market Opportunity

In today’s automobiles, semiconductors performff a variety of functions across multiple electronic components and systems,
including sensing, processing data, storing information and converting or controlling signals. Semiconductor architectures vary
significantly depending upon the specific function or application of the end product. They also differ based on a number of
technical characteristics, including the degree of integration, level of customization, programmability and the underlying
process technology utilized in manufacturingt and assembly.

While semiconductors have always comprised the core building blocks of automotive electronic systems and equipment, recent
technological advances have substantially increased their features,t functionality and performance. Today, they support
enhanced user interfaces and offer improved power consumption — all with reduced footprints and lower costs. These
innovations have resulted in significant growth opportunitt ies spanning diverse end markets and applications.

The twin megatrends driving the automotive semiconductor market are the rapid proliferaff tion of electric vehicles (“EVs”) and
adoption of ADAS functionality as the industry moves towards completely autonomous vehicles. Deloitte’s global EV forecast

6



is for a 29 percent CAGR over a 10-year period, with total annual EV sales growing from 2.5 million in 2020 to 31.1 million by
2030, representing almost one third of all new car production. These estimated sales volumes are driven in part by increasing
governmental mandates in Europe and Asia, along with similar new legislation in the United States. For example, special
provisions in the United States Clean Air Act allow states to either follow the federal requirements or adopt Californiaff ’s vehicle
emission regulations. As of December 2021, 16 states have adopted California’s Low-Emission Vehicle (“LEV”) criteria
pollutant and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission regulations and Zero-Emission Vehicle (“ZEV”) regulations. Further, EVs are
also benefiting from higher performance in terms of horsepower and range as well as compelling long-term economics resulting
from decreased battery prices, lower lifetime maintenance costs and total cost of ownership. 2021 hhas lalreadydy bbeen a majorjora yyear
for EV ac ition. Seve lral icountries i lincludinguding hthe U.K., Japan,a Norwayy, Ca dnada, Germa yny dand Swedden hhave strengthengthenedned or
iim lplementedd new iinte lrnal bcombustiion engiengine hivehi lcle bbans; as part of iits EV Ea lrlyy d iAdoption iInitiia itive, to bbe lla hunchedd iin 2022,
dand iincreasedd iinvestment iin hchargingrging i finfrastructure; dand diIndia ame d dnded iits FAME schheme to iincrease EV hpurchasingsing dand

manufac ituri gng iincentiives.

At the same time, global ADAS volumes are expected to increase substantially, driven by consumer demand and government
mandates for increased vehicle safetyt features. The European New Car Assessment Program (“NCAP”), which has been
focused on fostering safe cars since 1996, requires a minimum level of crash mitigation functionality in new vehicles, such as
Automatic Electronic Braking (“AEB”), Lane Keeping Assist (“LKA”) and other driver-assist features, in order for a vehicle to
be awarded a 5-star rating. Similarly, the European Union is moving towards requiring speed assistance, driver drowsiness,
attention-warning and driver distraction systems. In the United States, ADAS adoption and consumer education on advanced
crash avoidance capabia lities are being fueled by industry standards such as the U.S. NCAP and the Insurance Institutet for
Highway Safetyt “Top Safetyt Pick” and “Top Safetyt Pick+” awards. Additionally, the National Highway Traffic Safety
Administration and 20 automakers recently pledged to voluntarily equip nearly all new passenger vehicles by September 1,
2022, with low-speed AEB systems that include forward-collision warning. With global safetyt rating programs and auto
manufacturers pushing to deliver more safety and comfort features to customers, the ADAS market size is projected to reach
$58 billion by 2028, up from $27 billion in 2020, or a 11.4% CAGR, according to Fortune Business Insights.

indie’s addressable market is not solely dependent on global automotive volumes, but rather on the increased levels of
semiconductor content that are required in vehicles to support safety systems, connected car, enhanced user experiences and EV
applications as defined below:

• Safety Systemsyy : Automotive safetyff features are evolving from passive to active systems, with the addition of ADAS
and sensor technologies such as radar and vision. The path to Level 4 (high autonomy) and Level 5 (full autonomy)
also contributes to ADAS adoption in vehicles today.

• ConneCC ctedtt Car: Vehicles are increasingly called upon to communicate not only within the cabia n, but also with
external devices and networks. Smart car access, automotive Near-Field Communication (“NFC”) and Ultra-Wide
Band (“UWB”) technologies, which enablea the connection of vehicles and keys with external devices (including smart
phones and vehicle to vehicle applications), are becoming increasingly standardized in baseline vehicle models rather
than solely in the luxury or customized vehicles segments. Data integrity and security hardware features for
safegff uarding memory and other critical data are also becoming standard across all vehicle models, particularly as
vehicles interface with external networks.

• UserUU Experience: Comfortff and convenience systems coupled with user interface applications, such as the inclusion of
digital cockpits with multiple, large, interactive screens, require increased processing power. In addition, indie believes
that consumer demand for the standardization of higher-end options across a greater number of vehicle classes, as well
as complex internal vehicle customization, will drive higher semiconductor content.

• Electrificaff tion: Higher performance, broader availability of charging stations and more stringent emissions regulations
are each accelerating the move toward electric vehicles.

Competitive Strengths

indie focuses on delivering leading edge IC hardware with embedded software solutions. Over the past 10 years, we have built
trusted relationships with Tier 1 automotive suppliers. Through focused R&D, leading intellectualt property and a curated
strategic partner network, we are on a dozen Tier 1 Approved Vendor Lists (“AVLs”). Our competitive strengths include:

• Positionedtt in the highi est growth areas. Our products serve four types of automotive applications: safety systems,
connected car, user experience and electrification. According to IHS research, these key functions are projected to
grow at a 19% CAGR, from $16 billion in 2020 to $38 billion by 2025, substantially outpacing the broader global
automotive semiconductor market by 700 basis points during the same period.
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• Diffeff rentiated solutions with highgg barriersrr to entry.yy Due to the high degree of regulatory scrutiny and safety
requirements in the automotive industry, the semiconductor market is characterized by stringent qualification
processes, zero defect quality requirements and functionally safe design architectures. As a result, products must meet
high reliabila ity standards and have extensive design-in timeframes. Further, the automotive environment is harsh,
exposing vehicles to fluctuations in temperaturet and humidity and solutions require specific expertise. Given our
extensive industry experience, indie has overcome these high barriers to entry and is well positioned to solve some of
the most demanding Autotech design challenges.

• PartnPP er/Crr ustCC omett r relationstt hips. We focus on engaging with leading global customers by developing technically
differentiated, compelling and sustainable architectures. To win with customers and programs, we bring unique
designs that allow majoa r cost savings through higher levels of product integration, reducing the total number of chips
needed to support multiple requirements. Toward that end, today indie is approved on a dozen Tier 1 AVLs.

• ProvenPP management team. indie’s executive management team brings extensive semiconductor experience, with past
successes in delivering leading edge technologies and creating stockholder value.

Company Strategy

We are dedicated to offering our customers a comprehensive portfolio of automotive technology solutions. We focus on
designing and delivering the technologies that enable four key automotive dynamics: safety systems, connected car, enhanced
user experience and electrification. Core tenets of our strategy include:

• Enablingn diverse,e high growth applications.tt Our system on chip solutions are at the epicenter of a diverse set of
emerging applications including telematics, wireless charging, lighting, CarKey and CarPlay.

• Delivering on existinii gn wins and extendintt gn product reach. Our products currently support multiple Tier 1 automotive
supplier platforms. In the medium term, we plan to deliver expanded LiDAR solutions and bring Artificial Intelligence
(“AI”) and Machine Learning (“ML”) processor acceleration capabia lities into new deployments in radar and vision
applications.

• Pursuingii selectivtt e acquisitions.tt Since the closing of the Transaction, we have completed multiple acquisitions. We
continually assess and plan to selectively pursue inorganic opportunities that are complementary to our existing
technologies and portfolio of products and/or accelerate our growth initiatives.

• Leveraging our global supply chain.We have built an extremely nimble global network of foundry, test and assembly
partners that provide us with the unique ability to deliver to industry-leading cycle times. As a fabless semiconductor
supplier, this approach has allowed us to maximize scalability while minimizing capita al expenditures. To meet demand
as the business scales, we plan to focus on augmenting our successful strategic supply chain partnerships.

• Drivingii margin expansion through innovative designsgg and developmell nt. We intend to expand our margins through
the design and development of new, more highly integrated solutions. Our engineering teams develop architectures to
improve performance and efficiency while reducing the size and cost of the chip as well as the need for multiple,
discrete devices.

Company Products and Solutions

Our current products include devices for a multitude of automotive applications spanning ultrasound for parking assistance, in
cabina wireless charging, infotainment and LED lighting for enhancing the user experience and telematics and cloud access for
connectivity. Products under development range from FMCW, LiDAR, radar and vision solutions for ADAS, to charging
controllers, diagnostic platforms and e-fuse chips for electric vehicles. Within our ADAS portfolio, we intend to support all key
sensor modalities, delivering comprehensive system-level solutions for our customers as depicted below.
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We have deep design experience and capabia lities in core technologies, allowing us to deliver leading-edge Autotech
architectures. Our capaa bila ities include, but are not limited to:

• system engineering, optimization and partitioning;
• mixed signal and RF design;
• analog and power management;
• digital design; and
• Digital Signal Processors (“DSP”) and ARM-based Microcontrollers (“MCU”)

In addition, embedded software is a cornerstone of virtualt ly all of indie’s products. We utilize automotive grade software
solutions and ARM 32-bit processors. Through our proprietary design flow, we also enablea algorithm development and co-
development with hardware.

TeraXion Products and Solutions

TeraXion designs and manufactures innovative photonic components on various technology platforms, including fiber Bragg
gratings (“FBG”), low noise lasers, athermal and tunablea packaging, photonic integration and low noise and high-speed
electronics. These components are integrated into solutions for the laser systems, optical sensing and optical communication
markets.

• Laser Systems. TeraXion offers ultrafast lasers that are a unique tool for material processing of electronics, precision
automotive parts and medical components. TeraXion’s products include high power laser reflectors, chromatic
dispersion management components and optical filters, which can be integrated into high power CW and ultra-short
pulse lasers.

• Optical Communicationstt . TeraXion also offers chromatic dispersion compensators and emulators, optical filters and
semiconductor lasers for the optical communications market. These products are expected to, among other things, be
integrated by customers in 10Gbit/stt to 100Gbit/stt DWDM communication links, radio over fiber links and free space
optical communication links.

• Optical Sensing.ii TeraXion offer low noise semiconductor laser sources and optical filters for the optical sensing
market. These products will, without being limited to, be integrated by customers in fiber optics or remote sensing
systems. End applications include physical parameter sensing (vibration, strain, temperature),t wind detection and
measurement, hard target detection such as autonomous driving and inertial measurement.

Manufacturing

Other than specific FBG and semiconductor laser-based products created by TeraXion, indie continues to utilize a fabla ess
business model, working with a network of third parties to manufacture, assemble and test our products. This approach allows
us to focus our engineering and design resources on our core competencies and to control and reduce our fixed costs and capita al
expenditures.t
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Waferff s, which are the fundamental components of our devices, are manufactured by multiple third-party foundries. Our
primary manufacturing partners are X-FAB, HHGrace, ASE Group, ASE ATX, Sigurd, GT Test, and Global Foundries. We
contract with X-FAB for mixed signal and high voltage foundry. HHGrace provides us deeper sub-micron capabia lities with
embedded Flash Memory. ASE Group is contracted for packaging and testing. We dual source packaging and testing locations
at ASE Groups’ Taiwan and Shanghai facilities. We use Global Foundries as our foundry partner for several process
technologies including advanced nodes. Having several sources and partners provides us with an enhanced security of supply.

Manufacturing is typically a 26-week cycle. The process begins by indie submitting a purchase order for wafers (which
normally has a 70-90 day cycle), while simultaneously sending a forecast of demand to assembly and test partners so that they
may order materials and secure capaa city for indie, respectively. Assembly is typically a 10 to15 day process, while testing takes
approximately 7 to 10 days. The finished product is then warehoused and drop-shipped to a specific location. We currently ship
products to China (Shanghai, Anting, Shenzhen and Changsha), Hong Kong, Taiwan, the United States, Portugal, Korea,
Mexico, and Germany.

In connection with our acquisition of TeraXion in October 2021, we added limited manufacturing capabia lities in Quebec City,
Canada to assemble and test FBG based products and semiconductor laser-based products.

Sales, Marketing and Customer Support

Our go-to-market strategy provides comprehensive customer coverage. We are partner and standard agnostic, allowing our
solutions to be used globally and across multiple platforms and customers. We target innovative Tier 1 automotive suppliers
and focus on the semiconductors and software that enablea the key systems which underpin the highest growth automotive
technology market opportunities.

We often work with customers that have a leading market share in a given application and we deliver unique, tailor-made
software and hardware solutions. Given automotive product cycles, we are typically in production with customers for more than
seven years with a single design. Through our customer collaborata ion at the R&D level, our team members are often integrated
into a customer’s technology selection and design processes, a key aspect in indie’s winning track record of repeat business.

Since our inception, we have shipped over 140 million devices to customers and our products are powering solutions in over 20
automotive suppliers. By establia shing a trusted relationship with the industry’s leading suppliers, indie is well positioned to gain
a growing share of new automotive solutions.

Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 include sales to Aptiv, a leading Tier 1 automotive supplier, which
represented approximately 39% and 57% of total revenue, respectively. The loss of this customer would have a material impact
on our consolidated financial results.

Research and Development Strategy

We have invested a significant amount of time and expense into the design and development of our products and the associated
software. Our engineering teams deliver innovative mixed signal solutions with a focus on meeting our customers’ performance
requirements.

As an Autotech company, we believe that our future success depends on our ability to rapidly develop and introduce
differentiated products. Our goal is to continually improve both our existing portfolio, while simultaneously introducing new
solutions in order to create value for our customers. To outpace market growth, we invest in opportunities that will help extend
our product reach, with an emphasis on the industry’s fastest growing segments. Our attention to meeting or exceeding the
stringent automotive safety and reliabila ity requirements is fundamental to our research and development process.

To that end, we regularly review our investments to ensure alignment with our growth and profitability goals and make
necessary changes in the allocation of resources as needed. In 2021, we spent approximately 120% of our revenues on research
and development as we continue to grow to supportu pent-up customer demand.

Our research activities are principally conducted at our headquarters in Aliso Viejo, California and we have design centers and
sales offices in Austin, TX; Boston, MA; Detroit, MI; San Francisco and San Jose, CA; Budapest, Hungary; Dresden and
Munich, Germany; Edinburgh, Scotland; Haifa,ff Israel; Quebec City, Canada; Tokyo, Japan and several locations throughout
China.
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Process and Packaging Technology

Packaging is becoming increasingly crucial to the perfoff rmance and reliabila ity of automotive ICs, especially given the
challenging operating environment of vehicles. indie’s technology development engineers have long-establia shed expertise in
delivering leading edge capabia lities, such as system-in-package (“SiP”) technology. Further, we leverage our proprietary
packaging capabia lities to integrate multiple chips into a single package solution.

Automotive Quality and Safety

We employ wafer and package technologies that meet or exceed the rigorous quality and safetyt requirements set by industry
standards and our customers. Our robust development processes and company guidelines have resulted in indie devices that are
capabla e of exceeding the requirements of AEC Q100 Automotive Grade.

Our dedication to our customers begins with a commitment to design, produce and deliver the highest quality products that
meet or exceed the performancff e levels required for each application. We encourage our customers to frequently visit both our
design centers and our manufacturing partners to ensure that the processes and quality meet the standards they have come to
expect. We are ISO9001 certified and intend to pursue further certifications.

Intellectual Property

The core strengths of our business are our intellectualt property portfolio and engineering experience, both of which guide
product development activities and our approach to patent filings.

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to obtain and maintain protection of our proprietary
technologies. In general, we have elected to pursue patent protection for aspects of our circuit and device designs that we
believe are patentable. We have a number of core technology patents currently in process, including provisions, but we do not
rely on any particular patent or patents for our success and have instead relied on our know-how and trade secrets. We also rely
on a combination of non-disclosure agreements and other contractual provisions, as well as our employees’ commitment to
confidentiality and loyalty, to protect our technology and processes.

The semiconductor industry in general is characterized by frequent claims of infringement and litigation regarding patent and
other intellectualt property rights. Patent infringement is an ongoing risk, in part because other companies in our industry could
have patent rights that may not be identifiablea when we initiate development efforts. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our
intellectualt property rights, and we may have to defend ourselves against infringement claims.

Competition

The market for high-performance analog, digital and mixed-signal semiconductors for automotive applications, is competitive
although recent consolidation across the semiconductor industry has reduced the number of viablea competitors and created
design opportunities for us. Our primary competitors are other automotive-focused semiconductor companies, including
Infineon, Monolithic Power Systems, NXP, Renesas and ST Microelectronics.

Some competitors have more financial resources than we do, while others have a more diversified set of products and end
markets. Accordingly, such competitors may be able to more quickly respond to customer requests and market developments,
and to better withstand external economic or market factors.

However, we believe that our technical and design experience, our existing approved vendor list position across a dozen Tier 1
automotive suppliers, and a growing demand for software embedded solutions with proprietary manufacturing and packaging
capabia lities, position us to outpace our addressablea market.

Corporate Responsibility and Sustainability

We believe responsible and sustainable business practices support our long-term success. As a company, we are committed to
protecting and supporting our people, our environment, and our communities. This commitment is reflected through our day-to-
day activities, including adoption of socially responsible policies and procedures, our focus on fostering an inclusive workplace,
our constant drive toward more efficient use of materials and energy, our careful management of our supply chain, our products
which help enhance road safety,t and our ethics and compliance program.
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• We seek to protect the human rights and civil liberties of our employees through policies, procedures, and programs
that avoid risks of compulsory and child labor,a both within our company and throughout our supply chain.

• We fosff ter a workplace of dignity, respect, diversity, and inclusion through our recruiting and advancement practices,
internal communications, and employee resource groups.

• We educate our employees annually on relevant ethics and compliance topics, publish accessible guidance on ethical
issues and related company resources in our global Code of Business Conduct and Ethictt s, and encourage reporting of
ethical concerns through any of several global and local reporting channels.

• We innovate to reduce the energy used by our products, the energy used to manufacture them, and the amount of new
materials required to manufacturet them.

Employees

As of December 31, 2021, we had over 400 employees. None of our employees or contract workers are represented by a labor
union.

Information about Our Executive Officers

Our executive officers are as follows:

Name Age Position
Donald McClymont 53 Chief Executive Officer and Director
Ichiro Aoki 56 President and Director
Thomas Schiller 51 Chief Financial Officer and EVP of Strategy
Scott Kee 45 Chief Technology Officer
Steven Machuga 57 Chief Operating Officff er

Donald McClymont serves as indie’s Chief Executive Officer and is responsible forff formulating its strategic vision, ensuring
execution of business plans and creating shareholder value. Mr. McClymont also serves on indie’s Board of Directors. Prior to
co-founding indie in 2007, he was Vice President of Marketing at Axiom Microdevices, tasked with driving company strategy,
developing sales engagements and building key industry partnerships. Prior to Axiom, he was a Product Line Director at
Skyworks Solutions and Conexant, and a Marketing Manager at Fujitsu. Previously, he was with Thesys (now X-FAB
Melexis), and Wolfson (now Cirrus Logic), as a design engineer. Mr. McClymont holds five patents worldwide and earned a
Masters in Engineering Electronics and Electrical fromff the University of Glasgow.

Dr. Ichiro Aoki serves as indie’s President and as a member of the Board of Directors. He works closely with indie’s executive
team and Board to create, update and manage execution of indie’s strategies and technical roadmaps. Prior to co-founding indie
in 2007, Dr. Aoki was a co-founder, Board Member and Chief Architect of Axiom Microdevices, which was subsequently sold
to Skyworks Solutions. Previously, Dr. Aoki founded and served as co-CEO of PST Eletronica Ltd. in Brazil, which was later
sold to Stoneridge, Inc. Dr. Aoki has developed 35 patents worldwide and has authored numerous IEEE papers, two of them
having over 400 citations. He is fluent in Japanese, Portuguese and English. Dr. Aoki holds a Ph.D. and Masters in Electrical
Engineering from the California Institutet of Technology and a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering from the
University of Campinam s, Sao Paulo, Brazil. He serves as a Californiaff Institutet of Technology Electrical Engineering Advisory
Council Member and is also a Scientificff Advisory Board Member with the California Institutet of Technology Space-based
Solar Power Project (“SSPP”).

Thomas Schiller serves as indie’s Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of Strategy. In this role, he leads all
corporrr ate finff ancing, reporting, investor relations, treasury, tax, as well as merger and acquisition activities. Prior to joining indie
in October 2019, Mr. Schiller was Vice President of Marketing at Marvell Semiconductor, from February to October 2019.
From July 2002 to February 2019, he was Vice President of Strategy and Corporate Development at Skyworks Solutions. He
earned a Masters of Business Administration from the University of Southern California with specialization in Entrepreneurship
and Finance, and holds a Bachelor of Arts in Social Sciences with emphasis in Economics and Political Science from the
University of California, Irvine. In addition, Mr. Schiller has completed executive education programs at the University of
Californiff a, Los Angeles and at Suffolk University,t Boston.

Dr. Scott Kee is indie’s Chief Technology Officer with responsibility forff all strategic product development and roadmap
alignment. Prior to co-founding indie, Dr. Kee was Chief Technology Officer at Axiom Microdevices, another company he co-
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founded, which was subsequently sold to Skyworks Solutions. Dr. Kee has developed 35 patents worldwide. He earned his
Ph.D. in Electrical and Electronics Engineering from the Californiaff Institute of Technology, and holds a Bachelor of Science in
Electrical and Electronics Engineering from the University of Delaware.

Steven Machuga has been indie’s Chief Operating Officer since March 2021. He has over 30 years of experience in electronics
and semiconductor development and high-volume operations management of the entire supply chain. Prior to joining indie, he
was Vice President, Worldwide Operations at Skywkk orks Solutions since 2016. Prior to that, he was Vice President, External
Manufacturing Operations & Engineering at Skyworks from 2006. He holds a Masters in Chemical Engineering and Materials
Science from the University of Minnesota and a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering, from the University of
Connecticut. He holds six U.S. patents and three European patents.

Our executive officers are appointed by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Available Information

Our primary Internet address is www.indiesemi.com. We make our U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
periodic reports (Forms 10-Q and Forms 10-K) and current reports (Forms 8-K) available free of charge through our website as
soon as reasonably practicablea after they are filed electronically with the SEC. Within the Investor Relations section of our
website, we provide information concerning corporate governance, including our Audit and Compensation Committee charters,
Nominating and Corporate Governance information, Board committee composition and chairs, Code of Ethics for Principal
Financial Officers, and other information. The content of our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report
on Form 10-K or into any other report or document we fileff with the SEC, and any references to our websites are intended to be
inactive textual references only.

The SEC also maintains an Internet website at http:/t /www.se// c.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and
other information that we file electronically with the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In evaluating our company and our business, you should carefullff yll consider the risksii and uncertainties described below,
together withtt the othett r infon rmation in thisii Annual Reporte on Form 10-K, including our consolidated financial statements and
the related notes and the section titled “Management’s Discuii ssion and Analysisll of FinFF ancial Condition and Results of
OperO ations.” The occurrence of one or more of the events or circumstances described in these risk factors, alone or in
combination withtt other eventstt or circumstances, may have a material adverse effectff on our business, reputation, revenue,
financial condition, results of operations or future prospects,tt in which case the market price of our common stock could
decline, and you couldl lose part or all of your investment. Unless otherwise indicated, reference in thisii section and elsewll here
in thisii Annual Reporte on Form 10-K to our business being adversely affectedff ,dd negativelyll impacted or harmed will include an
adverse effectff on, or a negative impact or harm to, our business, reputation, financial condition, results of operations, revenue
or our future prospects.tt The material and other riskskk and uncertainties summarizedii above in thisii Annual Reporte on Form 10-K
and described below are not intended to be exhaustive and are not the only ones we face. Additional risksii and uncertainties not
presentlyll known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business. This Annual Reporte on Form 10-K
also contains forward-looking statements that involve riskskk and uncertainties. Our actual results could diffeff r materially from
those anticipatei d in the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of facff tors, including the risksii described below. See
the section titled “CautiCC onary Statement Regardinge Forward-Lookrr ing Statements.”

Summary of Risks

An investment in shares of our Class A common stock and warrants involves substantial risks and uncertainties that may
adversely affect the value of your investment. Some of the more significant challenges and risks relating to an investment in our
company include, among other things, the following:

Risksii Related to Our Operations and Industry

• The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical.
• The semiconductor industry is highly competitive.
• Average selling prices in the markets we serve have decreased over time.
• Much of our business depends on winning competitive bid selection processes.
• The demand for our products depends on the demand for our customers’ end products.
• Any downturn in the automotive market could significantly harm our financial results.
• We depend on third parties to manufacture, assemble, test and/or package our products.
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• We rely on the timely supply of materials that may only be available from a limited number of suppliers.
• We must develop new products with acceptable profit margins.
• “Strategic backlog” and “design win pipeline” estimations may not result in revenue or profits.
• Mergers, acquisitions, investments and joint venturest could adversely affecff t our results of operations.
• We must effeff ctively manage futureff growth.
• We may seek additional capia tal, which may result in dilution to our stockholders.
• We may rely on strategic partnerships, joint ventures and alliances for outside of our control.
• We may not be successful in exiting certain programs or businesses or in restructuring our operations.
• Disruptir ons in our relationships with any one of our key customers could adversely affecff t our business.
• Conflict minerals disclosure requirements may cause us to incur additional expenses.
• Our existing and future indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to operate our business.
• We have historically incurred losses and may continue to incur losses.

Risksii Related to Our Organizationalii Structure

• We are dependent upon distributions made by our subsidiaries to make certain payments.
• We are party to a Tax Receivable Agreement, which requires us to make certain payments.

Risksii Related to Macroeconomic Conditions

• Geopolitical uncertainty could impact end customer demand and disrupt our supplyu chain.
• Downturns or volatility in general economic conditions could harm our business.
• Rising interest rates and higher borrowing costs could impair our ability to raise sufficient capia tal to capita alize on our

business plans.
• Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could harm our business.
• Political, economic and health risks and naturalt disasters could harm our business.
• Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could have an adverse effecff t on our results of operations.
• Our worldwide operations are subject to political, economic and health risks and naturalt disasters, including the ongoing

effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, which could have a material adverse effecff t on our business operations.

Risksii Related to our Intellectual Property,yy Technology and Cybersecurity.tt

• We may not be able to protect our proprietary intellectualt property against improper use.
• Intellectual property claims or litigation could significantly harm our business.
• We rely on certain third-party software that may not be availablea to us in the future.t
• Interruptions in information technology systems could adversely affect our business.
• Security breaches and other cybersecurity incidents could adversely impact our business.

Risksii Related to Regule atoryl Compliance and Legal Matters

• We must comply with a large body of laws and regulations.
• We may be adversely affected by product defects and product liability or warrantyt claims.
• Significant litigation could impair our reputation and cause us to incur substantial costs.
• Securities litigation and stockholder activism could adversely affect our business.
• We are subjeu ct to export restrictions and laws affecff ting trade and investments.
• Changes in tax rates or laws or additional tax liabilities could adversely affect our business.
• Failure to comply with anti-corruption laws or our ethics policies could adversely affecff t our business.
• We must comply with environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations.

Risksii Related to Doing Business in China

• Uncertainties with respect to the PRC legal system could adversely affecff t our China subsidiary.
• China’s economic, political and social conditions may change rapidla y with little advance notice.
• Our China subsidiary may be limited in its ability to make distributions to us.
• Government control of currency conversion may affect the value of our securities.
• Failure to comply with certain regulations may subjeu ct us or our PRC employem es to fines or sanctions.
• We may be subjeu ct to a variety of PRC laws and other obligations regarding data protection.

Risksii Related to Financial Reporting,e Internal Controls and Being a Public Company
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• Inadequate internal controls could result in inaccurate financial reporting.
• We may not be able to timely and effectively implement and maintain controls and procedures required by Section 404 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act that are applicable to us.
• We will incur significant increased expenses and administrative burdens as a public company.
• Use of exemptions available to emerging growth companim es could make our securities less attractive to investors and may

make it difficult to compare our performance to that of other public companies.
• Our actual operating results may differ significantly from our guidance.

Risksii Related to Ownershipi of Our Class A Common Stock and Warrants,tt and Organizationalii Documents

• We must comply with the continued listing standards of Nasdaq for our Class A common stock.
• We may redeem unexpired warrants prior to their exercise at a time that is disadvantageous to the holder, thereby making

such warrants worthless.
• Our warrants may have an adverse effect on the market price of our Class A common stock.
• An investment in our Class A common stock may be diluted by future issuances of our Class A common stock or LLC

Units.
• There may be sales of a substantu ial amount of Class A common stock by our stockholders.
• Provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws limit the ability of stockholders to take certain actions and could

delay or discourage takeover attempts.
• Our Certificate of Incorporation designates the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum

for certain types of actions and proceedings.

General Riskii Factors

• The market price of our securities may fluctuate or decline.
• Shares of Autotech public companies have been severely depressed over the past year and may not recover.
• Loss of personnel, or an inabila ity to attract personnel, could adversely affect our business.
• Our operating results are subjeu ct to substantial quarterly and annual fluctuatt ions.

Please see below for a discussion of these and other factors you should consider before making an investment in our securities.

Risks Related to Our Operations and Industry

The cyclicll al nature of the semiconductor industrytt may limiii tii our abilitll ytt to maintainii or improvem our net sales and
profitabiliii tyii .yy

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical and is prone to significant downturns from time to time. Cyclical downturns can
result in substantial declines in semiconductor demand, production overcapacity, high inventory levels and accelerated erosion
of average selling prices. Such downturns result from a variety of market forces including constant and rapid technological
change, quick product obsolescence, price erosion, evolving standards, short product life cycles and wide fluctuations in
product supply and demand.

Commencing in 2020, downturns in the semiconductor industry have been attributed to a variety of factors including the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, ongoing trade disputes between the United States and China, weakness in demand and pricing
for semiconductors across applications, and excess inventory. During the second half of fiscal year 2020, customer
manufacturingt facilities re-opened and demand increased through fourth quarter of 2021. Currently, the Company does not
anticipate significant adverse effects on its operations in the near- or mid-term. However, the future effects of the virus are
difficult to predict, due to uncertainty about the course of the virus, different variants that may evolve, and the supply of the
vaccine on a local, regional, and global basis, as well as the ability to implement vaccination programs in a short time frame.

Conversely, significff ant upturns could cause us to be unable to satisfy demand in a timely and cost-efficient manner, and could
result in increased competition for access to third-party foundry, assembly and testing capaca ity. In the event of such an upturn,
we may not be able to expand our workforce and operations in a sufficiently timely manner, procure adequate resources and
raw materials, or locate suitable suppliers or other subcontractors to respond effectively to changes in demand for our existing
products or to the demand for new products. Accordingly, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affectff ed.
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The semiconductor industrytt is highly competitiii ve.ee If we fail to introductt e new technologieo s and products in a timeii ly manner,
it couldll adversely affect business.

The semiconductor industry is highly competitive and characterized by constant and rapid technological change, short product
lifecycles, significant price erosion, and evolving standards for quality. Accordingly, the success of our business depends, to a
large extent, on our ability to meet evolving industry requirements, introduce new products and technologies designed to satisfy
those evolving requirements, and see our products and technologies accepted in the marketplat ce, both in a timely manner and at
prices that are acceptable to customers.

Moreover, the costs related to the research and development necessaryrr to develop new technologies and products are significant
and some of our competitors may have greater resources than us. If they significantly increase the resources that they devote to
developing and marketing their products, we may not be able to compete effectively. Our competitors’ products, services and
technologies may be less costly or may offer superior functionality or better features than ours, which may result in lower than
expected selling prices for our products. Additionally, some of our competitors operate and maintain their own fabrication
facilities, have longer operating histories, larger customer bases, more comprehensive intellectual property portfolios and
greater financial resources.

Further, the semiconductor industry has experienced, and may continue to experience, significant consolidation among
companies and vertical integration among customers. Larger competitors resulting from consolidations may have certain
advantages over us, including, but not limited to: more efficient cost structures;t substantially greater financial and other
resources with which to withstand adverse economic or market conditions and pursue development, engineering,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of their products; longer independent operating histories; presence in key markets;
intellectualt property protection; large purchase quantities; and greater name recognition. In addition, we may be at a
competitive disadvantage to our peers if we fail to identify or are unable to finance attractive opportunities to acquire companies
to expand our business. Consolidation among our competitors and integration among our customers could erode our market
share, negatively impact our capaca ity to compete and require us to restructure our operations, any of which would have a
material adverse effecff t on our business.

As a result of these competitive pressures, we may face declining sales volumes or lower prices for our products, and may not
be able to reduce total costs in line with declining revenue. If any of these risks materialize, they could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The average selling prices of products in our marketstt have historicaltt lyll decreased over timeii and could do so in the future,e
which could adversely impactm our revenue and profitabiii liii tyii .yy

Average selling prices of semiconductor products in the markets we serve have historically decreased over time. Profit margins
and financial results may suffer if we are unable to offset any reductions in average selling prices by reducing costs, developing
new or enhanced products on a timely basis with higher selling prices or profit margins, or increasing sales volumes. Although
we have contractualt agreements with customers, there is no assurance that those price agreements will be honored. As a result,
our average selling prices may decline faster than forecasted.

Much of our businessii depends on winning competm ittt ivtt e bid selectiontt processes, and the failure to be selectedtt could adversely
affect businessii in those market segments.

The competitive selection processes often require an investment of significant time and capita al resources, with no guarantee of
winning the contract and generating revenue. In the automotive semiconductor market in which we compete, due to the longer
design cycles involved, failure to win a design-in could prevent access to a customer for several years. Our failure to win a
significant number of these bids could result in reduced revenues, and hurt our competitive position for future selection
processes, which could have a material adverse effecff t on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The demand for our products depends on the demand for our customers’ end products.

The vast majority of our revenue is derived from sales to manufacturerst in the automotive industry. Demand in this market
fluctuates significff antly, driven by consumer spending, consumer preferences, the development of new technologies and
prevailing economic conditions. In addition, the end products in which our semiconductors are incorporated may not be
successful,ff or may experience price erosion or other competitive factors that could affect the price manufacturers are willing to
pay. Such customers have in the past, and may in the future, vary order levels significantly from period to period, request
postponements of scheduled delivery dates, modify their orders or reduce lead times. This is particularly common during
periods of low demand. This can make managing business difficult, as it limits the predictability of future revenue. It can also
affectff the accuracy of our financial forecasts.
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Furthermore, developing industry trends, including customers’ use of outsourcing and new and revised supply chain models,
may affect our revenue, costs and working capia tal requirements.

Our sales are made primarilyll to Tier 1 suppliers.rr Anyn downturnrr in the automotive market could significantlytt harm our
financiali results.ll

This automotive concentration of sales exposes us to the risks associated with the automotive market. For example, our
anticipated future growth is highly dependent on the adoption of ADAS, user interface, connectivity and electrification
technologies, which are expected to have increased sensor and power product content. A downturn in the automotive market
could delay automakers’ plans to introduce new vehicles with these features, which would negatively impact the demand for
products and our ability to grow our business.

The automotive industry continues to undergo consolidation and reorganization. Further, such changes in the automotive
market could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Moreover, governmental actions to contain the spread of COVID-19 adversely affected the automotive industry, including
manufacturers, dealers, distributors and third-party suppliers. For example, in early 2020, many automotive manufacturers were
forced to suspend manufacturing operations for a period of time. Starting in second half of fiscal year 2020, customer
manufacturing facilities re-opened and demand increased through fourth quarter of 2021. Currently, the Company does not
anticipate significant adverse effects on its operations in the near- or mid-term. However, the future effects of the virus are
difficult to predict, due to uncertainty about the course of the virus, different variants that may evolve, and the supply of the
vaccine on a local, regional, and global basis, as well as the ability to implement vaccination programs in a short time frame.

The foregoing operational and economic impacts and other adverse effects on the automotive industry could have a material
adverse effecff t on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on third parties and theirii technologyll to manufacture,e assemble,ll test and/or package our products, which exposes
us to riskii skk .

The manufacture of our products, including the fabra ication of semiconductor wafers, and the assembly and testing of our
products, involve highly complex processes. For example, minute levels of contaminants in the manufacturing environment,
difficulties in the wafer fabra ication process or other factors can cause a subsu tantial portion of the components on a wafer to be
nonfunctional. These problems may be difficult to detect at an early stage of the manufacturing process and often are time-
consuming and expensive to correct.

From time to time, we have experienced problems achieving acceptablea yields at our third-party wafer fabrication partners,
resulting in delays in the availabila ity of components. Moreover, an increase in the rejectioe n rate of products during the quality
control process before, during or after manufacturet and/or shipping of such products, results in lower yields and margins.

In addition, changes in manufacturing processes required as a result of changes in product specifications, changing customer
needs and the introduction of new product lines have historically significantly reduced manufacturing yields, resulting in low or
negative margins on those products. Poor manufacturing yields over a prolonged period of time could adversely affect our
ability to deliver products on a timely basis and harm relationships with our customers, which could materially and adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on the timeii ly supply of materialtt sll and our businessii could be adversely affected if suppliell rs fail to meet their deliveryr
obligatii ons or raise prices. Certainii materialtt sll needed in our manufacturingii operations are only availablii ell from a limitedii
number of suppliell rs.

We have a fableff ss business model, which outsources our manufacturing operations to third party foundries. The manufacturing
operations depend on deliveries of materials in a timely manner and, in some cases, on a just-in-time basis. From time to time,
suppliers may extend lead times, limit the amounts supplied or increase prices due to capaca ity constraints or other factors.
Supply disruptions may also occur due to shortages in critical materials or components. Because our products are complex, it is
frequently difficult or impossible to substitutet one type of material with another. A failure by suppliers to deliver requirements
could result in disruptions to our third-party manufacturing operations. Our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be harmed if we are unable to obtain adequate supplies of materials in a timely manner or if there are
significant increases in the costs of materials.

The semiconductor industrytt is characterized by continueii d price erosion, especiallyll after a product has been on the market
for a period of timeii ,e and we may be unsuccessfulff in advancingii our product technologiell s, improvinm gn efficiencies or
developingll and sellingll new products withii product margins simiii larii or bettertt than what we have experienced in the past.
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One of the results of the rapida innovation in the semiconductor industry is that pricing pressure, especially on products
containing older technology, can be intense. Product life cycles are relatively short, and as a result, products tend to be replaced
by more technologically advanced substitutet s on a regular basis. In turn, demand for older technology falls, causing the price at
which such products can be sold to drop, in some cases precipitously.

In order to continue profitably supplying these products, continuous development of new technology, processes and product
innovations is necessary. If we cannot advance our process technologies or improve our efficiencies to a degree sufficient to
maintain required margins, we will no longer be able to make a profit from the sale of these products. Moreover, we may not be
able to cease production of such products, either due to contractual obligations or for customer relationship reasons, and as a
result we may be required to bear a loss on such products. We cannot guarantee that competition in our core product markets
will not lead to price erosion, lower revenue or lower margins in the future. Should reductions in our manufacturing costs fail to
keep pace with reductions in market prices for the products we sell, this could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. Further, we have invested and will continue to invest significant resources in our
product and technology development efforts. Our development efforts carry inherent risk due to the challenges of foreseeing
changes or developments in technology, predicting changes in customer requirements or preferences or anticipating the
adoption of new industry standards, and we may be unable to meet our customers’ requirements or gain market acceptance.
Should we fail to develop and introduce sufficiently unique products with profit margins similar to or better than what we have
experienced in the past or should our product development fail to keep pace with the changing needs of our customers and
industry, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affecff ted.

We may pursue mergers, acquisitiii ons, investments and joint ventures, which could adversely affect our resultsll of operations.

Our growth strategy includes acquiring or investing in businesses that offer complementary products, services and technologies,
or enhance our market coverage or technological capaa bia lities. Any acquisitions we undertake, and their integration involve risks
and uncertainties. There could be unexpected delays, challenges and related expenses, and disruption of our business.
Inaccuracies in our estimates and assumptim ons used to assess a transaction or missteps or delays in integrating our acquisitions
may result in us not realizing the expected financial or strategic benefits of any such transaction. In addition, U.S. and foreign
regulatory approvals required in connection with an acquisition may take longer than anticipated to obtain, may not be
forthcoming or may contain burdensome conditions, which may jeopardize, delay or reduce the anticipated benefits to us of the
transaction.

If we do not effectively manage future growth, our resources, systemtt s and controls may be strained,ii and our resultsll of
operations maya suffer.

Future growth could strain our resources, management, information and telecommunication systems and operating and financial
controls. To manage future growth effectively, we must be abla e to improve and expand our systems and controls, which we
may not be able to do in a timely or cost-effective manner. A failure to manage any growth we may experience or improve or
expand our existing systems and controls, or unexpected difficulties in doing so, could harm our business and results of
operations.

We may seek additionaltt capitalii to take advantage of businessii opportunitiii es and support the furthertt expansion of our
business,ii which capitalii mighti not be availablell on acceptablee ell terms,s if at all,ll or may resultll in dilution to our stockholdett rs.

While we believe that the net proceeds from the Transaction continue to be sufficient to meet our current capita al requirements,
we may seek additional equity or debt financing to pursue strategic opportunities, acquire complementary businesses, products
or technologies or to fund the further expansion of our business. If additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity or
debt securities, the percentage ownership of our existing stockholders would be reduced, and such securities may have rights,
preferences or privileges senior to those of the holders of our Class A common stock.

From time to time, we maya relyll on strategitt c partnerships,ii jointii ventures and alliancell s for manufacturingii and research and
developmell nt. However, we do not controltt these partnershipsii and jointii ventures, and actionstt taken by any of our partners or
the terminationii of these partnershipsii or joint ventures could adversely affect our business.ii

As part of our strategy, we may enter into a number of long-term strategic partnerships and alliances, including mergers and
acquisitions. There can be no assurances that they will be successful.ff If any of our current strategic partners or alliances we may
engage with in the future were to encounter financial difficulff ties or change their business strategies, they may no longer be able
or willing to participate in these groups or alliances, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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We may from time-ii to-timett desire to exitii certainii programs or businesii ses, or to restructure our operationstt ,s but may not be
successful in doingii so.

From time to time, we may decide to divest certain businesses or restructure our operations, including through the contribution
of assets to joint venturest . However, our ability to successfully exit businesses, or to close or consolidate operations, depends
on a number of factors, many of which are outside of our control. For example, if we are seeking a buyer for a particular
business, none may be available, or we may not be successful in negotiating satisfactory terms with prospective buyers. In some
cases, particularly with respect to our European operations, there may be laws or other legal impediments affeff cting our ability
to carry out such sales or restructuring.t

If we are unable to exit a business in a timely manner, or to restructure our operations in a manner we deem to be advantageous,
this could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Even if a divestment is
successful, we may face indemnity and other liability claims by the acquirer or other parties.

Disruptionstt in our relationshitt psii with any one of our keye customett rs couldll adversely affect our business.ii

A substantial portion of our revenue is derived from top customers. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to generate
similar levels of revenue from our largest customers in the future. If one or more of these customers substantially reduces its
purchases from us, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Sales to
Aptiv, a leading Tier 1 automotive supplier, represented approximately 39% and 57% of our total revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The loss of this customer would have a material impact on our consolidated
financial results. However, as we continue to grow our customer base organically and through business combinations, the
revenue concentration with Aptiv may decrease over time.

Conflff ictll mineralsll disclosurell regule atll iott ns maya requireii us to incur additionaltt expenses, may result in damage to our businessii
reputatitt on and maya adversely impactm our abilityii to conduct our business.ii

The U.S. Congress has enacted laws, and the SEC has adopted rules regarding enhanced disclosure requirements for companies
that use specified minerals known as “conflict minerals” in their products. Some of these metals are commonly used in
semiconductor devices, including our products. These SEC rules require companies to investigate, disclose and report whether
or not such metals originated from the Democratic Republic of Congo or adjoining countries. We have numerous foreign
suppliers, many of whom are not obligated by law to investigate their own supply chains. As a result, we may incur significant
costs to comply with the diligence and disclosure requirements, including costs related to determining the source of any of the
relevant metals used in our products. In addition, because our supply chain is with third parties, we may not be able to
sufficiently verify the origin of all the relevant metals used in our products through the due diligence procedures we implement.
We may also face difficulties in satisfying our customers if they require that we prove or certify that our products are “conflict
free.” Key components and parts that can be shown to be “conflict free” may not be available to us in sufficient quantity, or at
all, or may only be available at significantly higher cost to us. If we are not able to meet customer requirements, customers may
discontinue purchasing from us. Any of these outcomes could adversely impact our business, financial condition or operating
results.

Our existing and future indebtednestt s couldll adversely affect our abiliii tyii to operate our business.ii

As of December 31, 2021, our total consolidated indebtedness was $7.9 million. We may also incur additional indebtedness to
meet future financing needs. We may be subjeu ct to debt covenants and payment obligations that may limit our ability to operate
our business. Any outstanding indebtedness, including any additional future indebtedness, combined with our other financial
obligations and contractualt commitments could have significant adverse consequences, including:

• requiring us to dedicate a portion of our cash resources to the payment of interest and principal, reducing money available
to fund working capia tal, capia tal expenditures, product candidate development and other general corporate purposes;

• increasing our vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and market Conditions, such as interest rate
fluctuations;

• subjecting us to restrictive covenants that may reduce our ability to take certain corporate actions or obtain further debt or
equity financing;

• acceleration of payment of our debt obligations upon a default of payment;
• potential loss of collateral for secured indebtedness;
• limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we compete; and
• placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt or better debt servicing options.

We have historicallyll incurred losses and maya continue to incur losses.
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We have incurred a net loss since our inception. Our ability to achieve profitability will depend on increased revenue growth
from, among other things, increased demand for our product offerings. We may not be successful in these pursuits, and we may
never achieve profitabila ity or sustain profitability if achieved.

Risks Related to Our Organizational Structure

We are a holdingii companym and our only material asset is our intertt est in ADK LLC, and we are accordingln yll dependent upon
distributionstt made by our subsidiarieii s to pay taxes,aa make payments under the Tax Receivablell Agreement and pay dividends.i

We are a holding company with no material assets other than our ownership of LLC Units and our managing member interest in
ADK LLC. As a result, we will have no independent means of generating revenue or cash flow. Our ability to pay taxes, make
payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement and pay dividends will depend on the financial results and cash flows of ADK
LLC and its subsidiaries and the distributions we receive from ADK LLC. Deterioration in the financial condition, earnings or
cash flow of ADK LLC and its subsidiaries for any reason could limit or impair ADK LLC’s ability to pay such distributions.
Additionally, to the extent that we need funds and ADK LLC and/or any of its subsidiaries are restricted from making such
distributions under applicable law or regulation or under the terms of any financing arrangements, or ADK LLC is otherwise
unable to provide such funds, it could materially adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition.

ADK LLC will continue to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, generally will not be
subject to any entity-level U.S. federal income tax. Instead, taxable income will be allocated to holders of LLC Units.
Accordingly, we will be required to pay income taxes on our allocable share of any net taxabla e income of ADK LLC. Under the
terms of the Amended Operating Agreement, ADK LLC is obligated to make tax distributions to holders of LLC Units
(including us) calculated at certain assumed tax rates. In addition to tax expenses, we will also incur expenses related to our
operations, including payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement (and the cost of administering such payment
obligations), which could be significant. We intend to cause ADK LLC to make distributions to holders of LLC Units in
amounts sufficient to cover all applicable taxes (calculated at assumed tax rates), relevant operating expenses, payments under
the Tax Receivable Agreement and dividends, if any, declared by us. However, as discussed below, ADK LLC’s ability to
make such distributions may be subject to various limitations and restrictions including, but not limited to, restrictions on
distributions that would either violate any contract or agreement to which ADK LLC is then a party, including debt agreements,
or any applicable law, or that would have the effect of rendering ADK LLC insolvent. If our cash resources are insufficient to
meet our obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement and to fund our obligations, we may be required to incur additional
indebtedness to provide the liquidity needed to make such payments, which could materially adversely affect our liquidity and
financial condition and subject us to various restrictions imposed by any such lenders. To the extent that we are unable to make
payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement for any reason, such payments will be deferred and will accrue interest until
paid; provided, however, that nonpayment for a specified period may constitute a material breach of a material obligation under
the Tax Receivable Agreement and therefore accelerate payments due under the Tax Receivable Agreement.

Additionally, although ADK LLC generally will not be subject to any entity-level U.S. federal income tax, it may be liable
under recent federal tax legislation for adjustments to its tax return,t absent an election to the contrary. In the event ADK LLC’s
calculations of taxable income are incorrect, its members, including us, in later years may be subject to material liabilities
pursuant to this federal legislation and its related guidance.

We anticipate that the distributions we will receive from ADK LLC may, in certain periods, exceed our actual tax liabilities and
obligations to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. Our board of directors, in its sole discretion, will make any
determination from time to time with respect to the use of any such excess cash so accumulated, which may include, among
other uses, to acquire additional newly issued LLC Units from ADK LLC at a per unit price determined by reference to the
market value of the Class A common stock; to pay dividends, which may include special dividends, on our Class A common
stock; to fund repurchases of Class A common stock; or any combination of the foregoing. We will have no obligation to
distribute such cash (or other available cash other than any declared dividend) to our stockholders. To the extent that we do not
distribute such excess cash as dividends on Class A common stock or otherwise undertake ameliorative actions between LLC
Units and shares of Class A common stock and instead, for example, hold such cash balances, holders of LLC Units that held
interests in ADK LLC pre-Transaction may benefit from any value attributablea to such cash balances as a result of their
ownership of Class A common stock following an exchange of their LLC Units, notwithstanding that such holders may
previously have participated as holders of LLC Units in distributions by ADK LLC that resulted in such excess cash balances
held by us.

Dividends on our common stock, if any, will be paid at the discretion of our board of directors, which will consider, among
other things, our business, operating results, financial condition, current and expected cash needs, plans for expansion and any
legal or contractual limitations on our ability to pay such dividends. Financing arrangements may include restrictive covenants
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that restrict our ability to pay dividends or make other distributions to our stockholders. In addition, ADK LLC is generally
prohibited under state law fromff making a distribution to a member to the extent that, at the time of the distribution, after giving
effect to the distribution, liabilities of ADK LLC (with certain exceptions) exceed the fair value of its assets. ADK LLC’s
subsidiaries are generally subjeu ct to similar legal limitations on their ability to make distributions to ADK LLC. If ADK LLC
does not have sufficient funds to make distributions, our ability to declare and pay cash dividends may also be restricted or
impaired.

Under the Tax Receivablell Agreement, we willll be requiredii to pay 85% of the tax benefitsii relating to tax depreciationtt or
amortizationii deductions as a resultll of the tax basis step-upu we receive in connectiontt withii the exchanges of LLC Unitsii intott
our Class A common stocktt and relatedtt transactions, and those payments may be substantialtt .ll

Certain indie Equity Holders may exchange their LLC Units for shares of Class A common stock pursuant to the Exchange
Agreement, subject to certain conditions and transfer restrictions as set forth therein and in the Amended Operating Agreement.
These exchanges are expected to result in increases in our allocable share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of
ADK LLC. These increases in tax basis may increase (for tax purposes) depreciation and amortization deductions and therefore
reduce the amount of income or franchise tax that we would otherwise be required to pay in the future had such exchanges
never occurred.

In connection with the Transaction, we entered into the Tax Receivable Agreement, which generally provides for the payment
by us of 85% of certain tax benefits, if any, that we realize (or in certain cases are deemed to realize) as a result of these
increases in tax basis and certain tax attributes of the ADK Blocker Group and tax benefits related to entering into the Tax
Receivable Agreement, including tax benefits attributablea to payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. These payments
are the obligations of us and not of ADK LLC. The actual increase in our allocable share of ADK LLC’s tax basis in its assets,
as well as the amount and timing of any payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement, will vary depending upon a number of
factors, including the timing of exchanges, the market price of the Class A common stock at the time of the exchange, the extent
to which such exchanges are taxabla e and the amount and timing of the recognition of our income. While many of the factors
that will determine the amount of payments that we will make under the Tax Receivable Agreement are outside of our control,
we expect that the payments we will make under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be substantial and could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition. Any payments made by us under the Tax Receivable Agreement will generally reduce
the amount of overall cash flow that might have otherwise been available to us. To the extent that we are unable to make timely
payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement for any reason, the unpaid amounts will be deferred and will accrue interest
until paid. Furthermore, our future obligation to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement could make us a less
attractive target for an acquisition, particularly in the case of an acquirer that cannot use some or all of the tax benefits that may
be deemed realized under the Tax Receivable Agreement.

In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivablell Agreement may exceed the actual tax benefitsii we realize or may be
acceleratell d.

Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be based on the tax reporting positions that we determine, and the Internal
Revenue Service (the “IRS”) or another taxing authority may challenge all or any part of the tax basis increases, as well as other
tax positions that we take, and a court may sustain such a challenge. In the event any tax benefits initially claimed by us are
disallowed, the indie Equity Holders will not be required to reimburse us for any excess payments that may previously have
been made under the Tax Receivable Agreement, for example, due to adjustments resulting from examinations by taxing
authorities. Rather, excess payments made to such holders will be netted against any future cash payments otherwise required to
be made by us, if any, after the determination of such excess. However, a challenge to any tax benefits initially claimed by us
may not arise for a number of years following the initial time of such payment or, even if challenged early, such excess cash
payment may be greater than the amount of future cash payments that we might otherwise be required to make under the terms
of the Tax Receivable Agreement and, as a result, there might not be future cash payments from which to net against. As a
result, in certain circumstances we could make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement in excess of our actual income
or franchise tax savings, which could materially impair our financial condition.

Moreover, the Tax Receivable Agreement provides that, in the event that (i) we exercise our early termination rights under the
Tax Receivable Agreement, (ii) we become bankrupt or undergo a similar insolvency event, (iii) certain changes of control
occur (as described in the Tax Receivable Agreement) or (iv) we are more than three months late in making of a payment due
under the Tax Receivable Agreement (unless we in good faith determine that hawse have insufficient funds to make such
payment), our obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement will accelerate and we will be required to make an immediate
lump-sum cash payment to the indie Equity Holders equal to the present value of all forecasted future payments that would
have otherwise been made under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which lump-sum payment would be based on certain
assumptim ons, including those relating to our future taxabla e income. The lump-sum payment to the indie Equity Holders could be
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substantial and could exceed the actual tax benefits that we realize subsequeu nt to such payment because such payment would be
calculated assuming, among other things, that we would be able to use the assumed potential tax benefits in future years, and
that tax rates applicablea to us would be the same as they were in the year of the termination.

There may be a material negative effect on our liquidity if the payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement exceed the actual
income or franchise tax savings that we realize. Furthermore, our obligations to make payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement could also have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business
combinations or other changes of control. We may need to incur additional indebtedness to finance payments under the Tax
Receivable Agreement to the extent its cash resources are insufficient to meet our obligations under the Tax Receivable
Agreement as a result of timing discrepancies or otherwise. Such indebtedness may have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition.

Risks Related to Macroeconomic Conditions

Downturns or volatill liii tyii in general economic conditionstt could have a materialtt adverse effect on our business,ii financial
condition,tt resultsll of operations and liquidiii tyii .yy

Our net sales and profitability depend significantly on general economic conditions and the demand for the end products in the
markets in which our customers compete. A decline in end-user demand can affect the need that customers have for our
products, as well as the ability of customers to obtain credit or meet their payment obligations to us, and may increase the
likelihood of customers canceling or deferring existing orders. Current and continued inflationary conditions may lead to rising
prices or rising interest rates, which could have a dampening effect on overall economic activity and consumer demand for
automotive products and result in reduced demand for our products. Other adverse changes in economic conditions, including
any recession, economic slowdown or disruption of credit markets, may also lead to lower demand for our products. Volatile
and uncertain economic conditions can make it difficulff t to accurately forecast and plan future business activities. This could
result in an oversupply of products relative to customer demand.

In addition, any disruption in the credit markets, including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, could impede our access to
additional capia tal. If there is limited access to additional financing sources, we may be required to defer capita al expenditures or
seek other sources of liquidity, which may not be available on acceptablea terms or at all. Similarly, if our suppliers face
challenges in obtaining credit or other financial difficulff ties, they may be unable to provide the necessary materials or services to
us.

All of these factors related to global economic conditions, which are beyond our control, could adversely impact our business,
financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates could have an adverserr effect on our resultsll of operations.

We operate in various worldwide locations and our consolidated financial results are reported in U.S. dollars. However, some of
the revenue and expenses of our foreign subsidiaries are denominated in local currencies. Fluctuatt ions in foreign exchange rates
against the U.S. dollar could result in changes in reported revenues and operating results due to the foreign exchange impact of
translating these transactions into U.S. dollars. Currency fluctuations could decrease revenue and increase our operating costs.
Though we have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates, historically, the impact has generally not been material to
our consolidated results of operations or financial position.

Our worldwidell operations are subject to politiii cal,ll economic and healthtt risks and natural disaii sters,s includingdd the ongoing
effectstt of the COVID-19VV pandemic, which could have a materialtt adverse effect on our businessii operations.

Our offices in California, the production facilities of third-party wafer suppliers, integrated circuit testing and manufacturing
facilities, a portion of our assembly and research and development activities, and certain other critical business operations are
located in or near seismically active regions and are subject to periodic earthquakes. We do not maintain earthquake insurance
and could be materially and adversely affected in the event of a majora earthquake.

Much of our revenue, as well as our manufacturers and assemblers, are concentrated in Asia, particularly in China. Such
concentration increases the risk that natural disasters, labora strikes, terrorism, war, intensified political unrest, epidemics, and/or
health advisories could damage, destroy or disrupt our suppliers or contract manufacturing facilities, disrupt operations, delay
new production and shipments of existing products or result in costly repairs, replacements or other costs, all of which would
negatively impact our business. A large naturalt disaster may result in disruptir ons in distribution channels or supply chains and
significant increases in the prices of raw materials used for manufacturing processes. Furthermore, any disaster affecting our
customers (or their respective customers) may significantly negatively impact the demand for our products and therefore our
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revenue. There is increasing concern that climate change is occurring that may cause a rising number of naturalt disasters with
potentially dramatic effecff ts on human activity.

The global spread of COVID-19 and the efforts to control it have disrupted, and reduced the efficiency of, normal business
activities in much of the world. Efforts to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 have impacted, and will likely continue to impact
our workforce and operations, and those of our customers, suppliers and logistics providers. We have experienced, and expect
to continue to experience, disruption to parts of our global semiconductor supply chain and disruptions in commercial
transportation infrastructure that have resulted in increased customer order lead times.

In response to governmental directives and recommended safety measures, we modified our workplace practices globally,
which has resulted in many of our employees working remotely for extended periods of time. Working remotely for extended
periods may reduce our employees’ efficiency and productivity. If a significant number of our employees, or employees and
third parties performing key functions, become ill, our business may be further adversely impacted. The degree to which the
COVID-19 pandemic ultimately impacts our business and results of operations will depend on future developments beyond our
control, including the extent of actions to contain the virus (including any variants), availability and efficacy of the vaccines or
other treatments, public acceptance of the vaccines (including boosters), and how quickly and to what extent normal economic
and operating conditions resume.

In addition, we rely heavily on internal information and communications systems and on systems or support services from third
parties to manage our operations efficiently and effectively. Any of these are subject to failure due to a naturalt disaster or other
disruptions. System-wide or local failures that affect our information processing could have material adverse effects on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property, Technology and Cybersecurity

We relyll to a significant extent on proprietarytt inteltt lell ctual property.yy We may not be able to protect this intellecll tual property
against impropem r use by our competm ittt orstt or others.rr

Our success and future revenue growth depend, in part, on our ability to protect our proprietary technology, products, designs
and fabrication processes, and other intellectualt property, against misappropriaa tion by others. We primarily rely on patent,
copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as nondisclosure agreements and other methods, to protect our intellectualt
property. We may have difficulty obtaining patents and other intellectualt property rights to protect our proprietary products,
technology and intellectualt property, and the patents and other intellectualt property rights received may be insufficient to
provide us with meaningful protection or commercial advantage. We may not obtain patent protection or secure other
intellectualt property rights in all the countries in which we operate, and under the laws of such countries, patents and other
intellectualt property rights may be or become unavailable or limited in scope. Even if new patents are issued, the claims
allowed may not be sufficiently broad to effectively protect proprietary technology, processes and other intellectualt property. In
addition, any of our existing patents, and any futuret patents issued, may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented.

Further, proprietary technology, designs and processes and other intellectualt property may be vulnerable to disclosure or
misappropriation by employees, contractors and other persons. It is possible that competitors or other unauthorized third parties
may obtain, copy, use or disclose our proprietary technologies, products, designs, processes and other intellectualt property
despite efforts to protect intellectual property. While we have a number of patent filings in process, there can be no assurances
that these patents will be issued or that any rights will be granted and provide meaningful protection against misappropriation of
intellectualt property. Competitors may also be abla e to develop similar technology independently or design around our patents.
We may not have or pursue patents or pending applications in all the countries in which we operate corresponding to all
primary patents and applications. Even if patents are granted, effective enforcement in some countries may not be available. In
particular, intellectualt property rights are difficulff t to enforce in countries where the application and enforcement of the laws
governing such rights may not have reached the same level as compared to other jurisdictions where we operate. Consequently,
operating in some countries may subject us to an increased risk that unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise use
intellectual property or the intellectual property of suppliers or other parties with whom we engage. There is no assurance that
we will be able to protect our intellectualt property rights or have adequate legal recourse in the event that we seek legal or
judicial enforcement of our intellectualt property rights under the laws of such countries. Any inabila ity on our part to adequately
protect our intellectualt property may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We may become party to intellecll tual propertytt claimll s or litiii gatii on that could cause us to incur substantialtt costs, pay
substantialtt damages or prohibitii us from sellingll our products.
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The semiconductor industry is characterized by frequent litigation regarding patent and other intellectualt property rights. From
time to time, we may receive communications from third parties that allege that our products or technologies infringe their
patent or other intellectualt property rights. Lawsuits or other proceedings resulting from allegations of infringement could
subject us to significant liability for damages, invalidate our proprietary rights and adversely affect our business. In the event
that any third-party succeeds in asserting a valid claim against us or any of our customers, we could be forced to do one or more
of the following:

• discontinue selling, importing or using certain technologies that contain the allegedly infringing intellectualt property which
could cause us to stop manufacturing certain products;

• seek to develop non-infringing technologies, which may not be feasible;
• incur significant legal expenses;
• pay substantu ial monetary damages to the party whose intellectualt property rights we may be found to be infringing; and/or
• we or our customers could be required to seek licenses to the infringed technology that may not be available on

commercially reasonable terms, if at all.

If a third-party causes us to discontinue the use of any technologies, we could be required to design around those technologies.
This could be costly and time consuming and could have an adverse effect on our financial results. Any significant impairments
of intellectualt property rights from any litigation we face could materially and adversely impact our business, financial
condition, results of operations and our ability to compete.

Certain softwo are that we use in our products is licensed from thirdii parties and may not be availablii ell to us in the future,e
which may delayll product development and production or cause us to incur additional expense.ee

Some of our solutions contain software licensed from third parties, some of which may not be available to us in the future on
terms that are acceptablea to us or allow our products to remain competitive. The loss of these licenses or the inability to
maintain any of them on commercially acceptablea terms could delay development of future products or the enhancement of
existing products.

Interrupttt ionstt in information technologyll systems could adversely affect business.ii

We rely on the efficff ient and uninterrupted operation of complex information technology applications, systems and networks to
operate our business. The reliability and security of information technology infrastructuret and software, and our ability to
expand and continually update technologies in response to changing needs is critical to our business. Any significant
interruption in these applications, systems or networks, including but not limited to new system implementations, computer
viruses, cyberattacks, security breaches, facility issues or energy blackouts, could have a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business also depends on various outsourced IT services. We rely on third-party vendors to provide critical services and to
adequately address cyber security threats to their own systems. Any failure of third-party systems and services to operate
effectively could disrupt our operations and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Our computerm systemsyy and networks are subject to attemtt ptem d security breaches and other cybersecuritytt incidentdd s,tt which, if
successful,ll could be costlyll and could impacm t our business.ii

Cyber-attacks attempting to obtain access to our computer systems and networks could result in the misappropriation of
proprietary information and technology. Although we have taken steps to protect the security of our computer systems and
networks and the data maintained in those systems and networks, it is possible that our safetyt and security measures will not
prevent the improper access or disclosure of such proprietary information such as in the event of cyber-attacks. There can be no
assurance that any breach or incident will not have a material impact on our operations and financial results. In the current
environment, there are numerous and evolving risks to cybersecurity and privacy, including criminal hackers, state-sponsored
intrusions, industrial espionage, employee malfeasance, and human or technological error. In the event of such breaches, us, our
customers or other third parties could be exposed to potential liabia lity, litigation, and regulatory action, as well as the loss of
existing or potential customers, damage to reputation, and other financial loss.

In addition, the cost and operational consequences of responding to breaches and implementing remediation measures could be
significant. We could also be impacted by existing and proposed laws and regulations, as well as government policies and
practices related to cybersecurity, privacy and data protection.
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Cyber-attacks or other catastrophic events could result in interruptions or delays to us, our customers, or other third-party
operations or services, financial loss, potential liabila ity, and damage to our reputation and affect our relationships with
customers and suppliers.

Further, we may be subject to theft, loss, or misuse of personal and confidential data regarding our employees, customers and
suppliers that is routinely collected, used, stored, and transferredr to run our business. Such theft, loss, or misuse could result in
significantly increased business and security costs or costs related to defending legal claims.

Global privacy legislation, enforcement, and policy activity in this area are rapidly expanding and creating a complex regulatory
compliance environment. In addition, even inadvertent failure to comply with federal, state, or international privacy-related or
data protection laws and regulations could result in proceedings against us by governmental entities or others. Our costs to
comply with and implement these privacy-related and data protection measures could be significant.

Risks Related to Regulatory Compliance and Legal Matters

Our failure to complym with the large body of laws and regulationstt to which we are subject could have a materialtt adverse
effect on our businessii and operations.

We are subject to regulation by various governmental agencies in the United States and other jurisdictions in which we operate.
These include traditional automotive quality standards and regulations as well as international trade regulations. Our failure to
comply with any applicable regulations or requirements could subject us to investigations, sanctions, enforcement actions,
fines, damages, penalties, or injunctions. If any governmental sanctions are imposed, or if we do not prevail in any possible
civil or criminal litigation, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.
In addition, responding to any action will likely result in a significant diversion of management’s attention and financial
resources.

Our businessii may be adversely affected by costs relating to product defects,tt and we could be faced withtt product liabilii itll ytt
claimll s.

There is a risk that defects may occur in our products. We make highly complex integrated circuits and our customers typically
integrate the semiconductors we sell into numerous automotive products, which are then sold into the marketplat ce. A defect in
any of our products could give rise to significant costs, including expenses relating to recalling the products, replacing defective
items and writing down defective inventory as well as lead to the loss of potential sales.

In addition, the occurrence of such defects may give rise to product liabia lity claims, including liability for damages caused by
such defects if our semiconductors or the consumer products based on them malfunction and result in personal injury or death.
Such claims could result in significant costs and expenses relating to damages and attorneys’ fees. Moreover, since the cost of
replacing defective semiconductor devices is often much higher than the value of the devices themselves, we may at times face
damage claims from customers that are in excess of the amounts paid to us for products, including consequential damages. We
may be even named in product liability claims where there is no evidence that our products caused the damage in question.

Additionally, customers may recall their end products if they prove to be defective or they may make compensatory payments
in accordance with industry or business practice or in order to maintain good customer relationships. If such a recall or payment
is caused by a defect in one of our products, customers may seek to recover all or a portion of their losses from us. If any of
these risks materialize, our reputation would be harmed and there could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may face significi ant warrantytt claill ms.ii

Our semiconductor devices are sold with warranties. The warranty for our products requires us to repair or replace products that
are deficient. As a result, we bear the risk of warranty claims on all products we supply,u including those manufactured by third
parties. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in claiming under any warranty or indemnity provided to us by our
suppliers or vendors in the event of a successful warranty claim against us by a customer, or that any recovery from such
vendor or supplier would be adequate. Although we haven’t historically experienced deficient warranty reserves, there is a risk
that warranty claims made against us will exceed our warranty reserve and could have a material adverse effectff on our financial
condition, results of operations, business and/or prospects.

Significi ant litiii gatii on couldll impairm our reputatiee on and cause us to incur substantialtt costs.tt
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We may be party to various lawsuits and claims arising in the ordinary course of business, including claims relating to
intellectualt property, customer contracts, employment matters, third-party manufacturers or subcontractors, or other aspects of
our business. Litigation, regardless of outcome, could result in substantial costs, reputational harm and a diversion of
management’s attention and resources. The outcome of litigation is often difficult to predict, and any litigation may have a
material adverse effecff t on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Our businesii s and operations couldll be negativtt elyll affected if it becomes subject to any securities litigii ation or stockholder
activtt ism, which couldll cause us to incur significant expense, hinder execution of busineii ss and growth strategye and impactm
our stocktt price.

In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s securities, securities class action litigation has
often been brought against that company. Stockholder activism, which could take many forms or arise in a variety of situations,
has been increasing recently. Volatility in the stock price of our Class A common stock, allegations arising in connection with
the Transaction or other reasons may in the future cause it to become the target of securities litigation or stockholder activism.
Securities litigation and stockholder activism, including potential proxy contests, could result in substantial costs and divert
managements and our board of directors’ attention and resources from our business. Additionally, such securities litigation and
stockholder activism could give rise to perceived uncertainties as to our future, adversely affect our relationships with service
providers and make it more difficult to attract and retain qualified personnel. Also, we may be required to incur significant legal
fees and other expenses related to any securities litigation and activist stockholder matters. Further, our stock price could be
subject to significant fluctuation or otherwise be adversely affected by the events, risks and uncertainties of any securities
litigation and stockholder activism.

We are subject to export restrictionstt and lawsw affectingii trade and investments that could matertt iallyll and adversely affect our
businessii and resultsll of operations.

We have material operations and relationships in China, including an interest in a Chinese subsidiary. Since the beginning of
2018, there have been several instances of U.S. tariffs on Chinese goods, some of which prompted retaliatory Chinese tariffsff on
U.S. goods. In May 2019, the U.S. president issued an executive order that invoked national emergency economic powers to
implement a framework to regulate the acquisition or transfer of information communications technology in transactions that
imposed undue national security risks. These actions could lead to additional restrictions on the export of products that include
or enablea certain technologies, including products we provide to China-based customers.

The institutit on of trade tariffs both globally and between the U.S. and China specifically carries the risk of negatively affecting
China’s overall economic condition, which could have a negative impact on us as we have significant operations in China.

Furthermore, the imposition of tariffs could cause a decrease in the sales of products to customers located in China or other
customers selling to Chinese end users, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

We are subject to U.S. laws and regulations that could limit and restrict the export of some products and services and may
restrict transactions with certain customers, business partners and other persons, including, in certain cases, dealings with or
between our employees and subsidiaries. In certain circumstances, export control and economic sanctions regulations may
prohibit the export of certain products, services and technologies and in other circumstances we may be required to obtain an
export license before exporting the controlled item. Compliance with these laws and regulations could materially limit
operations or sales, which would materially and adversely affecff t our business and results of operations.

In addition, U.S. laws and regulations and sanctions, or threat of sanctions, that could limit and restrict the export of some of
our products and services to customers, may also encourage customers to develop their own solutions to replace our products,
or seek to obtain a greater supply of similar or substitutet products from competitors that are not subject to these restrictions,
which could materially and adversely affecff t our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in domestic or internationaltt changes in tax rates,s the adoption of new tax laws or other exposure to additionaltt tax
liabili itll iett s couldll adversely affect our resultsll of operations and financial condition.tt

We are subject to income and other taxes in both the United States and various foreign jurisdictions. Changes to sustained yield
or regulations in the jurisdictions in which we operate, or in the interpretation of such laws or regulations, could significantly
increase our effective tax rate and reduce cash flow from operating activities, and otherwise have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition. In addition, other factors or events, including business combinations and investment transactions,
changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, adjustments to taxes upon finalization of various tax returnst or as
a result of deficiencies asserted by taxing authorities, increases in expenses not deductible for tax purposes, changes in available
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tax credits, changes in transfer pricing methodologies, other changes in the apportionment of income and other activities among
tax jurisdictions, and changes in tax rates, could also increase our effecff tive tax rate.

Our tax filings are subject to review or audit by the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) and state, local and foreign
taxing authorities. We exercise significant judgment in determining our worldwide provision for taxes and, in the ordinary
course of business, there may be transactions and calculations where the proper tax treatment is uncertain. Our determinations
are not binding on the IRS or any other taxing authorities, and accordingly the final determination in an audit or other
proceeding may be materially different than the treatment reflected in our tax provisions, accruals and returns. An assessment of
additional taxes because of an audit could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

Failureii to complym with anti-corruptiontt laws or violationstt of our internal policies designed to ensure ethicatt l businessii
practices could cause damage to our reputatitt on, adversely affect our businessii and could resultll in substantitt ali fines,s
sanctions, crimiii nalii or civilii penaltiett s.

We operate in a number of countries throughout the world, including in countries that do not have as strong a commitment to
anti-corruption and ethical behavior as is required by U.S. laws or by corporate policies. We are subject to the risk that us, our
U.S. employees or our employees located in other jurisdictions or any third parties that we engage to do work on our behalf in
foreign countries may take action determined to be in violation of anti-corruption laws in any jurisdiction in which we conduct
business, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 (the “FCPA”). In addition, we operate in certain countries in
which the government may take an ownership stake in an enterprise and such government ownership may not be readily
apparent (thereby increasing potential FCPA violations). Any violation of the FCPA or any similar anti-corruption law or
regulation could result in substantial fines, sanctions, civil and/or criminal penalties and curtailment of operations in certain
jurisdictions and might adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition. In addition, we have internal
ethics policies that we require our employees to comply with in order to ensure that our business is conducted in a manner that
our management deems appropriate. If these anti-corruption laws or internal policies were to be violated, our reputation and
operations could also be substantu ially harmed.

In order to complym with environmental and occupational healthtt and safety laws and regulatill ons, we may need to modifyi our
activtt itiett s or incur substantialtt costs, and such laws and regulatill ons, including any failure to complym with such laws and
regulatill ons, could subject us to substantialtt costs, liabilii itll iett s, obligatii ons and fines,s or requireii us to have suppliell rs altertt their
processes.

The semiconductor industry is subject to a variety of international, federal, state, local and non-U.S. laws and regulations
governing pollution, environmental protection and occupational health and safety.t Compliance with current or future
environmental and occupational health and safetyt laws and regulations could restrict our ability to expand our business or
require us to modify processes or incur other substantial expenses which could harm business. Environmental and occupational
health and safetyt laws and regulations have tended to become more stringent over time, causing a need to redesign
technologies, imposing greater compliance costs and increasing risks and penalties associated with violations, which could
seriously harm business.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

A majoria ty of our consolidated revenue is generated from product sales with a final shipping destination in China, and a portion
of our operations are conducted in China by a 50%-owned Chinese subsidiary that we control and therefore, we face additional
risks and uncertainties related to doing business in China in general, including but not limited to the following:

Uncertaintieii s with resps ect to the PRC legale system could adversely affect our China subsidiary.ii

The PRC legal system is a civil law system based on written statutet s. Unlike the common law system, prior court decisions
under the civil law system may be cited for reference but have limited precedential value.

In 1979, the PRC government began to promulgate a comprehensive system of laws and regulations governing economic
matters in general. The overall effect of legislation over the past four decades has significantly enhanced the protection afforded
to various forms of foreign investments in China. However, China has not developed a fully integrated legal system, and
recently enacted laws and regulations may not sufficiently cover all aspects of economic activities in China. In particular, the
interpretation and enforcement of these laws and regulations involve uncertainties. Since PRC administrative and court
authorities have significant discretion in interpreting and implementing statutory provisions and contractual terms, it may be
difficult to evaluate the outcome of administrative and court proceedings and the level of legal protection we enjoy. These
uncertainties may affect our judgment on the relevance of legal requirements and our ability to enforce our contractual rights or
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tort claims. In addition, the regulatory uncertainties may be exploited through unmerited or frivolous legal actions or threats in
attempts to extract payments or benefits from us.

In addition, any administrative and court proceedings in China may be protracted, resulting in substantial costs and diversion of
resources and management attention.

Uncertaintiii es in the interpretationtt and enforcff ement of Chinese laws and regulate ionstt could limiii tii the legale protections
availablii ell to us.

The PRC legal system is based on written statutes and prior court decisions have limited value as precedents. Since these laws
and regulations are relatively new and the PRC legal system continues to rapidly evolve, the interpretations of many laws,
regulations and rules are not always uniform and enforcement of these laws, regulations and rules involves uncertainties.

From time to time, we may have to resort to administrative and court proceedings to enforce our legal rights, including the legal
rights of our China subsidiary. However, since PRC administrative and court authorities have significant discretion in
interpreting and implementing statutoryt and contractual terms, it may be more difficulff t to evaluate the outcome of
administrative and court proceedings and the level of legal protection we enjoy than in more developed legal systems.
Furthermore, the PRC legal system is based in part on government policies and internal rules. As a result, we may not be able to
keep ourselves updated with these policies and rules in time. Such uncertainties, including uncertainty over the scope and effect
of our contractual, property (including intellectualt property) and procedural rights, could materially and adversely affect our
business and impedem our ability to continue our operations, including the operations of our China subsidiary.

Changes in China’sii economic,c politiii cal and social conditions, as wellll as changes in any government policies, laws and
regulatill ons may be quick withtt littii lett advance notice and could have a materialtt adverse effect on our Chinaii subsidiary’s
businessii our resulee tsll of operations.

A portion of operations is conducted through our China subsidiary and a majoria ty of our consolidated revenues were generated
from product sales with a final shipping destination in China. Accordingly, our business, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects and certain transactions we may undertake may be subjeu ct, to a significant extent, to economic, political
and legal developments in China.

China’s economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects, including the amount of
government involvement, level of development, growth rate, control of foreign exchange and allocation of resources. While the
PRC economy has experienced significant growth in the past two to three decades, growth has been uneven, both
geographica ally and among various sectors of the economy. Demand for our products and the products of our China subsidiary
depends, in part, on economic conditions in China. Any slowdown in China’s economic growth may cause our potential
customers to delay or cancel their plans to purchase our products and the products of our China subsidiary, which in turn could
reduce our revenues.

Although China’s economy has been transitioning from a planned economy to a more market-oriented economy since the late
1970s, the PRC government continues to play a significant role in regulating industry development by imposing industrial
policies. The PRC government also exercises significant control over China’s economic growth through allocating resources,
controlling the incurrence and payment of foreign currency-denominated obligations, setting monetary policy and providing
preferential treatment to particular industries or companies. Changes in any of these policies, laws and regulations may be quick
with little advance notice and could adversely affect the economy in China and could have a material adverse effect on our
business, the business of our China subsidiary and the value of our common stock.

The PRC government has implemented various measures to encourage foreign investment and sustainable economic growth
and to guide the allocation of financial and other resources. However, we cannot assure you that the PRC government will not
repeal or alter these measures or introduce new measures that will have a negative effeff ct on us, or more specifically, we cannot
assure you that the PRC government will not initiate possible governmental actions or scrutiny to us, which could substantially
affect the operation of our China subsidiary, the operations of our customers, and the value of our common stock.

Our Chinaii subsidiarydd maya be limiii teii d in itstt abilityii to make payments, dividendsi or othertt distriii butionii s to us.

Although our China subsidiary has not historically paid dividends or made distributions on equity to ADK LLC, it may be
limited in its ability to make such distributions in the future. If our China subsidiary incurs debt on its own behalf in the future,
the instruments governing the debt may restrict their ability to pay dividends or make other distributions to us. In addition, the
PRC tax and other authorities may require our China subsidiary to adjust its taxable income in a manner that would materially
and adversely affect its ability to pay dividends and other distributions to us.
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Governmerr ntal control of currency conversion may limitii our abilitll ytt to utiliii zeii our net revenues effectivtt elyll and affect the value
of our securitiett s.

The PRC government imposes controls on the convertibility of the RMB into foreign currencies and, in certain cases, the
remittance of currency out of China. Our China subsidiary receives substantially all of its revenues in RMB. Under existing
PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of current account items, such as profit distributions and trade and service-related
foreign exchange transactions, can be made in foreign currencies without prior approval from SAFE by complying with certain
procedural requirements. Therefore, we believe our China subsidiary would be able to pay dividends in foreign currencies to
ADK LLC without prior approval from SAFE, subject to the condition that the remittance of such dividends outside of the PRC
complies with certain procedures under PRC foreign exchange regulation, such as the overseas investment registrations by the
beneficial owners of our company who are PRC residents. But approval from or registration with appropriate government
authorities is required where RMB is to be converted into foreign currency and remitted out of China to pay capita al expenses
such as the repayment of loans denominated in foreign currencies.

In light of the flood of capita al outflows of China in 2016 due to the weakening RMB, the PRC government has imposed more
restrictive foreign exchange policies and stepped-up scrutiny of majora outbound capita al movement. More restrictions and
substantial vetting process are put in place by SAFE to regulate cross-border transactions falling under the capia tal account. The
PRC government may also at its discretion restrict access in the future to foreign currencies for current account transactions. If
the foreign exchange control system prevents our China subsidiary from obtaining sufficient foreign currencies to satisfy its
foreign currency demands, our China subsidiau ry may not be able to pay dividends in foreign currencies to ADK LLC.

Any failure to complym with PRC regulations regarding the registration requiremeii nts for employm ee stoctt k incentive planll s may
subject the PRC plan participants or us to fines and other legal or administrative sanctions.

In February 2012, SAFE promulgated the Notices on Issues Concerning the Foreign Exchange Administration for Domestic
Individuals Participating in Stock Incentive Plans of Overseas Publicly-Listed Companies, replacing earlier rules promulgated
in March 2007. Pursuant to these rules, PRC citizens and non-PRC citizens who reside in China for a continuous period of not
less than one year who participate in any stock incentive plan of an overseas publicly listed company, subject to a few
exceptions, are required to register with SAFE through a domestic qualified agent, and complete certain other procedures. In
addition, an overseas entrusted institution must be retained to handle matters in connection with the exercise or sale of stock
options and the purchase or sale of shares and interests. Failure to complete the SAFE registrations may subject them to fines
and legal sanctions and may also limit our ability to contribute additional capia tal into our PRC subsidiary and limit our China
subsidiary’s ability to distribute dividends to ADK LLC. Our China subsidiary also faces regulatory uncertainties that could
restrict its ability to adopt additional incentive plans for its directors, executive officers and employees under PRC law.

In lighti of recent eventstt indicadd ting greater oversighti by the Cyberspaces Administii rationtt of Chinaii over data security,yy
particularlyll for companiesm seekingii to list on a foreign exchange,e though such oversighti is not applicablell to us, we may be
subject to a variety of PRC lawsw and other obligatii ons regardingii data protection and any other rules,s and any failure to
complym with applicablell laws and obligatii ons could have a materialtt and adverse effect on our business,ii our listinii gn on the
Nasdaq Capital Market, financii ial condition,tt and resultsll of operations.

Even though, currently, we and our China subsidiary are not subject to PRC laws relating to the collection, use, sharing,
retention, security, and transfer of confidential and private information, such as personal information and other data, these laws
continue to develop, and the PRC government may adopt other rules and restrictions in the future. Non-compliance could result
in penalties or other significant legal liabilities.

The Cybersecurity Law, the Cybersecurity Review Measures and the PRC’s Data Security Law impose regulations, review and
conditions on the storage, security, purchase, collection and use of personal information and important data collected and
generated by a critical information infrastructuret operator (“CIIO”) in the course of its operations in China, including on the
purchase of data affecting national security. The exact scope of what constitute a “CIIO” remains unclear. Further, the PRC
government authorities may have wide discretion in the interpretation and enforcement of these laws. While our business and
the business of our China subsidiary do not currently include the type of activities subject to this regulation, there remains
uncertainty about the final content of these and other regulations, interpretation and implementation, and various other
implications. It also remains uncertain whether any future regulatory changes would impose additional restrictions on
companies like us and our China subsidiary.

As of the date of this report, we have not received any notice from any authorities identifying us or our China subsidiary as a
CIIO or requiring us to undertake a cybersecurity review by the CAC. Further, we have not been subject to any penalties, fines,
suspensions, investigations from any competent authorities for violation of the regulations or policies that have been issued by
the CAC to date. We believe that neither we nor our China subsidiary are subject to the cybersecurity review by the CAC, given
that we are a manufacturert and not engaged in any operation of information infrastructure. However, there remains uncertainty
as to how the regulations will be interpreter d or implemented and whether the PRC regulatory agencies, including the CAC, may
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adopt new laws, regulations, rules, or detailed implementation and interpretation. If any such new laws, regulations, rules, or
implementation and interpretation come into effect, we expect to take all reasonablea measures and actions to comply, but any
such future laws, regulations or review could be time consuming and costly to comply with, and could have a material impact
on our and our China subsidiary’s operations and financial results.

Risks Related to Financial Reporting, Internal Controls and Being a Public Company

Inadequate internalrr controls could resultll in inaccuratett financii ial reporting.tt

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results. As a
result, our stakeholders could lose confidence in our financial reporting, which could adversely affect the results of our business
and our enterprise value.

We will need to undertake significant efforts to strengthen our processes and systems and adapta them to changes as our business
evolves (including with respect to being a publicly traded company). This continuous process of maintaining and adaptia ng our
internal controls is expensive and time-consuming, and requires significant management attention. We cannot be certain that
our internal control measures will provide adequate control over our financial processes and reporting. Furthermore, as our
business evolves, and if we expand through acquisitions of other companies, make significant investments in other companies
or enter into joint development and similar arrangements, our internal controls may become more complex, and we will require
significantly more resources to ensure our internal controls remain effective. Failure to implement required new or improved
controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our operating results or cause us to fail to meet our
reporting obligations. If we or our independent registered public accounting firm identify material weaknesses, the disclosure of
that fact, even if quickly remediated, could reduce the market’s confidence in our financial statements and harm our enterprise
value.

We may not be able to timely and effectivtt elyll implem ment and maintainii controlsll and procedures requiredii by Sectiontt 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxleyll Act that are applicll able to us.

As a public company, we are required to comply with the SEC’s rules implementing Sections 302 and 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, which require management to establia sh and periodically evaluate procedures with respect to our internal controls
over financial reporting. In addition, as a public company, we will be required to document and test our internal controls over
financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act so that our management can certify as to the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting. Section 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“Section 404(a)”)
requires that beginning with our second annual report following our IPO, management assess and report annually on the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting and identify any material weaknesses in our internal controls over
financial reporting. Although Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“Section 404(b)”) requires our independent registered
public accounting firm to issue an annual report that addresses the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting,
we have opted to rely on the exemptim ons provided in the JOBS Act, and consequently will not be required to comply with SEC
rules that implement Section 404(b) until such time as we are no longer an “emerging growth company.” In order to comply
with these rules, we expect to incur additional expenses and devote increased management effort.ff

In connection with our assessment of internal control over financial reporting, we identified certain material weaknesses in our
internal control over financial reporting for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 (see Item 9A. Controls and
Procedures for additional detail). hWhilile hthese materi lial weakknesses diddid not res lult iin mate iriall imisstatements of hthe Compa yny’s
fifina inci lal statements as of dand for hthe yyear d dended Dece bmber 31, 2021, hthese mate iriall we kaknesses create a reasonablblea ipossibilbiliityy
hthat a mate iriall imisstatement of account b lbalances or didiscllosures iin our cons lioliddat ded fifina inci lal statements ymay not bbe preventedd or
ddetectedd iin a itimelyly manner. Ac dicordingly,ngly, hthe Compa yny concl dludedd hthat hthe ddefificiienciies represent materi lial weakknesses iin iits
iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng dand certaiin aspects of iits iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng were not effectiive as
of Dece bmber 31, 2021.

We willii incur signifii cant increased expenses and adminisii trativtt e burdens as a public company,m which could have a matertt ial
adverse effect on our business,ii financii ial conditiontt and resultsll of operations.

We face increased legal, accounting, administrative and other costs and expenses as a public company that we have not incurred
as a private company. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act, including the requirements of Section 404, as well as rules and regulations
subsequently implemented by the SEC, the Dodd-Frank Act and the rules and regulations promulgated and to be promulgated
thereunder, the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and the securities exchanges, impose additional reporting and
other obligations on public companies. Compliance with public company requirements increases costs and makes certain
activities more time-consuming. A number of those requirements require us to carry out activities we did not do previously. For
example, we created new board committees and adopted new internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures. In
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addition, additional expenses associated with SEC reporting requirements will be incurred. Furthermore, if any issues in
complying with those requirements are identified (for example, if the auditors identify a material weakness or significant
deficiency in our internal control over financial reporting), we could incur additional costs rectifyingff those issues, and the
existence of those issues could adversely affect our reputation or investor perceptions of it. In connection with our assessment
of internal control over financial reporting, we identified certain material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 (see Item 9A. Controlstt and Procedures for additional detail). It may
also be more expensive to obtain director and officer liability insurance. Risks associated with our status as a public company
may make it more difficult to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on the board of directors or as executive officers. The
additional reporting and other obligations imposed by these rules and regulations will increase legal and financial compliance
costs and the costs of related legal, accounting and administrative activities. These increased costs will require us to divert a
significant amount of money that could otherwise be used to expand the business and achieve strategic objectives. Advocacy
efforts by stockholders and third parties may also prompt additional changes in governance and reporting requirements, which
could further increase costs.

We qualify as an “emergingn growth company”n withintt the meaning of the Securities Act, and if we take advantage of certain
exemptionstt from disclosure requirements availablii ell to emergingn growth companies, we could make our securities less
attractitt ve to investors and may make it more difficuff lt to compare our performance to the performance of other public
companiesm .

We qualify as an “emerging growth company” as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Securities Act, as modified by the JOBS
Act. As such, we are eligible for and intend to take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements
applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies for as long as we continue to be an emerging
growth company, including (a) the exemptim on from the auditor attestation requirements with respect to internal control over
financial reporting under Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, (b) the exemptim ons from say-on-pay, say-on-frequency and
say-on-golden parachute voting requirements and (c) reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our
periodic reports and proxy statements. We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day of the
fiscal year in which the market value of common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700.0 million as of June 30 of that
fiscal year, (ii) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenue of $1.07 billion or more during such
fiscal year (as indexed for inflation), (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt in the
prior three-year period or (iv) December 31, 2024. In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging
growth company can take advantage of the exemptim on from complying with new or revised accounting standards provided in
Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act as long as it is an emerging growth company. An emerging growth company can
therefore delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies.
We have elected not to opt out of such extended transition period and, therefore, we may not be subject to the same new or
revised accounting standards as other public companies that are not emerging growth companies. Investors may find our
securities less attractive because we will rely on these exemptim ons, which may result in a less active trading market for our
securities.

Our managemea nt has limiii teii d experiexx nce in operatingtt a publicll company.m

Certain of our executive officers and certain directors have limited experience in the management of a publicly traded company.
Our management team may not successfully or effecff tively manage its transition to a public company that is subject to
significant regulatory oversight and reporting obligations under federal securities laws. Their limited experience in dealing with
the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies could be a significant disadvantage in that it is likely that an
increasing amount of their time may be devoted to these activities which will result in less time being devoted to the
management and growth of the company. We also expect to expand our employee base and hire additional employees to
support our operations as a public company, which will increase our operating costs in future periods.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common Stock and Warrants, and Organizational Documents

There can be no assurance we willll be able to complym with the continuett d listinii gn standards of Nasdaq for our Class A
common stock.tt

Our Class A common stock and public warrants are currently listed on the Nasdaq Stock Market. In order to maintain such
listing, we must satisfy minimum financial and other continued listing requirements and standards, including those regarding
director independence and independent committee requirements, minimum stockholders’ equity, minimum share price, and
certain corporate governance requirements. There can be no assurances that we will be able to comply with the applicablea
listing standards. Although we are currently in compliance with such listing standards, we may in the future fall out of
compliance with such standards. If we are unable to maintain compliance with these Nasdaq requirements, our Class A

31



common stock will be delisted from Nasdaq. If Nasdaq delists our Class A common stock from trading on its exchange for
failure to meet the listing standards, we and our security holders could face significant material adverse consequences
including:

• a limited availability of market quotations for our securities;
• reduced d liquidity for our securities;
• a determination that shares of the Class A common stock are a “penny stock” which will require brokers trading in the

Class A common stock to adhere to more stringent rules and possibly result in a reduced level of trading activity in the
secondary trading market for our securities;

• a limited amount of news and analyst coverage; and
• a decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future.t

We may redeem unexpireee d warrantstt prior to their exercise at a timeii that is disadvantageous to the holder, thereby makingii
such warrants worthlestt s.

We have the ability to redeem outstanding warrants at any time after they become exercisable and prior to their expiration, at a
price of $0.01 per warrant; provided that the last reported sales price of our Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00
per share (as adjusted for share splits, share dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days
within a 30 trading-day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date we send the notice of such redemption to the
warrant holders. If and when the warrants become redeemablea by us, we may exercise our redemption right even if we are
unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws. Redemption of the
outstanding warrants could force could force the warrant holder (i) to exercise such warrants and pay the exercise price therefor
at a time when it may be disadvantageous for the warrant holder to do so, (ii) to sell such warrants at the then-current market
price when the warrant holder might otherwise wish to hold its warrants or (iii) to accept the nominal redemption price which,
at the time the outstanding warrants are called for redemption, is likely to be substantially less than the market value of the
warrant holder’s warrants.

Our warrantstt may have an adverserr effect on the market price of our Class A common stock.tt

We have outstanding warrants to purchase up to 27,400,000 shares of our Class A common stock. To the extent such warrants
are exercised, additional shares of our Class A common stock will be issued, which will result in dilution to our stockholders
and increase the number of shares of Class A common stock eligible for resale in the public market. Sales of substantial
numbers of such shares in the public market or the fact that such warrants may be exercised could adversely affect the market
price of our Class A common stock.

An investmentt t in our Class A common stock may be diluted by the future issuance of additionaltt Class A common stock or
LLC Unitsii in connectiontt withii our incentive plans, acquisitiii ons or otherwise.

As of December 31, 2021, we have 250,000,000 shares of Class A common stock authorized, including 30,448,081 shares of
Class A common stock issuablea upon exchange of LLC Units that are held by certain indie Equity Holders, 27,400,000 shares
of Class A common stock issuablea upon exercise of the warrants, 10,000,000 shares of Class A common stock issuablea upon
achievement of earn-out and 6,311,665 shares of Class A common stock reserved for issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan
as described below. Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes us to issue these shares of Class A common stock and options,
rights, warrants and appreciation rights relating to Class A common stock for the consideration and on the terms and conditions
establia shed by our board of directors in its sole discretion, whether in connection with acquisitions or otherwise. Similarly, the
Amended Operating Agreement permits ADK LLC to issue an unlimited number of additional limited liability company
interests of ADK LLC with designations, preferences, rights, powers and duties that are different from, and may be senior to,
those applicable to the LLC Units, and which may be exchangeable for shares of Class A common stock. Any Class A common
stock that we issue, including under the Equity Incentive Plan or other equity incentive plans that we may adopt in the future,
would dilute the percentage ownership held by the investors who own shares of Class A common stock.

As of December 31, 2021, 111,260,962 shares of Class A common stock have been issued.

There may be sales of a substantialtt amount of Class A common stock by our stockholders and these sales could cause the
price of our securitiii es to fall.ll

Pursuant to registration rights we have granted to certain stockholders, certain stockholders are entitled to demand that we
register the resale of their securities subject to certain minimum requirements. These parties may sell large amounts of our Class
A common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, which could have the effect of increasing the
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volatility in the share price of Class A common stock or putting significant downward pressure on the price of our Class A
common stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of our Class A common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales will occur,
could adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock and make it difficulff t for us to raise funds through
securities offerings in the future.t

Delaware law and our Certifici ate of Incorporationtt and Bylawsw containii certain provisions,s includingn anti-takeovtt er
provisions, that limitii the abilitll ytt of stockholders to take certaintt actionstt and could delayll or discourage takeover attemptt ts that
stockholders maya consider favorable.ee

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “DGCL”), contain
provisions that could have the effect of rendering more difficulff t, delaying, or preventing an acquisition that stockholders may
consider favorablea , including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares. These
provisions could also limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock, and
therefore depress the trading price of our Class A common stock. These provisions could also make it difficulff t for stockholders
to take certain actions, including electing directors who are not nominated by the current members of our board of directors or
taking other corporate actions, including effecting changes in management. Among other things, the Certificate of Incorporation
and Bylaws include provisions regarding:

• a classifiedff board of directors with three-year staggered terms, which could delay the ability of stockholders to change the
membership of a majoa rity of our board of directors;

• the ability of our board of directors to issue shares of preferred stock, including “blank check” preferred stock and to
determine the price and other terms of those shares, including preferences and voting rights, without stockholder approval,
which could be used to significantly dilute the ownership of a hostile acquirer;

• the limitation of the liability of, and the indemnification of, our directors and officers;
• the right of our board of directors to elect a director to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of our board of directors or

the resignation, death or removal of a director, which prevents stockholders from being able to fill vacancies on our board
of directors;

• the requirement that directors may only be removed from our board of directors for cause;
• the requirement that a special meeting of stockholders may be called only by our board of directors, the chairman of our

board of directors or our chief executive officer, which could delay the ability of stockholders to force consideration of a
proposal or to take action, including the removal of directors;

• controlling the procedures for the conduct and scheduling of meetings of our board of directors and stockholders;
• the requirement for the affirmff ative vote of holders of 66⅔% of the voting power of our outstanding voting capita al stock,

voting together as a single class to amend, alter, change or repeal certain provisions in the Certificate of Incorporation and
the Bylaws, respectively, which could preclude stockholders from bringing matters before annual or special meetings of
stockholders and delay changes in our board of directors and also may inhibit the ability of an acquirer to effect such
amendments to facilitate an unsolicited takeover attempt;

• the ability of our board of directors to amend the Bylaws, which may allow our board of directors to take additional actions
to prevent an unsolicited takeover and inhibit the ability of an acquirer to amend the Bylaws to facilitate an unsolicited
takeover attempt; and

• advance notice procedures with which stockholders must comply to nominate candidates to our board of directors or to
propose matters to be acted upon at a stockholders’ meeting, which could preclude stockholders from bringing matters
before annual or special meetings of stockholders and delay changes in our board of directors and also may discourage or
deter a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of directors or otherwise
attempting to obtain control of us.

These provisions, alone or together, could delay or prevent hostile takeovers and changes in control or changes in our board of
directors or management.

In addition, as a Delaware corporation, we are generally subject to provisions of Delaware law, including the DGCL. Although
we have elected not to be governed by Section 203 of the DGCL, certain provisions of the Certificateff of Incorporation, in a
manner substantially similar to Section 203 of the DGCL, prohibit certain stockholders (other than those stockholders who are
party to a stockholders’ agreement with us) who hold 15% or more of our outstanding capita al stock from engaging in certain
business combination transactions with us for a specified period of time unless certain conditions are met.
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Any provision of the Certificateff of Incorporation, Bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect of delaying or preventing a
change in control could limit the opportunity for stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our capita al stock and
could also affecff t the price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock.

Our Certifici ate of Incorporationtt designatestt the Court of Chanceryr of the Stattt ett of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum
for certainii typesyy of actionstt and proceedings that may be initiated by our stockholders, which could limiii tii our stockholders’
abilitll ytt to obtainii a favorable judicialii forum for disputes withii us or our direii ctors,tt officers or other employm ees.

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of
Chancery of the State of Delaware shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for any (1)
derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of us, (2) action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any
director, officer, employee or stockholder of ours to us or our stockholders, (3) action arising pursuant to any provision of the
DGCL or our Certificate of Incorporation or our Bylaws or as to which the DGCL confers jurisdiction on the Court of
Chancery, or (4) action asserting a claim against us governed by the internal affairs doctrine (the “Delaware Exclusive Forum
Provision”). Our Certificate of Incorporation also provides that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative
forum, the federal district courts of the United States of America will be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint
asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the inclusion of such provision in
our Certificate of Incorporation will not be deemed to be a waiver by our stockholders of our obligation to comply with federal
securities laws, rules and regulations, and the provisions of this paragraph will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability
or duty created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal district courts of the United States of America
shall be the sole and exclusive forum. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in any shares of our
capita al stock shall be deemed to have notice of and to have consented to the forum provisions in our Certificate of
Incorporation. If any action the subject matter of which is within the scope of the Delaware Exclusive Forum Provision is filed
in a court other than a court located within the State of Delaware (a “foreign action”) in the name of any stockholder, such
stockholder shall be deemed to have consented to: (x) the personal jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located within the
State of Delaware in connection with any action brought in any such court to enforce the forum provisions (an “enforcemff ent
action”), and (y) having service of process made upon such stockholder in any such enforcement action by service upon such
stockholder’s counsel in the foreign action as agent for such stockholder.

This choice-of-forum provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorablea for
disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage such lawsuits. Alternatively, if a court
were to find this provision of our Certificate of Incorporation inapplia cablea or unenforceablea with respect to one or more of the
specified types of actions or proceedings, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other
jurisdictions, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and result
in a diversion of the time and resources of our management and board of directors.

General Risk Factors

Loss of key management or other highi ly skilledll personnel, or an inabilitll ytt to attracttt such management and other personnel,
could adversely affect our business.ii

We depend on key management to run our business and on development engineers to develop new products and technologies.
The loss of any key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, the market for qualified
employees, including skilled engineers and other individuals with the required technical expertise to succeed in our business, is
highly competitive and an inabila ity to attract, retain and motivate the employees required for the operation of our business could
hinder our ability to successfully conduct research activities or develop marketablea products.

Our employees are not bound by obligations that require them to continue to work for any specified period and, therefore, they
could terminate their employment at any time. Moreover, our employees are generally not subject to non-competition
agreements.

In addition, we must attract and retain highly qualified personnel, including certain foreign nationals who are not U.S. citizens
or permanent residents, many of whom are highly skilled and constitute an important part of our U.S. workforce, particularly in
the areas of engineering and product development. Our ability to hire and retain these employees and their ability to remain and
work in the U.S. are impacted by laws and regulations, as well as by procedures and enforcement practices of various
government agencies. Changes in immigration laws, regulations or procedures, including those that may be enacted by the
current U.S. presidential administration, may adversely affect our ability to hire or retain such workers, increase operating
expenses and negatively impact our ability to deliver products and services, any of which would adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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The loss of one or more of our executive officers or key personnel or our inabila ity to locate suitablea or qualified replacements
could be significantly detrimental to product development efforts and could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applia cablea .

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We are headquartered in Aliso Viejo, California with design centers and sales offices in Austin, Texas; Boston, Massachusetts;
Detroit, Michigan; San Francisco and San Jose, Californiaff ; Budapest,a Hungary; Dresden and Munich, Germany; Edinburgh,
Scotland; Haifa, Israel; Quebec City, Canada; Tokyo, Japan and several locations throughout China. We engage subcontractors
to manufacture our products. The majora ity of these subcontractors are located in Asia. We periodically evaluate our facility
requirements as necessary arr nd believe our existing and planned facilities are sufficient for our needs for at least the next 12
months. The following tablea sets forth our principal facilities:

Location Square Footage Location Square Footage
Aliso Viejo, California 18,000 Quebec City, Canada 50,050
Austin, Texas 5,753 Wuxi, China 14,381
Detroit, Michigan 32,700 Edinburgh, Scotland 5,328

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not party to any material legal proceedings. From time to time, we may be involved in legal proceedings or subject to
claims incident to the ordinary course of business. The outcome of litigation is inherently uncertain, and there can be no
assurances that favoraff blea outcomes will be obtained. In addition, regardless of the outcome, such proceedings or claims can
have an adverse impact on us, which may be material because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of resources and other
factors.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicablea .
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTRR 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(a) Marketkk Information

Our Class A Common Stock and redeemablea warrants began trading on the Nasdaq Capita al Market under the symbols “INDI”
and “INDIW”, respectively, on June 10, 2021.

(b) Holderl srr of Common Stock

As of April 1, 2022, there were approximately 82 holders of record of our Class A Common Stock and 39 holders of our
redeemable warrants, neither of which include the number of shareholders that hold shares in “street name” through banks or
broker-dealers.

(c) Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our ordinary shares to date. The payment of any cash dividends will be within the
discretion of our board of directors at such time. In addition, our board of directors is not currently contemplating and does not
anticipate declaring any share dividends in the foreseeable future.t

ITEM 6. [RESERVED]

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS OF INDIE

Unless the contextee othett rwise requires, all refere ences in this section to the “ComCC pany,”m “we,” “us, or “our” refer to the
business of indie and itstt subsidiaries prior to the consummation of the Transaction. Throughout this section, unless otherwise
noted, “indie” refee rs to indie Semiconductor and itstt consolidated subsidiaries.

The following discussion and analysisyy provides informatff ion that management believes is relevant to an assessment and
understanding of our consolidated results of operations and financial condition. You should read thisii discussion and analysisyy
in conjunction withtt the accompanyingm audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewll here in thisii
Form 10-K. Certain amounts may not foot due to rounding. This discussion and analysisyy contains forward-looking statements
and involves numerous riskskk and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those described under the sections entitled “Risk
Factors” and “CautiCC onary Note Regardinge Forward-Looking Statements”tt included elsewll here in thisii Form 10-K. We assume
no obligatii on to update any of these forward-looking statements excepte as required by law. Actual results maya diffeff r materially
from those contained in any forward-looking statements.

OUR COMPANY

indie Semiconductor offers highly innovative automotive semiconductors and software solutions for Advanced Driver
Assistance Systems (“ADAS”), autonomous vehicle, connected car, user experience and electrification applications. We focus
on edge sensors across multiple modalities spanning LiDAR, radar, ultrasound and vision. These functions represent the core
underpinnings of both electric and autonomous vehicles, while the advanced user interfaces are transforming the in-cabina
experience to mirror and seamlessly connect to the mobile platforms we rely on every day. We are an approved vendor to Tier 1
automotive suppliers and our platforms can be found in marquee automotive manufacturers around the world. Headquartered in
Aliso Viejo, California, indie has design centers and sales offices in Austin, Texas; Boston, Massachusetts; Detroit, Michigan;
San Francisco and San Jose, California; Budapest, Hungary; Dresden, Germany; Edinburgh, Scotland; Haifa,ff Israel; Quebec,
Canada; Tokyo, Japan and several locations throughout China.

We maintain design centers for our semiconductor engineers and designers in the United States, Scotland, Germany, Israel and
China. We engage subcontractors to manufacture our products. These subcontractors, as well as the majority of our customers’
locations, are primarily in Asia. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately 62% and 81%, respectively,
of our product revenues were recognized for shipments to customer locations in Asia.
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Recent Acquisitions

TERAXRR IONXX INC

In August 2021, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire TERAXION INC, a Canadian corporation (“TeraXion”) from
the existing stockholders of TeraXion (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on October 12, 2021 and the total
consideration paid for the acquisition consisted of (i) $75.3 million in cash, net of cash acquired; (ii) the issuance by indie of
5,805,144 shares of indie Class A common stock; and (iii) the assumptim on by indie of TeraXion options, which will become
exercisable to purchase 1,542,332 shares of indie Class A common stock.

TeraXion produces low noise lasers, Bragg gratings and integrated photonic elements to address high-performance applications.
More recently, TeraXion was an optical sensing reference design partner of indie, supporting next-generation Frequency
Modulated Continuous Wave systems for automotive LiDAR. The addition of TeraXion is expected to be highly synergistic
and we believe it will position us to accelerate mass market deployments of LiDAR platforms.

ON Design Israel

On October 1, 2021, we entered into a definitive agreement and completed the acquisition of ON Design Israel Ltd. (“ON
Design Israel”), for $5.0 million in cash paid upon close (net of cash acquired), $7.5 million of cash in 2022 and up to $7.5
million of cash based on design win performance.

Symeo GmbH

On October 21, 2021, we entered into a definitive agreement with Analog Devices to acquire Symeo GmbH (“Symeo”) for
$10.0 million in cash at closing, $10.0 million in cash in 2023 and an equity-based earn-out of up to 858,369 shares of indie
Class A common stocks based on futuret revenue growth. The Symeo transaction closed on January 4, 2022.

The acquisition of ON Design Israel and Symeo will bring us engineering development teams with broad experience in
millimeter wave technology and radar system implementation, respectively. We expect these combinations will accelerate our
entry into the radar market and enable us to capturea strategic opportunities among Tier 1 customers.

Reverse Recapitalization with Thunder Bridge Acquisition II

On June 10, 2021, we completed a series of transactions (the “Transaction”) with Thunder Bridge Acquisition II, Ltd (“TB2”)
pursuant to the Master Transactions Agreement dated December 14, 2020, as amended on May 3, 2021 (the “MTA”). In
connection with the Transaction, Thunder Bridge II Surviving Pubco, Inc, a Delaware corporation (“Surviving Pubco”), was
formed to be the successor public company to TB2, TB2 was domesticated into a Delaware corporation and merged with and
into and a merger subsidiary of Surviving Pubco. Additionally, we consummated a Private Investment in Public Entity (“PIPE”)
financing, pursuant to which Surviving Pubco issued 15 million Class A common shares, generating net proceeds of $150
million as a result of the Transaction. Also on June 10, 2021, Surviving Pubco changed its name to indie Semiconductor, Inc.,
and listed our shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC under the
symbol “INDI.”

The most significant change in our reported financial position and results of operations in comparison to the prior year is gross
cash proceeds of $399.5 million from the Transaction, which includes $150.0 million in proceeds from the PIPE financing that
was consummated in conjunction with the Transaction. The increase in cash was offset by transaction costs incurred in
connection with the Transaction of approximately $43.5 million plus the retirement of indie’s long-term debt of $15.6 million.
Approximately $29.8 million of the transaction costs and all of indie’s long-term debt were paid as of June 30, 2021.
Approximately $21.8 million of the transaction costs paid as of June 30, 2021 were paid by TB2 as part of the closing of the
Transaction. The remainder of the transaction costs were paid as of September 30, 2021.

Upon consummation of the Transaction, indie-designated directors were appointed to seven of the nine seats of the combined
company’s board of directors; our Chief Executive Officer and President were appointed as the other two board members; our
existing senior management became the senior management of the combined company; and the current stockholders of indie
became the owners of approximately 26% of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock of the combined company.
Accordingly, the Transaction is being accounted for as a reverse recapita alization, whereby indie is the acquirer for accounting
and financial reporting purposes and Surviving Pubco, Inc is the legal acquirer. A reverse recapitalization does not result in a
new basis of accounting, and the financial statements of the combined entity represent the continuation of the consolidated
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financial statements of legacy ADK LLC in many respects. The shares remaining after redemptions, and the unrestricted net
cash and cash equivalents on the closing of the Transaction, are being accounted for as a capia tal infusion to ADK LLC.

As a consequence of the Transaction, we became an SEC-registered, Nasdaq-listed company, which has required, and will
continue to require us to hire additional personnel and implement procedures and processes to address public company
regulatory requirements and customary practices. We are now incurring additional annual expenses as a public company for,
among other things, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, director fees and additional internal and external accounting,
legal and administrative expenses.

Additionally, we expect our capita al and operating expenditurest will increase significantly in connection with ongoing activities
as we invest additional working capita al for various research and development projects, additional investments in equipment to
meet increased project needs, and additional operating expenses to hire project managers, technicians, sales, partnership and
customer service personnel, data scientists, trading teams, softwff are engineers and administrative staff.

Our historical operations and statements of assets and liabilities may not be comparablea to the operations and statements of
assets and liabilities of the combined company as a result of the Transaction.

Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) and efforts to control its spread have significantly curtailed the movement of
people, goods, and services worldwide. The duration and extent of the Pandemic depends on future developments that cannot
be accurately predicted at this time, including the duration and severity of the Pandemic, the severity and transmission rates of
new and more contagious and/or vaccine-resistant variants of COVID-19, and the actions taken to contain it or treat COVID-19,
including the availabila ity, distribution, rate of public acceptance and efficacy of vaccines for COVID-19, as well as the
economic impact on local, regional, national and international customers and markets. The Pandemic has already had an
adverse effect on the global economy, and the ultimate societal and economic impact of the Pandemic remains unknown.

We experienced a decrease in customer demand and product shipments in the second quarter of fiscal year 2020. This decrease
was primarily the result of closures or reduced capaca ity at customer manufacturing facilities in China. During the second half of
fiscal year 2020, customer manufacturing facilities re-opened, and demand increased. As customer demand increased during the
second half of fiscal year 2020 and continued through 2021, the semiconductor industry, and automotive semiconductors in
particular, experienced material shortages and supply constraints. Given our reliance on third-party manufacturing suppliers,
these industry dynamics have resulted in certain instances of extended production lead times, increased production and expedite
costs, and delays in meeting increasing customer demand for our products, which if unabated, present a significant risk to us. In
certain circumstances, we have increased order lead times, and placed purchase orders with suppliu ers based on our anticipated
demand requirements in efforts to secure production capaca ity allocation. However, we cannot predict the duration or magnitudet
of the Pandemic or the full impact that it may have on our financial condition, operations, and workforce. We will continue to
actively monitor the rapia dly evolving situation related to the Pandemic and may take further actions that alter our operations,
including those that may be required by federal, state or local authorities, or that we determine are in the best interests of its
employees and other third parties with whom we do business.

Results of Operations

Revenue

We design, develop and manufacture primarily analog, digital and mixed signal integrated circuits (“ICs”) together with
software running on the embedded processors in the majoa rity of the ICs. Our revenue represents both non-recurring engineering
(“NRE”) fees for the development of ICs and prototypes and product sales, the sale of semiconductors under separate
commercial supply arrangements.

Our revenues fluctuatt e in response to a combination of factors, including the following:

• our overall product mix and sales volumes;

• gains and losses in market share and design win traction;

• semiconductor content per vehicle;

• pace at which technology is adopted in our end markets;

• fluff ctuations in currency exchange rates that affect our prices;
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• the stage of our products in their respective life cycles;

• the effecff ts of competm ition and competitive pricing strategies;

• governmental regulations influencing our markets; and

• the global and regional economic cycles.

Product Revenue. Our product revenue is recognized when the customer obtains control of the product and is based on the
contractual shipping terms of a contract. We provide an assurance-type warranty which is not sold separately and does not
represent a separate performancff e obligation. Therefore, the estimated costs of warranty claims are generally accrued as cost of
goods sold in the period the related revenue is recorded. Under limited circumstances, we may offer an extended limited
warranty to customers for certain products. We accrue for known warranty and indemnification issues if a loss is probable and
can be reasonably estimated. The majoa rity of our product revenue originates from sales shipped to customer locations in Asia,
and the United States.

Contract Revenue. Contract revenue is revenue earned from NRE services. Generally, our NRE contracts with our customers
initially contain a single distinct performance obligation, which is to provide NRE design services for products based on the
customer’s specifications. Generally, our contracts also include the optional purchase of products that may be exercised at
stated prices subsequent to completion of NRE design services. We have determined that the option to purchase products is not
a material right and have not allocated transaction price to this provision.

For NRE arrangements, we recognize revenue over time as services are provided based on the terms of the contract on an input
basis, using costs incurred as the measure of progress. The costs incurred represent the most reliabla e measure of transfer of
control to the customer. Revenue is deferred for amounts billed or received prior to delivery of the services.

Cost of Goods Soldll

Cost of goods sold consists primarily of the cost of semiconductors purchased from subcontractors, including wafer fabrication,
assembly, testing and packaging, board and device costs, manufacturing support costs, including labora and overhead associated
with such purchases, final test yield fallout, inventory and warrantyt provisions, memory and component costs, and shipping
costs. Cost of goods sold also includes compensation related to personnel associated with manufacturing and amortization of
certain intangible assets acquired through the business combinations. Cost of goods sold does not include development costs
incurred related to servicing our NRE services contracts, which are recorded to research and development and expensed as
incurred.

Research and Development Expensexx

Costs related to research, design, and development of our products are expensed as incurred. Research and development
expense consists primarily of pre-production costs related to the design and development of our products and technologies,
including costs related to NRE services contracts with customers such as employee compensation, benefits and related costs of
sustaining our engineering teams, project material costs, third party fees paid to consultants, prototype development expenses,
other costs incurred in the product design and development process and amortization expenses for certain intangible assets
acquired from the business combinations.

Selling,ll General,ll and Administraii tivett ExpenseEE

Selling, general, and administrative costs include employee compensation, including compensation and benefits for executive,
finance, accounting, legal, business operations and other administrative personnel. In addition, it includes marketing and
advertising, outside legal, tax and accounting services, insurance, occupancy costs and related overhead based on headcount and
amortization expenses for certain intangible assets acquired from the business combinations. Selling, general, and
administrative costs are expensed as incurred.
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Amortiztt ation for Intangibltt e All ssets Acquired fromff Business CombiCC natiii ons

As a result of the most recent business combinations, we acquired various intangible assets. The corresponding amortization
expenses are included within Cost of go oods sold, Research and development expensesx , and Selling, general and administratitt ve
expensesx based on their respective nature.t Our acquired intangible assets with definite lives are amortized fromff the date of
acquisition over periods ranging from two to seven years.

Interestt t ExpensEE e

Interest expense primarily consists of cash and non-cash interest under our term loan facff ilities, convertible notes and line of
credit.

Other Income (Expense)e

Other expense primarily comprises the change in the fair value of the SAFEs issued during 2020, warrants and earn-out
liabilities issued as a result of the Transaction.

The conversion of the SAFEs in conjunction with the Transaction eliminated the need for remeasurement of the instruments and
thereby eliminate the other expense or income related to such on June 10, 2021.

As of November 9, 2021, the first Earn-Out Milestone was achieved, which also eliminated the need forff future remeasurement
of the Earn-Out liabilities.

Income Taxes

We utilize the asset and liabia lity method in accounting for income taxes. Deferff red tax assets and liabilities reflect the estimated
future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to appla y to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Deferred tax expense or benefit is the result of
changes in the deferred tax asset and liability. Valuation allowances are establia shed when necessary to reduce deferred tax
assets where it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. We make estimates, assumptions, and
judgments to determine our provision for our income taxes, deferff red tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance
recorded against deferred tax assets. We also assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets, if any, will be recovered fromff
future taxable income, and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we establish a valuation allowance.

We recognize the tax benefitff from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefitsff recognized
from such positions are then measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized uponu
settlement. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits which, as of the date of this report, have not been
material, are recognized within provision for income taxes.

Refer to Note 19, Income Taxaa , in our accompanying financial statements forff additional detail.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue

Fiscal Years Ended
2021 2020

(in thousands) $
% of

Revenue $
% of

Revenue $ Change % Change
Revenue:
Product revenue $ 43,796 90 % $ 19,488 86 % $ 24,308 125 %
Contract revenue 4,616 10 % 3,122 14 % 1,494 48 %
Total revenue $ 48,412 100 % $ 22,610 100 % $ 25,802 114 %

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $48.4 million, compared to $22.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2020, an increase of $25.8 million or 114%, which was primarily driven by a $24.3 million increase in product revenue and a
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$1.5 million increase in contract revenue. The increase in product revenue was dued primarily to higher product volume (units
sold) given the continued growth in demand from our customers globally. Change in product mix, which includes introduction
of new products to the market, and increases in average selling price (“ASP”) also contributed to the increase in revenue year-
over-year. The increase in contract revenue was dued to increased NRE activities in the current year.

Operatingii expenses

Fiscal Years Ended
2021 2020

(in thousands) $
% of

Revenue $
% of

Revenue $ Change % Change
Operating expenses:
Cost of goods sold $ 28,703 59 % $ 13,042 58 % $ 15,661 120 %
Research and development 58,117 120 % 22,013 97 % 36,104 164 %
Selling, general, and
administrative 36,384 75 % 6,796 30 % 29,588 435 %
Total operating expenses $ 123,204 254 % $ 41,851 185 % $ 81,353 194 %

Cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $28.7 million, compared to $13.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase of $15.7 million or 120% was primarily due to a $9.5 million increase in production volume
given the increase in revenue above, a $3.4 million increase due to an increase in material costs, and a $2.6 million increase due
to a change in product mix.

Research and development (“R&D”) expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $58.1 million, compared to $22.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2020. This increase of $36.1 million or 164% was primarily due to $13.5 million
increase in personnel costs as we increased the number of employees working on product development, a $7.6 million increase
in product development costs, a $9.7 million increase in share-based compensation expense, a $2.2 million increase in
amortization expense related to R&D project license and acquired intangible assets from business combinations, and a $1.3
million increase in various outside professional services and equipment costs as we continue to expand produce development
activities. We started recognizing share-based compensation expense in the current year as it required the consummation of the
Transaction in June 2021 and implementation of the 2021 Omnibus Equity Plan in August 2021 to be recognized. We expect
research and development expense to continue to increase due to the aforementioned business combinations and as we continue
to grow our headcount organically to support pent-up customer demand.

Selling, general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $36.4 million, compared to $6.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase of $29.6 million or 435% was primarily due to a $13.2 million increase in
share-based compensation expense, a $10.5 million increase in outside professional fees, a $4.1 million increase in personnel
costs due to an increase in headcounts and a $0.6 million increase in intangible asset amortization from business combinations.
We started recognizing share-based compensation expense in the current year as it required the consummation of the
Transaction in June 2021 and implementation of the 2021 Omnibus Equity Plan in August 2021 to be recognized. The increase
in outside professional fees includes $3.6 million in acquisition related professional fees that is primarily for legal related
services, $4.1 million in professional fees related to obligations as a publicly traded company, and $2.8 million in SPAC related
transaction feeff s that is primarily for audit and tax related services. We expect selling, general, and administrative expense to
continue to increase as we grow our headcount to support our global expansion and our obligations as a publicly traded
company.
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Othertt income (expense),e net

Fiscal Years Ended
2021 2020

(in thousands) $ $ $ Change % Change
Other income (expense), net:
Interest income $ 49 $ 25 $ 24 96 %
Interest expense (1,239) (2,193) 954 (44)%
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of SAFEs 21,600 (76,935) 98,535 (128)%
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of warrants (26,060) — (26,060) 100 %
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of earn-out liabilities (38,838) (220) (38,618) 17554 %
Gain (loss) from extinguishment of debt 304 — 304 100 %
Other income 42 229 (187) (82)%
Total other expense, net $ (44,142) $ (79,094) $ 34,952 (44)%

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $1.2 million, compared to $2.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. Interest expense relate to the routine cash and non-cash interest expenses on outstanding debt obligations.
All long-term debts historically held by indie at the time of the Transaction have been paid off as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, we recognized gains (losses) from fair value remeasurement for SAFE’s, warrants, and
contingent earn-out liabilities of $21.6 million, $(26.1) million, and $(38.8) million, respectively. These gains (losses) recorded
for the year ended December 31, 2021 represented the following:

i) SAFEs: Upon the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, the SAFE holders converted their SAFEs to Class A
common stock of indie. The gain of $21.6 million represents the decrease in fair value in SAFEs fromff December 31, 2020
to June 10, 2021. No changes in faiff r value of SAFEs were recorded after June 10, 2021.

ii) Warrants: Upon the consummation of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, we recognized warrant liability of $74.4 million
and subsequently remeasured the warrant liability to the fair value of $100.5 million at the reporting date. The increase in
fair value of our warrant liability of $26.1 million was primarily a result of the increase of the closing price of our Class A
common stock to $11.99 per share on December 31, 2021 from $10.87 per share on June 10, 2021.

iii) Earn-out liability: Upon the consummation of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, we recognized earn-out liability of
$119.8 million and subsequently remeasured the earn-out liability to the fair value of $158.5 million, or a year-to-date loss
of $38.8 million, on November 9, 2021 when the first milestone was achieved. The total liabia lity as of November 9, 2021
was reclassified to Additional Paid in CapiCC tal in our consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2021, there was no
liability remaining on the balance sheet.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, we recognized a net gain of $0.3 million on extinguishment of debt. The net gain was
attributablea to a gain of $1.9 million from the PPP loan as we received forgiveness from the SBA on May 10, 2021, partially
offset by a loss of $1.6 million fromff the repayment of the Trinity loan on June 17, 2021.

Income Tax Benefit (ii Pr(( ovision)

We evaluate our estimated annual ETR on a quarterly basis based on current and forecasted operating results. The relationship
between our income tax provision or benefit and our pretax book income or loss can vary significantly fromff period to period
considering, among other facff tors, the overall level of pretax book income or loss and changes in the blend of jurisdictional
income or loss that is taxed at different rates and changes in valuation allowances. Consequently, our ETR may fluctuatt e
significantly period to period and may make quarterly comparisons less than meaningful.

Income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2021 was primarily a result of operations in Canada and the United
Kingdom. Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 was primarily a result of operations in the United
Kingdom.
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JOBS Act

The JOBS Act permits an emerging growth company (“EGC”) such as us to take advantage of an extended transition period to
comply with new or revised accounting standards applicablea to public companies. We have elected to use the extended
transition period under the JOBS Act until the earlier of the date we (1) are no longer an emerging growth company or (2)
affirmatively and irrevocablya opt out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. As a result, our consolidated
financial statements may not be comparablea to companies that comply with new or revised accounting pronouncements as of
public company effective dates.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest to occur of: (1) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have
more than $1.07 billion in annual revenue; (2) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filerff ,” which would
occur if the market value of our equity securities held by nonaffiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our
most recently completed second fiscal quarter; (3) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible
debt securities during the prior three-year period; and (4) the last day of the fiscal year ending after the fifth anniversary of our
initial public offering, or December 31, 2024.

We may choose to early adopt any new or revised accounting standards whenever such early adoption is permitted for public
companies.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we derive liquidity primarily from debt and equity financing activities as we have historically had negative cash
flows from operations. On June 10, 2021, we completed the Transaction, which resulted in approximately $341.3 million of net
cash proceeds. As of December 31, 2021, our balance of cash and cash equivalents was $219.1 million.

Our primary use of cash is to fund operating expenses, which consist primarily of research and development expenditures,
working capita al requirements related to inventory, accounts payablea and accounts receivable, and general and administrative
expenditures.t In addition, from time to time, we use cash to fund our mergers and acquisitions as well as for purchases of
various capital and software assets.

PPPPP Loan

In May 2020, we received gross proceeds of $1.9 million pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief and Economic Security Act as administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (the “SBA”). On May 10, 2021,
the entire balance of the PPP Loan was forgiven by the SBA and lender. As a result, the Company recorded a gain on
extinguishment of debt of $1,889, which represented the principal balance of $1,868 and accrued interest of $21, in the
consolidated statement of operations.

Acquisitions

In October 2021, we completed the acquisition of TeraXion and On Design Israel, for which we made initial cash payments (net
of cash acquired) of approximately $75.3 million and $5.0 million, respectively. We expect to pay up to an additional $15.0
million for the acquisition of ON Design Israel as part of the total closing consideration in 2022 and later. In October 2021, we
also entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Symeo which will result in a total cash payment of $20.0 million as part of
the overall closing consideration payable in accordance with the definitive agreement. The Symeo acquisition was approved and
completed on January 4, 2022. See “Recent Acquisitions” above for further information.

We expect to continue to incur net operating losses and negative cash flows from operations. We also expect our research and
development expenses, general and administrative expenses and capita al expenditures will continue to increase as we continue to
expand our operations, product offerings and customer base.
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The folff lowing tablea summarizes our consolidated cash flows forff the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Fiscal Years Ended Change Change
2021 2020 $ %

Net cash used in operating activities $ (55,819) $ (21,218) $ (34,601) 163 %
Net cash used in investing activities (84,326) (771) (83,555) 10837 %
Net cash provided by finaff ncing activities 340,646 33,474 307,172 918 %

Operatingii Activtt itiett s

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash used in the operating activities was $55.8 million, which included net loss of
$118.6 million and adjusted forff certain non-cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Non-cash increases
primarily consisted of $43.3 million of net losses resulting from change in fair values for SAFEs, warrantr s and earn-out
liability, $22.9 million in share-based compensation expense and $6.0 million in depreciation and amortization. Changes in
operating assets and liabilities fromff operations used $9.2 million of cash, primarily driven by an increase in accounts receivable,
inventory, prepaid and other current assets and a decrease in accounts payablea . This was offset by an increase in accrued
expenses and other current liabilities.

Cash used in operating activities forff the year ended December 31, 2020 was $21.2 million, mostly consisting of net loss of
$98.4 million adjusted for certain non-cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Non-cash increases primarily
consisted of a $76.9 million loss from change in fair value of SAFEs and $2.7 million in depreciation and amortization.
Changes in operating assets and liabilities from operations used $4.4 million of cash, primarily driven by an increase in
accounts receivablea and prepaid and other current assets, and a decrease in deferred revenue.

Investingii Activtt itiett s

Net cash used in investing activities forff the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $84.3 million and $0.8 million,
respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the decrease in cash was primarily due to the acquisition of TeraXion
and OnDesign Israel for $75.3 million and $5.0 million, net of cash acquired, respectively, as well as an increase in cash used of
$2.7 million for the purchase of capita al expenditures. During the year ended December 31, 2020, our primary investing
activities consisted of capital expenditures. We expect that we will make additional capital expenditures in the future, including
licenses to various intangible assets, in order to support the futff uret growth of our business.

Financingii Activities

Net cash provided by finaff ncing activities forff the year ended December 31, 2021 was $340.6 million, which was primarily
attributed to $377.7 million net cash acquired fromff TB2 as we closed the Transaction on June 10, 2021 and $5.0 million of
proceeds from issuance of SAFEs in April 2021. These increases in cash were partially offset by $19.9 million of transaction
costs incurred in connection with the Transaction and $17.5 million repayment of long-term debt and related termination fees.

Cash provided by finaff ncing activities forff the year ended December 31, 2020 of $33.5 million was primarily the result of
$31.9 million in proceeds from the issuance of debt and SAFEs, and $6.2 million in proceeds from the sale of noncontrolling
interest. Proceeds received from the sale of noncontrolling interest related to our Chinese subsidiary, Wuxi, which used the
proceeds to fund operations. The increase was partially offset by $4.2 million of repayment of long-term debt.

Future Cash Obligationstt

Following is a summary of our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2021:

Future Estimated Cash Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years 3-5 years >5 years Total
Line of credit $ 2,275 $ 2,938 $ 2,699 $ — $ 7,912
Operating leases 1,869 2,977 2,378 1,686 8,910
Total contractual obligations $ 4,144 $ 5,915 $ 5,077 $ 1,686 $ 16,822
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The preparation
of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments in applying our most critical accounting policies that
can have a significaff nt impact on the results we report in our financial statements. The SEC has defined critical accounting
estimates as those that involve a significant level of estimation uncertainty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a
material impact on a registrant’s financial condition or results of operations. Based on this definition, our most critical
accounting estimates include revenue recognition, which impacts the recording of net revenue; inventory valuation, which
impacts the cost of goods sold and gross margin; business combinations, which impacts the fair value of acquired assets and
assumed liabilities; goodwill and long-lived assets, which impacts the fair value of goodwill and intangible assets; warrants and
earn-out liabilities valuations, which impacts the fair value of these financial instruments; and income taxes, which impacts the
income tax provision. These policies and significant judgments involved are discussed further below. We have other significant
accounting policies that do not generally require subjective estimates or judgments or would not have a material impact on our
results of operations. Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognitiii on

We enter into contracts with customers that can include various combinations of products and services. As a result, our
contracts may contain multiple performancff e obligations. We determine whether arrangements are distinct based on whether the
customer can benefit from the product or service on its own or together with other resources that are readily availablea and
whether our commitment to transfer the product or service to the customer is separately identifiable from other obligations in
the contract.

In particular, we enter into engineering services contracts with customers that generally contain only one distinct performancff e
obligation, which is design services for ICs based on agreed upon specifications. Engineering services contracts typically also
include the purchase, at the customer’s option, of ICs at agreed upon prices subsequent to completion of ICs design services.
We have determined that the option to purchase ICs is not a material right and has not allocated transaction price to this
provision.

For ICs development arrangements, revenue is recognized over time as services are provided based on the terms of the contract
on an input basis, using costs incurred as the measure of progress and is recorded as contract revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations. The costs incurred represent the most reliabla e measure of transfer of control to the customer. Revenue
is deferred for amounts billed or received prior to delivery of the services.

Inventoryr Valuation

We value our inventory at the lower of cost or net realizable value on a first-in, first-out basis. Reserves for excess and obsolete
inventory are established on a quarterly basis and are based on a detailed analysis of aged material, salabila ity of our inventory,
market conditions, and product life cycles. Once reserves are establia shed, write-downs of inventory are considered permanent
adjustments to the cost basis of inventory. Our reserves contain uncertainties because the calculation requires management to
make assumptions and to apply judgment regarding historical experience, market conditions, and technological obsolescence.
Changes in actual demand or market conditions could adversely impact our reserve calculations.

Warrantstt

We value our warrants by using the Black-Scholes-Merton formula and a Monte Carlo Simulations analysis. Calculating the
fair value of warrants requires the input of subjective assumptim ons. Other reasonable assumptim ons could provide differingff
results. The carryingrr amount of the liabia lity may fluctuate significantly and actual amounts paid may be materially differentff
from the liability’s estimated value.

Earn-Out Liabili itll iett s

We value our contingent earn-outs by using a Monte Carlo analysis in order to simulate the future path of our stock price over
the earn-out period. The carryingrr amount of the liabia lity may fluctuate significantly and actual amounts paid may be materially
different from the liability’s estimated value.
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Income Taxes

The application of tax laws and regulations to calculate our tax liabilities is subject to legal and factual interpretation, judgment,
and uncertainty in a multitude of jurisdictions. Tax laws and regulations themselves are subject to change as a result of changes
in fiscal policy, changes in legislation, the evolution of regulations, and court rulings. We recognize potential liabia lities for
uncertain tax positions in the United States and other tax jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to
which, additional taxes and interest will be due. We record an amount as an estimate of probable additional income tax liability
at the largest amount that we feel is more likely than not, based upon the technical merits of the position, to be sustained upon
audit by the relevant tax authority.

Goodwillll and Long-lin ved Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business combination. We
test goodwill for impairment in accordance with the provisions of ASC 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other, (“ASC 350”).
Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that goodwill might be impaired. ASC 350 provides that an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after assessing the totality of events or circumstances, an entity
determines it is not more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then additional
impairment testing is not required. However, if an entity concludes otherwise, then it is required to perform an impairment test.
The impairment test involves comparing the estimated fair value of a reporting unit with its book value, including goodwill. If
the estimated fair value exceeds book value, goodwill is considered not to be impaired. If, however, the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than book value, then an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the amount that the book
value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to the reporting unit.

Long-lived assets to be held and used, including identifiablea intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carryingrr amount of an asset may not be fully recoverablea . These events or changes in
circumstances may include a significant deterioration of operating results, changes in business plans or changes in anticipated
future cash flows. If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverabila ity by a comparison of the carryingrr amount of
the assets or asset group to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the lowest level of asset group. If the
assets or asset group are impaired, the impairment recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the fair value of the assets. Fair value is generally determined by estimates of discounted cash flows. The discount rate used in
any estimate of discounted cash flows would be the rate required for similar investment of like risk.

Business Combinationii s

We allocate the fair value of the purchase consideration of a business acquisition to the tangible assets, liabilities, and intangible
assets acquired, including in-process research and development (“IPR&D”), based on their estimated fair values. The excess of
the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair values of these identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
IPR&D is initially capita alized at fair value as an intangible asset with an indefinite life and assessed for impairment thereafter.
When an IPR&D project is completed, the IPR&D is reclassified as an amortizablea purchased intangible asset and amortized
over the asset’s estimated useful life. Our valuation of acquired assets and assumed liabilities requires significant estimates,
especially with respect to intangible assets. The valuation of intangible assets, in particular, requires that we use valuation
techniques such as the income approach. The income approach includes the use of a discounted cash flow model, which
includes discounted cash flow scenarios and requires the following significant estimates: future expected revenue, expenses,
capita al expenditures and other costs, and discount rates. We estimate the fair value based upon assumptim ons we believe to be
reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates.
Estimates associated with the accounting for acquisitions may change as additional information becomes available regarding the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Acquisition-related expenses are recognized separately from the business combination
and are expensed as incurred.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards

For information regarding new accounting pronouncements, and the impact of these pronouncements on our consolidated
financial statements, if any, see Note 2 to in our accompanying financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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Foreign Currency Risk

We have international operations, giving rise to exposure to market risks from changes in currency exchange rates. A
cumulative foreign currency translation loss of 1.3 million related to our foreign subsidiaries is included in “Ac“ cumulated other
comprehensm ive loss” within the Stockholders' Equity section of the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2021. The
aggregate foreign currency translation exchange rate income (loss) included in determining loss before income taxes was $(1.4)
million and $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

As our international operations grow, our risks associated with fluctuation in foreign currency rates will become greater, and we
will continue to reassess our approach to managing this risk. In addition, currency fluctuations or a weakening U.S. dollar could
increase the costs of our international expansion and operation.

Investment and Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to interest rate and general market risks relates principally to our investment portfolio, which consists of cash and
cash equivalents (money market funds and marketable securities purchased with less than ninety days until maturity) that totals
approximately $219.1 million as of December 31, 2021.

The main objectives of our investment activities are liquidity and preservation of capita al. Our cash equivalent investments have
short-term maturity periods that dampen the impact of market or interest rate risk. Credit risk associated with our investments is
not material because our investments are diversified across securities with high credit ratings.

Given the current low interest rate environment, the objectives of our investment activities, and the relatively low interest
income generated from our cash, cash equivalents, and other investments, we do not believe that investment or interest rate
risks currently pose material exposures to our business or results of operations.

47



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
indie Semiconductor, Inc.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of indie Semiconductor, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity
(deficit) and noncontrolling interest, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively, the
consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicablea rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are freeff of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KPMG LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2017.

Irvine, California
April 8, 2022
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INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
cember 31,

2021 2020
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 219,081 $ 18,698
Restricted cash 383 —
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $27 as of December 31, 2021
and $185 as of December 31, 2020 13,842 5,913

Inventory, net 9,080 2,900
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,648 2,465
Total current assets 248,034 29,976

Property and equipment, net 11,090 2,169
Intangible assets, net 96,285 1,088
Goodwill 115,206 1,739
Other assets and deposits 270 154
Total assets $ 470,885 $ 35,126

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Accounts payable $ 5,441 $ 4,554
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 18,643 2,522
Intangible asset contract liability 5,516 2,270
Deferred revenue 1,840 1,665
Simple agreements forff future equity ("SAFEs") — 102,700
Current debt obligations 2,275 8,488
Total current liabilities 33,715 122,199

Long-term debt, net of current portion 5,618 12,345
Warrant liability 100,467 —
Intangible asset contract liability, net of current portion 12,452 400
Deferred tax liabila ities, non-current 21,164 —
Other long-term liabilities 5,612 1,674
Total liabilities 179,028 136,618

Commitments and contingencies (Note 21)
Stockholder’s equity
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 0 shares issued or
outstanding — —

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 250,000,000 shares authorized, 111,260,962 and
38,255,490 shares issued and 108,181,781 and 34,413,634 shares outstanding as of December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively. 11 3
Class V common stock, $0.0001 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized, 30,448,081 and
33,373,294 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively. 3 3
Additional paid-in capital 514,891 43,155
Accumulated deficit (200,416) (153,264)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,443) (209)
indie’s stockholder’s equity (deficit) 313,046 (110,312)

Noncontrolling interest (21,189) 8,820
Total stockholders' equity (deficit) 291,857 (101,492)
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 470,885 $ 35,126

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finff ancial statements.
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INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATRR IONS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year ended December 31,
2021 2020

Revenue:
Product revenue $ 43,796 $ 19,488
Contract revenue 4,616 3,122
Total revenue 48,412 22,610

Operating expenses:
Cost of goods sold 28,703 13,042
Research and development 58,117 22,013
Selling, general, and administrative 36,384 6,796
Total operating expenses 123,204 41,851

Loss from operations (74,792) (19,241)
Other income (expense), net:
Interest income 49 25
Interest expense (1,239) (2,193)
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of SAFEs 21,600 (76,935)
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of warrants (26,060) —
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of earn-out liabilities (38,838) (220)
Gain (loss) from extinguishment of debt 304 —
Other income (expense) 42 229
Total other expense, net (44,142) (79,094)

Net loss before income taxes (118,934) (98,335)
Income tax benefit (provision) 327 (29)

Net loss (118,607) (98,364)
Less: Net loss attributablea to noncontrolling interest (30,563) (866)
Net loss attributablea to indie Semiconductor, Inc. $ (88,044) $ (97,498)

Net loss attributablea to common shares —basic— $ (88,044) $ (97,498)
Net loss attributablea to common shares —diluted $ (88,044) $ (97,498)

Net loss per share attributable to common shares —basic $ (1.26) $ (3.12)
Net loss per share attributable to common shares —diluted $ (1.26) $ (3.12)

Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic (1) 70,012,112 31,244,414
Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted (1) 70,012,112 31,244,414

(1) Retroactively restated to give effe ecff t to the reverse recapitalizatiii on.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finff ancial statements.

50



INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Net loss $ (118,607) $ (98,364)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments (1,365) 158

Comprehensive loss (119,972) (98,206)
Less: Comprehensive loss attributablea to noncontrolling interest (30,654) (740)

Comprehensive loss attributablea to indie Semiconductor, Inc. $ (89,318) $ (97,466)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finff ancial statements.
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INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (118,607) $ (98,364)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,967 2,652
Inventory impairment charges 173 618
Share-based compensation 22,905 —
Amortization of discount and cost of issuance of debt 198 249
Non-cash interest expense — 474
Bad debts (158) 47
Accrued contingent consideration related to acquisition — 553
(Gain) loss from change in fair value remeasurement of SAFEs (21,600) 76,935
(Gain) loss from change in fair value of warrants 26,060 —
(Gain) loss from change in fair value of contingent consideration and earn-out liability 38,889 —
(Gain) loss from extinguishment of debt (304) —
Deferred City Semi compensation 500 —
Deferred tax liabilities (516) —
Unrealized foreign currency transaction (gain) loss (86) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,477) (1,304)
Inventory (3,171) 767
Accounts payable (2,476) (207)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 5,382 (38)
Deferred revenue (837) (1,821)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3,706) (1,918)
Other long-term liabilities 45 139
Net cash used in operating activities (55,819) (21,218)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (2,682) (637)
Purchases of intangible assets (1,388) —
Payments for acquired software license — (134)
Business combinations, net of cash (80,256) —
Net cash used in investing activities (84,326) (771)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of SAFEs 5,000 25,765
Proceeds from sale of noncontrolling interest — 6,180
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations 775 6,112
Proceeds from reverse recapitalization 377,663 —
Issuance costs related to reverse recapitalization (19,902) —
Payments on debt obligations (17,543) (4,183)
Payments on financed software (2,270) (400)
Redemption of Class H units (900) —
Settlement of City Semi first tranche contingent consideration (399) —
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of vested equity awards (1,844) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 66 —
Net cash provided by financing activities 340,646 33,474
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Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 265 58
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 200,766 11,543
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of period 18,698 7,155
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of period $ 219,464 $ 18,698

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,234 $ 1,476

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment, accrued but not paid $ 240 $ 161
Conversion of historical members' equity $ 41,278 $ —
Class G warrarr nts cashless exchange $ 407 $ —
Conversion of SAFEs $ 86,100 $ —
Conversion of Embry Notes $ 4,119 $ —
Recognition of earn-out considerations $ 119,759 $ —
Recognition of warrant liabilities $ 74,408 $ —
Accrual for purchases of intangible assets $ 17,820 $ 509
Fair value of common stock issued for business combination $ 82,441 $ —
Contingent consideration for business combination $ 4,000 $ —
Future fixed cash consideration for business combination $ 7,500 $ —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finff ancial statements.
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INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1) Nature of the Business and Basis of Presentation

indie Semiconductor, Inc. (“indie”) and its predecessor for accounting purposes, Ay Dee Kay, LLC, a California limited
liability company (“ADK LLC”) and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to herein as the “Company.” The Company offers
highly innovative automotive semiconductors and software solutions for Advanced Driver Assistance Systems (“ADAS”),
autonomous vehicle, connected car, user experience and electrification applications. The Company focuses on edge sensors
across multiple modalities spanning LiDAR, radar, ultrasound and vision. These functions represent the core underpinnings of
both electric and autonomous vehicles, while the advanced user interfaces are transforming the in-cabina experience to mirror
and seamlessly connect to the mobile platforms people rely on every day. indie is an approved vendor to Tier 1 automotive
suppliers and its platforms can be found in marquee automotive manufacturers around the world. Headquartered in Aliso Viejo,
California, indie has design centers and sales offices in Austin, Texas; Boston, Massachusetts; Detroit, Michigan; San Francisco
and San Jose, California; Budapesa t, Hungary; Dresden, Germany; Edinburgh, Scotland; Haifa,ff Israel; Quebec City, Canada;
Tokyo, Japana and several locations throughout China. The Company engages subcontractors to manufacture its products. The
majoria ty of these subcontu ractors are located in Asia.

Recent Acquisitiii ons

On October 1, 2021, indie entered into a definitive agreement and completed its acquisition of ON Design Israel Ltd. (“ON
Design Israel”), for $4,974 in cash paid upon close (net of cash acquired), $7,500 of cash in 2022 and up to $7,500 of cash
based on design win performance. Upon completion of the acquisition, ON Design Israel was renamed to indie Semiconductor
Design Israel Ltd.

On October 12, 2021, indie completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding capita al stock of TERAXION INC, a Canadian
corporation (“TeraXion”) from the existing stockholders of TeraXion. The acquisition was consummated pursuant to a Share
Purchase Agreement dated August 27, 2021 (the “Purchase Agreement”). The total consideration paid for this acquisition
consisted of (i) approximately $75,282 in cash (including debt paid at closing and net of cash acquired); (ii) the issuance by
indie of 5,805,144 shares of indie Class A common stock with a fair value of $65,192; and (iii) the assumptim on by indie of
TeraXion options, which became exercisable to purchase 1,542,332 shares of indie Class A common stock with a fair value of
$17,249.

On October 21, 2021, indie entered into a definitive agreement with Analog Devices to acquire Symeo GmbH (“Symeo”) for
$10,000 in cash at closing, $10,000 in cash in 2023 and an equity-based earn-out of up to 858,369 shares of indie Class A
common stock based on future revenue growth. The Symeo transaction closed on January 4, 2022.

See Note 3 - Business Combinations for additional description of these acquisitions.

Reverse Recapitalization withii Thunder Bridge Acquisitiontt II

On June 10, 2021 (the “Closing Date”), the Company completed a series of transactions (the “Transaction”) with Thunder
Bridge Acquisition II, Ltd. (“TB2”) pursuant to the Master Transactions Agreement dated December 14, 2020, as amended on
May 3, 2021. In connection with the Transaction, Thunder Bridge Acquisition II Surviving Pubco, Inc, a Delaware corporation
(“Surviving Pubco”), was formed to be the successor public company to TB2, and TB2 was domesticated into a Delaware
corporation and merged with and into a merger subsidiary of Surviving Pubco. Immediately prior to the closing of the
Transaction (the “Closing”), shareholders of TB2 redeemed an aggregate of 9,877,106 common shares of TB2 and the
outstanding common shares and warrants of TB2 were converted into 24,622,894 Class A common shares of Surviving Pubco
and 17,250,000 warrants to purchase Class A common shares of Surviving Pubco. The outstanding common shares and
warrants of TB2 sponsors were converted into 8,625,000 shares of Class A common shares and 8,650,000 private placement
warrants. In addition, TB2 issued 1,500,000 working capita al warrants to an affiliate of the sponsor in satisfaction of a working
capita al promissory note (see Note 10 - Warrant Liabia lity). Concurrent with the Closing, TB2 raised $150,000 in a Private
Investment in Public Entity (“PIPE”) financing, pursuant to which Surviving Pubco issued 15,000,000 Class A common shares.
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On the Closing Date, Surviving PubCo changed its name to indie Semiconductor, Inc., and listed its shares of Class A common
stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock”) on the Nasdaq under the symbol “INDI.”

Immediately prior to the Transaction, (i) the Company’s existing warrants to purchase the Company’s Class G units were net
exercised and 10,019 Class G units of the Company were issued to the holders of the warrants; (ii) the SAFEs were converted
into an aggregate of 284,925 Class A units; (iii) the Embry notes and the interest accrued thereunder were converted into
185,000 Class A units and 100,000 Class C units; and (iv) all 1,251,566 Class C, D, E, F and G units of the Company were
converted into Class A units as per their rights and preferences. Immediately thereafter, each outstanding Class A unit and Class
B unit was split into approximately 27.8 Class A units and Class B units, respectively (the “Exchange Ratio”). Following the
split, 77,497,793 Class A units were exchanged forff 43,670,422 Class A common shares and 33,827,371 Class V common
shares in indie and 9,564,150 Class B units were exchanged forff 9,564,150 Class A common shares in indie (1,791,147 of such
shares were subjeu ct to vesting conditions).

The closing Exchange Ratio was determined by dividing (i) a number of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock equal
to (A) the Closing Merger Consideration (as defined below), divided by (B) $10.00 per share, by (ii) the total number of ADK
LLC membership units outstanding immediately prior to the Closing. The “Closing Merger Consideration” of $894,628 was
determined by taking $900,000 of merger consideration less applicablea adjustments of $5,372.

3,450,000 Class A common shares of indie were issued and held in escrow (“Escrow Shares”) for the potential future release to
the sponsors of TB2 in the event the earn-out milestones are met. Additionally, the former owners of ADK LLC may be entitled
to receive up tu o 10,000,000 earn-out shares of the Company’s Class A common stock if the earn-out milestones are met. See
Note 11 - Contingent and Earn-Out Liabilities forff the milestone details.

Immediately follff owing the Closing, the Company’s board of directors consisted of nine directors, seven of whom were
designated by the Company. A majority of the directors qualified as independent directors under rules of Nasdaq.

The Transaction was accounted for as a reverse recapita alization in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). Under the guidance in Accounting Standards Codifications (“ASC”) Topic 805,
indie is treated as the “acquirer” for financial reporting purposes. As such, the Company is deemed the accounting predecessor
of the combined business and is the successor registrant for U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) purposes,
meaning that the Company’s financial statements forff previous periods will be disclosed in the registrant’s future periodic
reports filff ed with the SEC. The most significant change in our reported financial position and results of operations was gross
cash proceeds of $399,511 from the merger transaction, which includes 150,000 in gross proceeds from the PIPE financing that
was consummated in conjunction with the Transaction. The increase in cash was offset by transaction costs incurred in
connection with the Transaction of approximately $43,463 plus the retirement of indie’s long-term debt of $15,607.
Approximately $29,770 of the transaction costs and all of indie’s long-term debt were paid as of June 30, 2021. Approximately
$21,848 of the transaction costs paid as of June 30, 2021 were paid by TB2 as part of the Closing. The remainder of the
transaction costs were paid in the third quarter of 2021.

The tablea below summarizes the shares of Class A and Class V common stock issued immediately after the closing of the
Transaction as well as the impact of the Transaction on the consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity as of June 10, 2021:

Class A Common Stock Class V Common Stock Additional
Paid in
CapitalShares Amount Shares Amount

Redemption of Class H units (125,101) $ — — $ — $ (900)
Embry notes conversion 8,023,072 1 — — 4,118
Warrants net settlement conversion 278,533 — — — —
SAFEs conversion 7,466,891 1 454,077 — 86,099
PIPE and SPAC financing 44,797,894 4 — — 377,654
Earn-out liability — — — — (119,759)
Transaction expenses — — — — (21,575)
Warrants liabia lity — — — — (74,408)
Reverse recapitalization on June 10, 2021 60,441,289 $ 6 454,077 $ — $ 251,229

INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
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Risks and Uncertaintiii es

The COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”) and efforts to control its spread have significantly curtailed the movement of
people, goods, and services worldwide. The duration and extent of the Pandemic depends on future developments that cannot
be accurately predicted at this time, including the duration and severity of the Pandemic, the severity and transmission rates of
new and more contagious and/or vaccine-resistant variants of COVID-19, and the actions taken to contain it or treat COVID-19,
including the availabila ity, distribution, rate of public acceptance and efficacy of vaccines for COVID-19, as well as the
economic impact on local, regional, national and international customers and markets. The Pandemic has already had an
adverse effect on the global economy, and the ultimate societal and economic impact of the Pandemic remains unknown.

The Company experienced a decrease in customer demand and product shipments in the second quarter of fiscal year 2020.
This decrease was primarily the result of closures or reduced capaca ity at customer manufacturing facilities in China. Starting
from the second half of fiscal year 2020, customer manufacturing facilities re-opened, and through 2021, customers’ demand
has continued to increase. As a result, the semiconductor industry and automotive semiconductors in particular, experienced
material shortages and supply constraints. Given the Company’s reliance on third-party manufacturing suppliers, these industry
dynamics have resulted in certain instances of extended production lead times, increased production and expedite costs, and
delays in meeting increasing customer demand for its products, which if unabated, present a significant risk to the Company. In
certain circumstances, the Company has increased order lead times, and placed purchase orders with suppliu ers based on its
anticipated demand requirements in efforts to secure production capaca ity allocation. However, the Company cannot predict the
duration or magnitudet of the Pandemic or the full impact that it may have on the Company’s financial condition, operations,
and workforce. The Company will continue to actively monitor the rapia dly evolving situation related to the Pandemic and may
take further actions that alter the Company’s operations, including those that may be required by federal, state or local
authorities, or that the Company determines are in the best interests of its employees and other third parties with whom the
Company does business.

Basis of Presentatitt on

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and the rules and regulations of the SEC.
Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative U.S. GAAP as found in ASC and
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of Ay Dee Kay, LLC, its wholly-owned subsidiaries Indie Services Corporation, indie LLC and
Indie City LLC, all Californiaff entities, Ay Dee Kay Limited, a private limited company incorporated under the laws of
Scotland, indie GmbH, a private limited liability company incorporated under the laws of Germany, indie Kft, a limited liability
company incorporated under the laws of Hungary, TeraXion Inc., a company incorporated under the laws of Canada, indie
Semiconductor Israel Ltd., a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Israel, its majoria ty owned subsidiary,
Wuxi indie Microelectronics (“Wuxi”), a Chinese entity 50% owned by the Company as of December 31, 2021 and Wuxi’s
wholly-owned subsidiaries, indie Semiconductor Japan, indie Semiconductor HK, Ltd and Shanghai Ziying Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions of the subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation. The
noncontrolling interest attributablea to the Company’s less-than-wholly-owned subsidiary is presented as a separate component
from stockholders’ equity (deficit) in the consolidated balance sheets, and a noncontrolling interest in the consolidated
statements of operations and consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit) and noncontrolling interest (see Note 2 —
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Consolidation).

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimtt ates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptim ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
dates of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates and assumptions.

On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates assumptim ons, including those related to (i) the collectabila ity of
accounts receivable; (ii) write-down for excess and obsolete inventories; (iii) warrantyt obligations; (iv) the value assigned to
and estimated useful lives of long-lived assets; (v) the realization of tax assets and estimates of tax liabilities and tax reserves;
(vi) amounts recorded in connection with acquisitions; (vii) recoverabila ity of intangible assets and goodwill; (viii) the
recognition and disclosure of fair value of debt instruments, warrants and contingent liabilities; (ix) the computation of share-
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based compensation; (x) accrued expenses; and (xi) the recognition of revenue based on a cost-to-cost measure of progress for
certain engineering services contracts. These estimates are based on historical data and experience, as well as various other
factors that management believes to be reasonablea under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The Company
engages third-party valuation specialists to assist with estimates related to the valuation of certain financial instruments and
assets associated with various contractual arrangements, and valuation of assets acquired in connection with acquisitions. Such
estimates often require the selection of appropriate valuation methodologies and models, and significant judgment in evaluating
ranges of assumptim ons and financial inputs. Actual results may differ from those estimates under different assumptim ons or
circumstances.

Foreigni Currency

Certain of the Company’s self-sustaining foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as their functional currency. Assets and
liabilities for these subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the period
and results of operations at the average exchange rates for the period. Unrealized exchange gains and losses arising from the
translation of the financial statements of our non-U.S. functional currency operations are accumulated in the cumulative
translation adjustmd ents account in accumulated other comprehensive loss.

For those foreign subsidiaries where the U.S. dollar is the functional currency, all foreign currency-denominated accounts are
remeasured into U.S. dollars. Unrealized exchange gains and losses arising from remeasurements of foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities are included within Other (income) expensx e, net in the consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss. Gains and losses arising from international intercompany transactions that are of a long-term
investment naturet are reported in the same manner as translation gains and losses. Realized exchange gains and losses are
included in net income for the periods presented.

Forward ExchEE ange Contracts

The Company’s forward exchange contracts, which are used to hedge anticipated U.S. dollar denominated sales and purchases
as well as euro-denominated purchases, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are recognized at fair value. Any change in the
fair value of these contracts is reflected as part of Othett r income (expeee nse), net in the statement of operations.

Consolidationtt

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiaries, and
subsidiaries that it controls due to ownership of a majoria ty voting interest. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such
control ceases. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. The Company
recognizes noncontrolling interest related to its less-than-wholly-owned subsidiary as equity in the consolidated financial
statements separate from the parent entity’s equity. The net loss attributablea to noncontrolling interest is included in net loss in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The Company accounts for investments in which it has
significant influence but not a controlling interest using the equity method of accounting.

Emerging Growth Company

Section 102(b)(1) of the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (“JOBS Act”) exempts emerging growth companies from
being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies are required to comply
with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can choose not to take
advantage of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies,
and any such election to not take advantage of the extended transition period is irrevocablea . We are an “emerging growth
company” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act, and have elected to take advantage of the benefits of the extended
transition period for new or revised financial accounting standards. Following the consummation of the Transaction, our Post-
Combination Company will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which
the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the end of that year’s second
fiscal quarter, (ii) the last day of the fiscal year in which we achieve total annual gross revenue of $1.07 billion or more during
such fiscal year (as indexed for inflation), (iii) the date on which we issue more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt in the
prior three-year period or (iv) December 31, 2024. The Company expects to continue to take advantage of the benefits of the
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extended transition period, although it may decide to early adopt such new or revised accounting standards to the extent
permitted by such standards. This may make it difficuff lt or impossible to compare the Company’s financial results with the
financial results of another public company that is either not an emerging growth company or is an emerging growth company
that has chosen not to take advantage of the extended transition period exemptions because of the potential differenceff s in
accounting standards used.

Cash and Cash Equivalentll stt

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less at the
date of purchase. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, cash and cash equivalents consisted of money market funds and cash
deposits that were held by reputable financial institutions in local jurisdictions of the Company’s subsidiaries including the
U.S., Asia, Canada, Germany, and Great Britain denominated in U.S. dollars and local currency.

Restricted Cash

The Company’s restricted cash consists of cash that the Company is contractualt ly obligated to maintain in accordance with the
terms of its PacWest Revolving Line of Credit and accumulated credit limit.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company deposits its cash with large financial institutit ons. At times, the Company’s cash balances with individual banking
institutions will exceed the limits insured by the FDIC, however, the Company has not experienced any losses on such deposits.

The Company extends credit to its customers based upon an evaluation of the customers’ financial condition and credit history
and generally does not require collateral. Credit losses, if any estimated, are provided for in the consolidated financial
statements and consistently have been within management’s expectations. See Note 16 — Revenue — Concentrations.

Fairii Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between willing, able and knowledgeable market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements are
not adjusted for transaction costs. In addition, a three-tiered hierarchy for inputs is used in management’s determination of fair
value of financial instruments that emphasizes the use of observable inputs over the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that
the observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are market participant assumptions based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable inputs are the reporting entity’s own assumptim ons about
market participants based on the best information available under the circumstances. In assessing the appropriateness of using
observable inputs in making its fair value determinations, the Company considers whether the market for a particular security is
“active” or not based on all the relevant facts and circumstances.

Valuation service providers typically obtain data about market transactions and other key valuation model inputs from multiple
sources and, through the use of widely accepted valuation models, provide a single fair value measurement for individual
securities for which a fair value has been requested under the terms of service agreements. The inputs used by the valuation
service providers include, but are not limited to, market prices from recently completed transactions and transactions of
comparablea securities, interest rate yield curves, credit spreads, currency rates and other market observable information, as
applicable. The valuation models consider, among other things, market observable information as of the measurement date as
well as the specificff attributes of the security being valued including its term, interest rate, credit rating, industry sector and,
when applicable, collateral quality and other issue or issuer specific information. When market transactions or other market
observable data is limited, the extent to which judgment is applied in determining fair value is greatly increased.

As a basis for considering such assumptim ons, a three-tier value hierarchy is used in management’s determination of fair value
based on the reliability and observability of inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the Company has the ability to access for
identical, unrestricted assets and do not involve any meaningful degree of judgment. An active market is defined as a market
where transactions for the financial instrumer nt occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an
ongoing basis;
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Level 2 — Valuations are based on direct and indirect observable inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1.
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for the asset, such as the terms of the security and market-based inputs;

Level 3 — Valuations are based on techniques that use significant inputs that are unobservable. The valuation of Level 3 assets
and liabilities requires the greatest degree of judgment. These measurements may be made under circumstances in which there
is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to
the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment. In making the assessment, the Company considers factors specific
to the asset. In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In
such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is classified is determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The Company’s fair value measurements in each reporting period include cash equivalents, debt instruments, share-
based awards, SAFEs, warrants, contingent considerations and earn-out liabilities. The Company’s financial instruments of
accounts receivable, accounts payablea and accrued expenses are stated at their carrying value, which approximates fair value
due to the short time to the expected receipt or payment date. The Company remeasures its simple agreements for future equity
(“SAFEs”), warrants, contingent considerations and earn-out liabilities associated with business combinations using Level 3 fair
value measurements.

Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is availablea that is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
The chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) is the Chief Executive Officer. The Company has multiple business activities
and are managed and held accountable for operations, operating results and plans for levels or components below the
consolidated unit level by individual segment managers. However, discrete financial information is not reviewed by CODM as
the operating results of the Company are reviewed by the CODM only on a consolidated basis. Accordingly, the Company has
one operating segment, and therefore, one reportable segment.

Revenue

Revenue is primarily derived from the design and sale of semiconductor solutions. Revenue is recognized within the scope of
ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company recognizes product revenue in the consolidated statement of
operations when it satisfies performance obligations under the terms of its contracts and upon transfer of control at a point in
time when title transfers either upon shipment to or receipt by the customer as determined by the contractualt shipping terms of
the contract, net of accruals for estimated sales returnst and allowances. Sales and other taxes the Company collects, if any, are
excluded from revenue. Product revenue arrangements do not contain significant financing components.

The Company generally offers a limited warrantyt to customers covering a period of twelve months which obligates the
Company to repair or replace manufacturing defective products. The warranty is not sold separately and does not represent a
separate performancff e obligation. Therefore, such warranties are accounted for under ASC 460, Guarantees, and the estimated
costs of warrantyt claims are accrued as cost of goods sold in the period the related revenue is recorded. Infrequently, the
Company offers an extended limited warrantyt to customers for certain products. The Company accrues for known warranty and
indemnification issues if a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated.

Engineering services contracts with customers contain only one distinct performancff e obligation, which is design services for
integrated circuits (“ICs”) based on agreed upon specifications. Engineering services contracts typically also include the
purchase, at the customer’s option, of ICs at agreed upon prices subsequent to completion of ICs design services. The Company
has determined that the option to purchase ICs is not a material right and has not allocated transaction price to this provision.

For ICs development arrangements, revenue is recognized over time as services are provided based on the terms of the contract
on an input basis, using costs incurred as the measure of progress and is recorded as contract revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations. The costs incurred represent the most reliablea measure of transfer of control to the customer. Revenue
is deferred for amounts billed or received prior to delivery of the services.

Practictt al Expedixx ents and Elections

ASC 606 requires disclosure of the aggregate amount of transaction price that is allocated to performance obligations that have
not yet been satisfied as of the reporting periods presented. The guidance provides certain practical expedients that limit this
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requirement and, therefore, disclosure of the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for (i) contracts with an original
expected length of one year or less and (ii) contracts for which revenue is recognized at the amount to which the Company has
the right to invoice for services performed is not provided. The Company has elected not to disclose the aggregate amount of
transaction prices associated with unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts where these criteria
are met.

The Company’s policy is to capita alize any incremental costs incurred to obtain a customer contract, only to the extent that the
benefit associated with the costs is expected to be longer than one year. Capitalizablea contract costs were not significant as of
both December 31, 2021 and 2020, and accordingly, no costs have been capita alized.

The Company accounts for shipping and handling activities related to contracts with customers as costs to fulfill the promise to
transfer the associated products. When shipping and handling costs are incurred after a customer obtains control of the products,
the Company has elected to account for these as costs to fulfill the promise and not as a separate performance obligation.
Shipping and handling costs associated with the distribution of products to customers are insignificant, but if incurred, are
recorded in cost of goods sold generally when the related product is shipped to the customer.

Cost of Goods Soldll

Cost of goods sold includes cost of materials and contract manufacturing services, including semiconductor wafers processed
by third-party foundries, costs associated with packaging, assembly, testing and shipping products. In addition, cost of goods
sold includes the costs of personnel, certain royalties for embedded intellectualt property, production tooling used in the
manufacturing process, logistics, warranty,t and amortization of production mask costs. Cost of goods sold also include
amortization of certain intangible assets acquired through business combinations.

In addition to generating revenues from product shipments, the Company recognizes revenues related to certain engineering
services contracts which help offset the costs of developing ICs for customers. The costs associated with fulfilling these
contracts are expensed as incurred as research and development in the period incurred.

Research and Development Costs

Research and development expenses consist of costs incurred in performing product design and development activities
including employee compensation and benefits, third-party fees paid to consultants, occupancy costs, pre-
production engineering mask costs, engineering samples and prototypes, packaging, test development and product qualification
costs. In certain situations, the Company enters into engineering services agreements with certain customers to develop ICs.
The costs incurred in satisfying these contracts are recorded as research and development costs. Research and development
expenses also include amortization of certain intangible assets acquired through business combinations. All research and
development costs are expensed as incurred.

Selling,ll General,ll and Administraii tivett CostsCC

Selling, general, and administrative costs include employee compensation and benefits for sales, executive management,
finance, accounting, legal, human resources and other administrative personnel. In addition, it includes marketing and
advertising, outside legal, tax and accounting services, insurance, and occupancy costs and related overhead costs allocated
based on headcount. Selling, general, and administrative costs also include amortization of certain intangible assets acquired
through business combinations. Selling, general, and administrative costs are expensed as incurred.

Accounts Receivablell

Accounts receivable consist of amounts due primarily from customers for product sales and engineering services agreements.
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company accounts for potential losses in
accounts receivable utilizing the allowance method. The Company closely monitors outstanding accounts receivable and
considers its knowledge of customers, historical losses, and current economic conditions in establia shing the allowance for
doubtful accounts. The Company did not have material write-offs in any period presented.

Inventory,r Net

The Company values inventories at the lower of cost or net realizable value on a first-in, first-out basis. Cost is computed using
standard cost, which approximates actual cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories are reduced for write-downs based on
periodic reviews forff evidence of slow-moving or obsolete parts. The write-down is based on the comparison between inventory
on hand and forecasted customer demand for each specific product. Once written down, inventory write-downs are not reversed
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until the inventory is sold or scrapped. Inventory write-downs are also establia shed when conditions indicate the net realizable
value is less than cost due to physical deterioration, technological obsolescence, changes in price level or other causes. All
inventory provisions are recorded to cost of goods sold in the consolidated statement of operations.

Property and Equipmeii nt, Net

The Company’s property and equipment primarily consist of lab equipment, production tooling and masks, equipment, furnituret
and fixtures,t leasehold improvements, and computer hardware and software. Property and equipment are recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of
between three and seven years and for leasehold improvements the lesser of the remaining lease term or useful life. Major
improvements are capia talized while routine repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred.

Production masks with discernible future benefits, namely that they will be used to manufacture products to service customer
demand, are capia talized and amortized over the estimated useful life of four years. Production masks being used for research
and development or testing do not meet the criteria for capia talization and are expensed as research and development costs.

Intangiblett Assets, Net

The Company’s intangible assets include intangible assets acquired from business combinations, intellectualt property (“IP”)
and software licensed from third parties. The majoa rity of the intangible assets have finite lives, except for those related to in-
progress research and development (“IPR&D”) and are amortized over a period of two to seven years, on a straight-line basis,
which approximates the pattern in which economic benefits of these assets are expected to be utilized. IPR&D is considered to
have indefinite life until the abandonment or completion of the associated research and development efforts. If the development
is abandoned in the future, these assets will be expensed in the period of abandonment. If and when the activities are completed,
management will make a determination of the useful lives and methods of amortization of these assets.

Impairmerr nt of Long-Lin ved Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, consisting of property and equipment and intangible assets, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryingrr amount of an asset may not be recoverablea . The
Company regularly reviews its operating performance for indicators of impairment. Factors considered important that could
trigger an impairment review include a significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future
operating results, or a significant change in the manner of the use of the assets. Recoverabila ity of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carryingrr amount of an asset (or asset group) to estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset (or asset group). If the carryingrr amount of an asset (or asset group) exceeds its estimated
undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized to the extent the fair value is less than the carrying value.
The Company did not record any impairment to long-lived assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Business Combinationii s

The Company accounts for its business acquisitions under the ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations guidance for business
combinations. The total cost of acquisitions is allocated to the underlying identifiablea net assets based on their respective
estimated fair values. Determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed requires management’s judgment and
often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptim ons, including assumptim ons with respect to future cash inflows and
outflows, discount rates, asset lives and market multiples, among other items.

Goodwillll

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration of an acquired business over the fair value of the
identifiablea net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment at a reporting unit level on an annual
basis on October 1, or more frequently if circumstances change or an event occurs that would more likely than not reduce the
fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount.

Significant judgment may be required when goodwill is assessed for impairment. Qualitative factors may be assessed to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If the
assessment of all relevant qualitative factors indicates that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is
greater than its carrying amount, a quantitative goodwill impairment test is not necessary. If the assessment of all relevant
qualitative factors indicates that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount,
the Company will perform a quantitative goodwill impairment test. The quantitative impairment test for goodwill consists of a
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comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying value, including the goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. If
the carryingrr value of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the Company will recognize an impairment loss equal to the amount
of the excess, limited to the amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. Application of the impairment test requires
judgement, including the identification of reporting units, assignment of assets and liabilities to reporting units and the
determination of fair value of each reporting unit.

Warrant Liabili itll ytt

The Company accounts for the public and private placement warrants issued in connection with the Transaction in accordance
with ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging—Contractstt in Entity’stt Own Equitytt (“ASC 815”), under which the warrants do not
meet the criteria for equity classification and must be recorded as liabilities. As the warrants meet the definition of a derivative
as contemplated in ASC 815, the warrants are measured at fair value at inception and at each reporting date in accordance with
ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, with changes in fair value recognized as a component of Other income (expense),x net on
the consolidated statement of operations.

Earn-out Liabilii itll ytt

The earn-out shares have been categorized into two components: (i) those associated with stockholders with vested equity at the
closing of the Transaction that will be earned upon achievement of the earn-out milestones (the “Vested Shares”) and (ii) those
associated with stockholders with unvested equity at the closing of the Transaction that will be earned over the remaining
service period with the Company on their unvested equity shares and upon achievement of the earn-out milestones (the
“Unvested Shares”). The Vested Shares are classified as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and the Unvested Shares
are equity-classified share-based compensation to be recognized over time. The earn-out liability was initially measured at fair
value at the closing of the Transaction and subsequently remeasured at the end of each reporting period. The change in fair
value of the earn-out liability is recorded as part of Other income (expense),x net in the consolidated statement of operations.

Upon the achievement of the first earn-out milestones, the liabia lity classifiedff portion was remeasured to its fair value and
reclassified to equity. The final change in fair value of the earn-out liability is recorded as part of Othett r income (expee ense), net in
the consolidated statement of operations.

The estimated fair value of the earn-out liability was determined using a Monte Carlo simulation that simulated the future path
of the Company’s stock price over the earn-out period. The assumptim ons utilized in the calculation are based on the achievement
of certain stock price milestones including projected stock price, volatility, and risk-free rate.

Share-Based Compensationtt

The Company recognizes compensatm ion expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors. The fair
value of share-based payment awards is amortized over the requisite service period, which is defineff d as the period during which
an employee is required to provide service in exchange for an award. The Company generally uses a straight-line attribution
method for all grants that include only a service condition. Awards with both performance and service conditions are expensed
over the service period for each separately vesting tranche.

Share-based compensation expense recognized during the period includes actual expense on vested awards and expense
associated with unvested awards. Forfeiturest are recorded as incurred.

The determination of fair value of restricted and certain performance stock awards and units is based on the value of the
Company’s stock on the date of grant with performancff e awards and units adjusted for the actual outcome of the underlying
performance condition.

Income Taxes

As a result of the Transaction, indie Semiconductor, Inc. became the holding company for ADK LLC. ADK LLC is treated as a
partnership for U.S. federal and most applicable state and local income tax purposes. As a partnership, ADK LLC is not subject
to U.S. federal and certain state and local income taxes. Any taxable income or loss generated by ADK LLC is passed through
to and included in the taxabla e income or loss of its members, including indie, based on its economic interest held in the
partnership. indie is taxed as a corporation and is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes with respect to its
allocabla e share of any taxable income or loss of ADK LLC, as well as any stand-alone income or loss generated by indie.
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Income taxes are recognized based upon our underlying annual blended federal, state and foreign income tax rates for the year.
As the sole managing member of ADK LLC, indie Semiconductor, Inc. consolidates the financial results of ADK LLC and its
subsidiaries. ADK LLC is treated as a partnership and therefore not subject to U.S. federal and most applicablea state and local
income tax. Any taxable income or loss generated by ADK LLC and its subsidiaries is passed through to and included in the
taxable income or loss of its members, including indie Semiconductor, Inc., based on its economic interest held in ADK LLC.
Further, indie Semiconductor Inc. is taxed as a corporation and is subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes with
respect to its allocable share of any taxable income or loss of ADK LLC, as well as any stand-alone income or loss generated by
indie. As of December 31, 2021, the Company's income tax benefit is attributable to its Non-US operations.

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method pursuant to ASC 740 for its corporate
subsidiaries. Under this method, the Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences
attributablea to differences between the financial statement carryingrr amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.rr Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized based on all available positive and negative evidence. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company continues to maintain a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

The Company recognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on a two-step process regarding recognition and
measurement. The Company recognizes a tax benefit only if it is more likely than not the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the local taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position. Then the Company measures the tax
benefits recognized in the financial statements from such positions based on the largest benefit greater than 50% likelihood of
being realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority. The changes in recognition or measurement are reflected
in the period in which the change in judgment occurs based on new information not previously available. As of December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Company has not identified any uncertain tax positions.

The Company records interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in its tax provision. As of December 31, 2021
and 2020, no accrued interest or penalties are recorded on the consolidated balance sheet, and the Company has not recorded
any related expenses.

Comprehm ensive Loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments of $(1,365) and $158 represent the differenceff between net loss and comprehensive
loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Net Loss Per Share Attributtt ablett to Common Stockholdett rs

The Company’s basic net loss per share attributablea to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net loss attributablea
to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. The
computation of net loss attributablea to common stockholders is computed by deducting net earnings or loss attributablea to non-
controlling interests from the consolidated net earnings or loss. The diluted net loss per share attributablea to common
stockholders is computed by giving effect to all potential dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding for the period. The
dilutive effect of these potential common shares is reflected in diluted earnings per share by application of the treasury stock
method.

Recent Accountingtt Pronouncements

Recentlyll Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”), whereby lessees will be required to
recognize for all leases at the commencement date a lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments
arising frff om a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee’s right
to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term. Under the new guidance, lessor accounting is largely
unchanged. A modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented in the consolidated financial statements must be applied. The modified retrospective approach
would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired before the earliest comparative period presented. The FASB
issued ASU 2019-10-FinancFF ial Instruments-CreditCC Losses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), and Leases
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(Topic 842): Effeff ctive Dates in November 2019 and ASU 2020-05-Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and
Leases (Topic 842): Effeff ctive Dates for Certain Entities in June 2020. The ASUs change some effective dates for ASU 2016-02
on leasing. After applying ASU 2019-10 and 2020-05, ASU 2016-02 is effective for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021.

Management developed a cross-functional team to evaluate and implement the new lease guidance and has substantially
completed the implementation of a third-party software solution to facilitate compliance with the accounting and reporting
requirements. The team continues to review existing lease arrangements, and has collected and loaded a significant portion of
the lease portfolio into the software. Additionally, management continues to enhance its accounting systems and update
business processes and controls related to the new guidance for leases. Collectively, these activities are expected to enablea the
Company to meet the new accounting and disclosure requirements upon adoption in the first quarter of fiscal 2022.

The Company has elected to apply the transition requirements on January 1, 2022 rather than at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. This approach allows for a cumulative effect adjustment in the period of adoption, and prior
periods will not be restated. In addition, the Company has elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the
transition guidance, which does not require reassessment of prior conclusions related to contracts containing a lease, lease
classification and initial direct lease costs. As an accounting policy election, the Company will exclude short-term leases (term
of 12 months or less) from the balance sheet presentation and will account for non-lease and lease components in a contract as a
single lease component for certain asset classes. The Company is finalizing its evaluation and it estimates the impact on its
consolidated balance sheet from the recognition of right-of-use asset and lease liability will be significant. However, the impact
to its consolidated statements of operations, comprehem nsive income and cash flows will not be material.

In June 2016, hthe FASB ame d dnded guidaguidance rel dlated to iimpaiirment of ifina inci lal iinstruments as part of ASU 2016-13, FFinanci lal
IInstrumet nts – Cr dedit Losses ((Topic )326): Measurement ofof Cr dedit Losses on Financialal IInstrumet nts, hiwhichh lreplaces hthe iinc durred
lloss iimpaiirment hmethodologyodology iwithh an expect ded credidit lloss dmodell for hiwhichh a com ypany recognizognizes an lalllowance bbas ded on hthe
es itimate of expect ded credidit lloss. hiThis ASU irequires ienti ities to measure hthe iimpaiirment of certaiin fifina inci lal iinstruments,
iincl diludi gng accounts rec iei blvable, bbas ded on expect ded llosses rathher hthan iinc durred llosses. hiThis ASU iis effectiive for fifiscall yyears
begibeginningnning after Dece bmber 15, 2022, iwithh earlyrly dadoptiion permiittedd, dand ilwilll bbe effectiive for hthe Compa yny begibeginningnning iin 2023.
hThe Compa yny iis curre lntlyy evallua iti gng hthe iimpact of hthe new stand ddard on hthe Compa yny’s cons lioliddat ded fifina inci lal statements andd
lrelat ded didiscllosures.

In Dece bmber 2019, hthe FASB iissuedd ASU 2019-12, IIncome Taxes ((Topic )740) - lSimplifyfyi ging hthe Accounti gng forfor Income Taxes,
hiwhi hch isim lipli ifies hthe acc iounti gng for iincome taxes byby removingoving certaiin exceptiions to hthe ggenerall iprinci liples of ASC 740, IIncome
Taxes. hThe ame dndments lalso iimprove consiistent liapplica ition of dand isim lipli yfy U.S. GAAP for hother areas of ASC 740 byby
lcl iarifyingfying dand am diendi gng iexi isti gng guidaguidance. ASU 2019-12 iis effectiive for fifiscall yyears begibeginningnning after Dece bmber 15, 2020 ( d(and
Dece bmber 15, 2021 for blinonpublic com ipanies)) dand earlyrly dadoptiion iis permiittedd. De dipendi gng on hthe ame dndment, dadoptiion mayy bbe
lappliiedd on a retrospectiive, dimodififiedd retrospectiive, or prospectiive bbasiis. hThe Com ypany ddoes not expect the impact to its

consolidated financial statements to be material.

Recentlyll Adoptedd d Accounting Pronouncementstt

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-04, Simplifyiff ng the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The
new guidance eliminates Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test and instead requires that an entity measure the impairment of
goodwill assigned to a reporting unit if the carryingrr value of assets and liabilities assigned to the reporting unit including
goodwill exceed the reporting unit's fair value. The new guidance must be adopted for annual and interim goodwill tests in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company early adopted this update for the year ended December 31, 2021
and the impacts to its consolidated financial statements were not material.

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’stt Own
Equitytt (ASU 2020-06), which simplifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of liabilities and
equity, including convertible instruments and contracts in an entity’s own equity. Additionally, ASU 2020-06 requires the
application of the if-converted method to calculate the impact of convertible instruments on diluted earnings per share (EPS).
ASU 2020-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2020. ASU No. 2020-06 can be adopted on either a fully retrospective or modified retrospective

INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

65



basis. The Company early adopted this update on January 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective method of transition and the
impact to its consolidated financial statements was not material.

In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contractt t Assets and
Contract t Liabilities from Contractt ts with Customersrr . ASU 2021-08 requires the company acquiring contract assets and contract
liabilities obtained in a business combination to recognize and measure them in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from
Contractstt withtt Customers. At the acquisition date, the company acquiring the business should record related revenue, as if it
had originated the contract. Before the update such amounts were recognized by the acquiring company at fair value. The
amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, including in interim periods, for any financial statements that have not yet been
issued. The Company early adopted this update for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the impacts to its consolidated
financial statements were not material.

3) Business Combinations

The Company acquired City Semiconductor, Inc. (“City Semi”) in May 2020 and both TeraXion and On Design Israel in
October 2021. These acquisitions were recorded by allocating the purchase consideration to the net assets acquired based on
their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the purchase consideration for the acquisition over the fair
value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. The fair values were based on management’s analysis, including work
performed by third-party valuation specialists. The following presents the final allocation of the purchase consideration to the
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assets acquired and liabilities assumed for City Semi and preliminary allocation of the purchase consideration to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed for TeraXion and OnDesign on December 31, 2021:

City Semi TeraXion OnDesign Israel
Purchase price - cash consideration $ 138 $ 74,050 $ 6,107
Add: debt paid at closing — 6,857 —
Less: cash acquired — (5,625) (1,133)
Net cash paid 138 75,282 4,974

Total equity consideration 711 82,441 —

Purchase price - accrued cash consideration — — 7,500
Contingent consideration 1,180 — 4,000
Net consideration $ 2,029 $ 157,723 $ 16,474

Fair value of net assets and liabia lities assumed:
Current assets other than cash — 7,627 119
Property and equipment — 6,009 1,315
Intangible assets - Software license 139 — —
Developed technology 369 43,594 5,077
In-progress research & development — 10,304 1,562
Customer relationships — 12,682 —
Backlog — 2,378 —
Trade name — 6,125 —
Other non-current assets — — 66
Current liabilities (177) (5,840) (754)
Deferreff d revenue (41) (1,025) —
Deferreff d tax liabilities, non-current — (20,272) (1,578)
Other non-current liabilities — — —
Long-term debt — (7,580) —
Total fair value of net assets acquired 290 54,002 5,807

Goodwill $ 1,739 $ 103,721 $ 10,667

Any changes in the estimated faiff r values of the net assets recorded forff the business combination of TeraXion or On Design
Israel upon the finalization of more detailed analyses of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of the transaction
will change the allocation of the purchase price. Any subsequent changes to the purchase allocation duringd the measurement
period that are material will be recorded in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined.

Trade receivables and payablea s, as well as other current and non-current assets and liabilities, were valued at the existing
carrying value as they represented the fair value of those items at the acquisition date, based on management’s judgments and
estimates.

Due to the fact that the acquisitions related to TeraXion and On Design Israel have just recently occurred in the current interim
period, the magnitudet of the transaction, and the significant information to be obtained and analyzed, some of which resides in
foreign jurisdictions, the Company’s fair value estimates forff the purchase price allocation are preliminary and may change
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during the allowable measurement period, which is up tu o the point the Company obtains and analyzes the information that
existed as of the date of the acquisition necessary to determine the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, but
in no case to exceed more than one year fromff the date of acquisition. As of April 8, 2022, the Company had not finalized the
determination of fair values allocated to various assets and liabilities, including, but not limited to, property, plant and
equipment, identifiablea intangible assets, other assets, deferred taxes, goodwill, tax uncertainties, income taxes payablea , and
other liabia lities. Specifically for the valuation of intangibles assets acquired, the Company used publicly available
benchmarking information, as well as a variety of other assumptim ons, including market participant assumptions to determine the
preliminary values. Any changes in the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed during the measurement period
may result in material adjustments to goodwill.

Acquisitiontt of Cityii Semiconductor, Inc

On May 13, 2020, the Company acquired certain assets and liabilities of City St emi, which had developed technology related to
analog and mixed-signal integrated circuitry, with a focusff on high-speed analog-to-digital converters and digital-to analog-
intellectualt property cores. The Company accounted for the acquisition as a business combination. The transaction costs
associated with the acquisition were not material and were expensed as incurred.

Total purchase consideration transferred at closing included contingent consideration that had a faiff r value of $1,180 as of the
acquisition date. The maximum contingent consideration payablea in connection with the acquisition is $2,000. The acquisition
date faiff r value of the contingent consideration was determined based on the Company’s assessment of the probability of
achieving the performancff e targets that ultimately obligate the Company to transfer additional consideration to the seller. The
contingent consideration is comprised of two tranches. The first tranche is payablea , up tu o a maximum of $500, upon the
achievement of cash collection targets within twelve months of the acquisition, and $456 was achieved in May 2021. The
second tranche is payablea , up tu o a maximum of $1,500, upon the shipment of a product incorporating the acquired developed
technology. The fair value of any outstanding contingent consideration liabilities will be remeasured as of the end of each
reporting period with any resulting remeasurement gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. In
September 2021, the Company paid off the first tranche of the contingent consideration. The fair value of the second tranche
contingent consideration liabila ities was $980 as of December 31, 2021. The fair value of the first and second tranche contingent
consideration liabilities was $500 and $900, respectively, as of December 31, 2020. The fair value of the first tranche
contingent consideration liability as of December 31, 2020 was reflected in Other current liabilities within the consolidated
balance sheet and the fair value of the second tranche contingent consideration liability as of December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020 is reflected in Other long-term liabilities.

In connection with the acquisition, the two existing employees of City St emi, including the founder and sole shareholder of Cityt
Semi, entered into employment agreements with the Company. As there is a service condition associated with these agreements,
the related compensation expense is accounted for separately from the acquisition. The Company recognizes the related
compensation expense as research and development expense in the consolidated statement of operations on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period.

The Company estimates that the useful life of the acquired developed technology intangible asset is seven years and the useful
life of the acquired software license intangible asset is approxima ately one year, which represents the remaining duration of the
software license. The excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill,
which is primarily attributed to the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The amounts of revenue and earnings of City St emi included in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations from the
acquisition date of May 13, 2020 through December 31, 2020 are $591 and $(396), respectively.

The unaudited pro forma financial information shown below summarizes the combined results of operations for the Company
and City Semi as if the closing of the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2020.

Year ended
December 31, 2020

Combined revenue $ 23,388
Combined net loss before income taxes (96,121)
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The unaudited pro forma financial informatff ion includes adjustments that are directly attributablea to the business combination
and are factually supportablea . The adjustments primarily reflect the amortization of acquired developed technology and
compensation expense related to consideration to be transferred to the founder upon the second anniversary of his employment.
The unaudited pro forma financial informatff ion is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the
operating results that would have been realized if the acquisition had taken place on January 1, 2020.

On June 10, 2021, in connection with the closing of the Transaction, the Company paid $900 to redeem the Class H units
previously issued.

Acquisitiontt of TERAEE XION INC

On August 27, 2021, indie entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which indie’s
wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary (“Purchaser”) agreed to purchase all of the outstanding capita al stock of TeraXion from the
existing stockholders. The transaction was completed on October 12, 2021 and TeraXion became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ADK, LLC as a result of this acquisition.

The aggregate purchase price of this acquisition is CAD$200,000 (the “Purchase Price”), which is payablea 50% in cash and
50% in indie’s shares of Class A common stock, subject to various purchase price adjustments. Upon completion of the
transaction, the total consideration paid forff this acquisition consisted of (i) approximately $75,282 in cash (including debt paid
at closing and net of cash acquired); (ii) the issuance by indie of 5,805,144 shares of indie Class A common stock with a faiff r
value of $65,192 based on the market value of $11.23 per share; and (iii) the assumption by indie of TeraXion options, which
became exercisable to purchase 1,542,332 shares of indie Class A common stock with a faiff r value of $17,249.

TeraXion is a market leader in the design and manufacture of innovative photonic components. The Company paid a premium
(i.e. goodwill) over the fair value of the net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired as this acquisition accelerates
indie’s vision of becoming a semiconductor and software level solutions provider forff multiple sensor modalities spanning
advanced driver-assistance systems (“ADAS”) and autonomous vehicles. The goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax
purposes.

The amounts of revenue and earnings of TeraXion included in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations from the
acquisition date of October 12, 2021 through December 31, 2021 are $6,075 and $(1,474), respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, indie incurred approximately $1,640 of acquisition-related costs, which were primarily
legal expense and recorded as part of the Selling, General and Adminisdd trative expenses.

The unaudited pro forma financial informatff ion shown below summarizes the combined results of operations for the Company
and TeraXion as if the closing of the acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2021:

Year ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Combined revenue $ 66,788 $ 43,783
Combined net loss before income taxes (126,350) (104,768)

The unaudited pro forma financial informatff ion includes adjustments that are directly attributablea to the business combination
and are factually supportablea . Pro forma information reflects adjustments that are expected to have a continuing impact on the
Company’s results of operations and are directly attributablea to the acquisition. The unaudited pro forma results include
adjustments to reflect, among other things, direct transaction costs relating to the acquisition, the incremental intangible asset
amortization to be incurred based on the preliminary values of each identifiablea intangible asset, and to eliminate a portion of
the interest expense related to legacy TeraXion’s former loans, which were repaid upon completion of the acquisition. The
unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the
operating results that would have been realized if the acquisition had taken place on January 1, 2020.
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Acquisiii tioii n of Oo N DOO esign Israel Ltd.

On October 1, 2021, indie entered into a definitive agreement and completed its acquisition of ON Design Israel Ltd. (“ON
Design Israel”) for $4,974 in cash paid uponu close (net of cash acquired), $7,500 will be paid in 2022 and is reflected in Other
current liabilities as of December 31, 2021, and up to $7,500 will be paid uponu achievement of certain milestones. Upon
completion of the acquisition, ON Design Israel was renamed to indie Semiconductor Design Israel Ltd and became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Company paid a premium (i.e. goodwill) over the fair value of the net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired as
this acquisition brings the Company an engineering development team with broad experience in radar system implementation,
which will accelerate indie’s entry into the radar market and enablea the Company to capturea strategic opportunities among Tier
1 customers. The goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, indie incurred approximately $365 of acquisition-related costs, which were primarily
legal expense and recorded as part of the Selling, General and Adminisdd trative expenses.

Total purchase considerations transferred at closing also included contingent consideration that had a faiff r value of $4,000 as of
the acquisition date. The maximum contingent consideration payablea in connection with the acquisition is $7,500. The
acquisition date faiff r value of the contingent considerations was determined based on the Company’s assessment of the
probability of achieving the perfoff rmance targets that ultimately obligate the Company to transfer additional consideration to the
seller. The contingent consideration is comprised of two tranches. The first tranche (“Tapeout”a ) is payablea , up tu o a maximum of
$2,500, upon the achievement of tapeout of the product design within 30 months of the acquisition. The second tranche
(“Design Win”) is payablea , up tu o a maximum of $5,000, upon indie’s achievement of a design win within 36 months of the
acquisition. The fair value of any outstanding contingent consideration liabilities will be remeasured as of the end of each
reporting period with any resulting remeasurement gains or losses recognized in the consolidated statement of operations. The
fair value of Tapeouta and Design Win contingent consideration liabilities was $1,817 and $2,222, respectively, as of
December 31, 2021. Both the fair value of Tapeout and Design Win contingent consideration liability as of December 31, 2021
were reflected in refleff cted in Other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Pro forma financial information forff the year ended December 31, 2021 for ON Design Israel is not disclosed as the results are
not material to the Company’s consolidated finaff ncial statements.

4) Inventory, Net

Inventory, net consists of the folff lowing:

December 31,

2021 2020

Raw materials $ 2,380 $ —
Work-in-process 6,301 4,277
Finished goods 2,151 882
Inventory, gross 10,832 5,159

Less: Inventory reserves 1,752 2,259
Inventory, net $ 9,080 $ 2,900

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized write-downs in the value of inventory of $173
and $618, respectively.
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5) Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net consists of the folff lowing:

December 31,
Useful life 2021 2020
(in years)

Production tooling 4 $ 10,158 $ 3,925
Lab ea quipment 4 4,489 1,757
Office equipment 3 - 7 1,893 1,077
Leasehold improvements * 395 129
Construction in progress 256 —
Property and equipment, gross 17,191 6,888
Less: Accumulated depreciation 6,101 4,719
Property and equipment, net $ 11,090 $ 2,169

* Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining lease term or estimated useful life of the leasehold
improvement.

The Company recognized depreciation expense of $1,198 and $947 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Fixed assets not yet in service consist primarily of capita alized internal-use software and certain tooling and other equipment that
have not been placed into service.

6) Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets, net consist of the following:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Weighted
average
remaining
useful life

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Weighted
average
remaining
useful life

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Developed technology 6.7 $ 49,040 $ (1,374) $ 47,666 6.4 $ 369 $ (35) $ 334
Software licenses 2.5 23,297 (6,286) 17,011 0.6 4,391 (3,759) 632
Customer relationships 6.7 12,682 (365) 12,317 — — —
Intellectual property
licenses 1.5 1,736 (1,687) 49 1.7 1,736 (1,614) 122
Trade names 6.7 6,125 (182) 5,943 — — —
Backlog 1.8 2,378 (239) 2,139 — — —
Effect of exchange rate
on gross carrying

t
(631) — (631) — — —

Intangible assets with
finite lives 94,627 (10,133) 84,494 6,496 (5,408) 1,088

IPR&D 11,866 — 11,866 — — —
Effect of exchange rate
on gross carrying

t
(75) — (75) — — —

Total intangible assets
with indefinite lives 11,791 — 11,791 — — —

Total intangible assets $ 106,418 $ (10,133) $ 96,285 $ 6,496 $ (5,408) $ 1,088

The Company obtained software licenses which it uses for its research and development efforts related to its products. In fiscal
2021, the Company obtained additional software licenses. Further, the Company acquired developed technology, customer
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relationships, trade names, backlog, and IPR&D as a result of the business combinations. See Note 3 - Business Combinations
for additional information.

Intangible assets with finiff te lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected period to be benefited by future cash
flows. The Company monitors and assesses these assets for impairment on a periodic basis. As of December 31, 2021, it is
determined that there was no impairment of intangible assets.

Amortization of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $4,769 and $1,705, respectively, and is
included within Cost of go oods sold, Research and development expensx es, and Selling, general and administrii ative expensx es
based their respective nature, in the consolidated statements of operations.

Based on the amount of definite-lived intangible assets subject to amortization as of December 31, 2021, amortization expense
for each of the next fivff e fisff cal years is expected to be as follows:

2022 $ 17,538
2023 17,729
2024 13,021
2025 9,607
2026 9,607
Thereafter 16,992
Total $ 84,494

7) Goodwill

The following tablea sets forth the carrying amount and activity of goodwill as of December 31, 2021:

Amount
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 1,739
Acquisitions (Note 3) 114,388
Effect of exchange rate on goodwill (921)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 115,206

Goodwill increased by $114,388 in fiscal 2021 due to acquisitions completed duringd the period. See Note 3 forff a detailed
discussion of goodwill acquired.

The Company performed an impairment test of its goodwill as of the first day of the fourth fiscal quarter in accordance with its
regularly scheduled testing. The results of this test indicated that the Company’s goodwill was not impaired. There were no
other indicators of impaim rment noted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021.

8) Warranties

The Company’s warranty liabia lities are included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. The following tablea identifies the changes in the Company’s aggregate product
warranty lt iabia lities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31,
2021 2020

Balance at the beginning of period $ 201 $ 192
Assumed warranty liability fromff acquisition 226 —
Accruals for warranties issued 151 86
Warranty obligations satisfiedff during the period (25) (77)
Balance at the end of period $ 553 $ 201
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9) Debt

The following tablea sets forth the components of debt as of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31,
2021 2020

Principal
outstanding

Unamortized
discount and
issuance cost

Carrying
amount

Principal
outstanding

Unamortized
discount and
issuance cost

Carrying
amount

Trinity term loan, due 2022 $ — $ — $ — $ 12,000 $ (665) $ 11,335
Short term loans, due 2022 810 — 810 459 — 459
PPP loan, due 2022 — — — 1,868 — 1,868
Tropez convertible loan, due
2021 — — — 2,000 — 2,000

CIBC loan, due 2026 7,102 (19) 7,083 — — —
Total term loans 7,912 (19) 7,893 16,327 (665) 15,662

Revolving line of credit — — — 1,675 — 1,675
Embry convertible debt, due
2021 — — — 3,607 (111) 3,496

Total debt $ 7,912 $ (19) $ 7,893 $ 21,609 $ (776) $ 20,833

The outstanding debt as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is classified in the consolidated balance sheets as follff ows:

December 31,
2021 2020

Current liabilities – Current debt obligations $ 2,275 $ 8,488
Noncurrent liabilities – Long-term debt net of current maturities 5,618 12,345

$ 7,893 $ 20,833

Embry Convertibleii Subordinateii d NotesNN Payable

On December 4, 2012, the Company entered into two convertible note and exchange agreements with an investor, pursuant to
which the entire outstanding principal of $3,500 and corresponding accrued interest of $107 held under existing loan
agreements were exchanged forff two convertible subordinated notes with aggregate principal amounts of $2,604 and $1,003.
The convertible subordinated notes bore interest of 0.93% per annum, which was compounded annually. The aggregate
principal and all accrued and unpaid interest were due in full on December 4, 2017. On December 3, 2017, the Company
entered into a 12-month extension of these two convertible note and exchange agreements.

On December 3, 2018, the Company entered into a 36-month extension of these two convertible notes and exchange
agreements. The interest rate on the 36-month extension was amended to 3.07% per annum. The Company recorded a discount
on this convertible debt extension and a corresponding increase in additional paid-in capita al related to the enhanced value of the
embedded conversion options. The Company is amortizing the discount to interest expense over the 36-month extension period.

The amendments to extend the maturitt y date were treated as modifications of the debt.

The convertible subordinated notes with aggregate principal of $2,604 and $1,003 were converted into an aggregate 185,000
Class A units and 100,000 Class C units, respectively, at the investors’ discretion prior to the maturity date or automatically
upon a liquidity event, as defined in the loan agreement. The Company determined that the embedded conversion options
should not be bifurcated from their host instruments.

In December 2020, Embry assigned the notes to its affiliate, Cézanne Investments Ltd. (“Cézanne”). At December 31, 2020, the
total carrying value of such convertible subordinated notes payablea , net of unamortized discount, was $3,496. Total accrued
interest as of December 31, 2020 was $458, and is included in Accrued expensesx and other current liabilities on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. On June 10, 2021, Cézanne exercised its right to convert at the closing of the Transaction and the
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Embry convertible notes were converted to equity at their carrying value of $4,119, inclusive of $3,607 principal balance and
accrued interest of $512.

PacWest Term Loan and Revolvinll g Lineii of Creditii

The Company entered into a loan and security agreement with Pacificff Western Bank (“PacWest”, formerly Square 1 Bank) in
January 2015, that provided a term loan of up to $10,000 with a maturity date of September 2020. The term loan bore interest
equal to the greater of one percent above the prime rate in effect, or 4.5% on outstanding borrowings. In addition, the loan and
security agreement provided for a revolving line of credit. The revolving line of credit bore interest equal to the greater of
seventy-fivet basis points above the prime rate in effect, or 4.25%, on outstanding borrowings. The terms of the loan and
security agreement have been amended from time to time, with the most recent amendment dated February 21, 2021. The
amendments have extended the maturity date of the loan and adjusted the financial covenants’ borrowing limits. In August
2017 and as part of an amendment to the loan and security agreement, the Company issued a warrant to PacWest to purchase
3,388 Class G units. On June 10, 2021, these warrants were net exercised and ultimately converted into 82,187 shares of indie
Class A common stock.

During 2020, the Company entered into three amendments to the PacWest loan agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the
amendments, $889, the full amount of unpaid principal and interest was transferff red from the PacWest term loan to the
revolving line of credit as of January 30, 2020. In addition, the amendments modified certain financial covenants, including that
the Company maintain a minimum cash balance of $2,300 and adjusted d the borrowing limits to $2,000.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had no outstanding balance on the term loan.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the revolving line of credit had an outstanding balance of zero and $1,675, respectively.
The Company’s borrowings under the term loan and revolving line of credit were subjeu ct to an aggregate borrowing limit of
$20,000 and $2,000 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Total borrowings at any given time under the line of
credit are limited to a percentage of domestic accounts receivablea s less than 90 days past due and other factors.

The revolving line of credit is subject to debt covenants which, if violated, could result in the outstanding balance becoming
immediately due. The Company has complied with or obtained waivers for all such covenants as of the date these financial
statements were issued.

On November 5, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the PacWest loan agreement that (i) increased the maximum
borrowing capaca ity under the revolving line of credit to $20,000, (ii) limited the security interests of the bank to the cash
collateral set at 102.5% of the drawn amount of the loan, (iii) removed various reporting and restrictive covenants, (iv) extended
the maturity date to November 4, 2022 and (iv) reduced the interest rate to 2.1% per annum. In addition, the amendment
requires the Company to collateralize a cash balance equal to the total outstanding balance in a cash security account with
PacWest. Upon execution of the amendment, the Company repaid the outstanding balance of $1,675 under the original line of
credit to this new arrangement.

Trinitytt Term Loan

In March 2018, the Company entered into a term loan agreement with Trinity Capia tal Fund (“Trinity”) to borrow $15,000 at a
rate of 11.25% per annum. In connection with such loan, the Company issued a warrant to Trinity to acquire 6,250 Class G
units at an exercise price per unit of $35.42

In October 2020, the Company entered into a new loan agreement with Trinity, which replaced the March 2018 agreement. The
new loan had a principal of $12,000, which was exchanged for the old loan’s principal balance of $11,325, lender fees of $474
and a cash payment to the Company of $194. In addition, the Company issued to Trinity 1,844 additional warrants to purchase
the Company’s Class G units, which had a fair value of $405. The new loan agreement was treated as a modification for
accounting purposes. The unamortized discount from the old loan was treated as additional debt discount on the new loan along
with the lender fees paid to and additional warrants issued to Trinity in October 2020. On June 10, 2021 these warrants were net
exercised and ultimately converted into 196,346 shares of indie Class A common stock.

The new loan had a maturity date of October 1, 2024 and interest equal to the greater of 10.75% or the Prime Rate plus 7.5%.
The term loan may be prepaid by paying the principal and interest plus a prepayment fee ranging from 4.0% to 1.0% of the
principal being repaid, depending on the length of time between the effective date and the prepayment date. Upon final
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repayment, an end-of-term fee of $720 was payablea by the Company to Trinity. The term loan was collateralized by
substantially all of the Company’s assets to the extent they were not already securing the senior debt of PacWest.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had $11,335 outstanding under the Trinity Term loans, net of the unamortized discount
and issuance cost generated as a result of the warrant issuance described in Note 14 — Stockholders’ Equity. The debt discount
and issuance costs were being amortized through interest expense over the term of the loan using the effective interest method.
The old loan required monthly interest only payments of $141 until November 2019 when repayment of principal began, and
payments increased to $493 per month. The new loan required interest only payments of $108 until October 2021 when
repayment of principal began, and payments increased to $391 per month with an effecff tive interest rate of 15.8%.

On June 21, 2021, the Company fully repaid the outstanding loan balance and the accrued interest of $13,261, including
principal of $12,000, end-of-term fee and early termination fee of $1,200 and accrued interest of $61. As a result of the
repayment, the Company recognized a loss from extinguishment of debt for $1,585, which included (i) the remaining
unamortized discount and debt issuance cost of $577 and (ii) end-of-term fee and early termination fee paid not previously
accrued of $1,008, in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Short-Tett rm Loans

Wuxi

On November 13, 2019, Wuxi entered into a short-term loan agreement with CITIC Group Corporation Ltd. with aggregate
principal balance of CNY2,000, or approximately $285, and bearing interest of 4.785% per annum. The principal balance is
denominated in Chinese Yuan and the outstanding balance is adjusted for changes in foreign currency exchange rates at each
reporting period. On November 13, 2020, the terms of the agreement were extended for twelve months, and the principal and
interest were due on November 15, 2021. On November 19, 2021, the total outstanding balance with CITIC Group Corporation
was fully paid off.

On October 15, 2020, Wuxi entered into a short-term loan agreement with Bank of Ningbo (“NBCB”) with aggregate principal
balance of CNY1,000 or approximately $151 and bearing interest of 4.785%. On April 29, 2021, Wuxi increased its short-term
loan principal with NBCB by CNY1,000 or approximately $155 to a total principal balance of CNY4,000. On October 14,
2021, the borrowing from October 15, 2020 was fully paid off. On October 18, 2021, Wuxi re-entered into a short-term loan
agreement with NBCB for CNY1,000, or approximately $150 and bearing interest of 4.785%. As of December 31, 2021, the
total outstanding short-term loan with NBCB was CNY2,000.

On November 18, 2021, Wuxi also entered into a short-term loan agreement Bank of Nanjing with aggregate principal balance
of CNY$3,000, or approximately $453 and bearing interest of 4.00%, which increased its aggregate outstanding principal
balance to CNY5,000 or $787 as of December 31, 2021.

As of December 31, 2020, the aggregate outstanding principal balance of the short-term loans was $459.

TeraXionXX

In connection with the TeraXion acquisition, on October 12, 2021, the Company assumed a short-term loan with Canada
Economic Development. This loan bears an interest rate of 8% and is payablea monthly with a maturity date of April 1, 2022.
As of December 31, 2021, the aggregate outstanding principal balance was $23.

Tropez Note

On January 31, 2020, the Company entered into a convertible loan agreement with Tropez Fund Limited (“Tropez”) with
principal amount of $2,000 and subject to interest of 12% per annum. The terms of the loan provide for a renewable 180-
day period for a maximum term of twelve months. The Company renewed the loan on July 29, 2020 for the additional 180-
day period. The note was amended on January 21, 2021 to extend the maturity date to the earlier of December 31, 2021 or the
closing of the merger with Thunder Bridge Acquisition II, Ltd. described in Note 1 — Nature of the Business and Basis of
Presentation. Additionally, the January 21, 2021 amendment removed the conversion rights associated with the loan. On
June 17, 2021, the Company fully repaid the outstanding loan balance and the accrued interest of $2,346 and the loan was
terminated.
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Paycha eck Protectiontt Program

In April 2020, the Company applied for a loan pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”) as administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (the “SBA”). In May
2020, the loan was approved, and the Company received gross proceeds from the loan in the amount of $1,868 (the “PPP
Loan”). The PPP Loan took the form of a promissory note that matures two years after the date of the note and bears interest at
a rate of 1.0% per annum. Monthly principal and interest payments, less the amount of any potential forgiveness (discussed
below), will commence in 2021. The PPP Loan provides for customary events of default, including, among others, those
relating to failure to make payments thereunder. The Company may prepay the principal of the PPP Loan at any time without
incurring any prepayment penalties. The PPP Loan is non-recourse against any individual stockholder, except to the extent that
such partyt uses the loan proceeds for an unauthorized purpose.

All or a portion of the PPP Loan may be forgiven by the SBA and lender upon application by the Company and upon
documentation of expenditurest in accordance with the SBA requirements. Under the CARES Act, loan forgiveness is availablea
for the sum of documented payroll costs, covered rent payments, and covered utilities during the applicablea period beginning on
the date of loan approval. For purposes of the CARES Act, payroll costs exclude compensation of an individual employee in
excess of $100,000, prorated annually. Not more than 25% of the forgiven amount may be for non-payroll costs. Forgiveness is
reduced if full-time headcount declines, or if salaries and wages for employees with salaries of $100,000 or less annually are
reduced by more than 25%.

On May 10, 2021, the entire balance of the PPP Loan was forgiven by the SBA and lender. As a result, the Company recorded a
gain on extinguishment of debt of $1,889, which represented the principal balance of $1,868 and accrued interest of $21, in the
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.

TeraXionXX Revolving Credit

In connection with the acquisition of TeraXion on October 12, 2021, the Company assumed a revolving credit with the
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce with a credit limit of CAD9,440 bearing interest at prime rate plus 0.25%, repayable in
monthly installments of CAD155 plus interest, maturing in October 2026. The repayment of monthly installments reduces the
credit limit over time. At December 31, 2021 the outstanding principal balance and credit limit of the loan was $7,102 or
CAD8,976. This loan is secured with an authorized credit facility of CAD7,000 from the bank, bearing interest at prime rate
plus 0.25%. This line of credit was unused at December 31, 2021.
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The table below sets forth the components of interest expense forff the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31,
2021 2020

Interest expense on Trinity term loan:
Contractual interest $ 719 $ 1,523
Amortization of discount and issuance cost 138 110

857 1,633
Interest expense on other debt obligations:
Contractual interest 322 421
Amortization discount and issuance cost 60 139

382 560
Total interest expense $ 1,239 $ 2,193

The future maturities of the debt obligations are as follff ows:

2022 $ 2,275
2023 1,469
2024 1,469
2025 1,469
Thereafter 1,230
Total $ 7,912

10) Warrant Liability

In connection with the closing of the Transaction, holders of TB2 Class A ordinary shares automatically received Class A
common stock of indie, and holders of TB2 warrants automatically received 17,250,000 warrants of indie with substantively
identical terms (“Public Warrants”). At the Closing, 8,625,000 Class B ordinary shares of TB2 owned by the Sponsor,
automatically converted into 8,625,000 shares of indie Class A common stock, and 8,650,000 private placement warrants held
by the sponsor, each exercisable for one Class A ordinary share of TB2 at $11.50 per share, automatically converted into
warrants to purchase one share of indie Class A common stock at $11.50 per share with substantively identical terms (“the
“Private Placement Warrants”). Also at the Closing, TB2 issued 1,500,000 working capita al warrants to an affiliate of the
Sponsor in satisfaction of a working capita al promissory note of $1,500 (the “Working Capital Warrants” and, together with the
Private Placement Warrants, the “Private Warrants”). These Working Capital Warrants have substantially identical terms to the
Private Placement Warrants.

The warrants may be exercised only during the period commencing on July 10, 2021 (30 days after the closing of the
Transaction) through June 10, 2026. The Company may redeem the Public Warrants at a price of $0.01 per warrant upon 30
days’ notice, only in the event that the last sale price of the Class A common stock is at least $18.00 per share for any 20 trading
days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third day prior to the date on which notice of redemption is given, provided
there is an effective registration statement and current prospectust in effect with respect to the Class A common stock underlying
such warrants duringd the 30 day redemption period. If the Company redeems the warrants as described above, management will
have the option to require all holders to exercise warrants on a “cashless basis.”

In accordance with the warrant agreement relating to the Public Warrants, the Company is required to use its best efforts to
maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement covering the warrants. If a registration statement is not effective within
90 days following the consummation of a business combination, warrant holders may, until such time as there is an effective
registration statement and during any period when the Company shall have failff ed to maintain an effective registration
statement, exercise warrants on a cashless basis pursuant to an available exemption from registration under the Securities Act.
In the event that a registration statement is not effective at the time of exercise or no exemption is availablea for a cashless
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exercise, the holder of such warrant shall not be entitled to exercise such warrant for cash and in no event (whether in the case
of a registration statement being effective or otherwise) will the Company be required to net cash settle the warrantr exercise.

The terms of the Private Warrants are identical to the Public Warrants as described above, except that the Private Warrants are
not redeemablea so long as they are held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees.

The Company has reviewed the terms of warrants to purchase its Class A common stock to determine whether warrants should
be classified as liabila ities or stockholders’ equity in its consolidated balance sheet. In order for a warrant to be classified in
stockholders’ equity, the warrant must be (a) indexed to the Company’s equity and (b) meet the conditions for equity
classification in ASC 815-40, Derivatives and Hedging – ContrCC acts itt n an Entity’stt Own Equitytt . If a warrant does not meet the
conditions for equity classification, it is carried on the consolidated balance sheet as a warrant liability measured at fair value,
with subsequent changes in the fair value of the warrant recorded in the statement of operations as change in fair value of
warrants in Other income (expense),x net. The Company determined that all warrants are required to be carried as a liabila ity in
the consolidated balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in the consolidated statement of operations (see
Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements). At the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, the warrants had an initial fair value
of $74,408, which was recorded as liabila ity and a reduction to additional paid in capital in the consolidated balance sheet.

The following tablea is a summary of the number of shares of the Company’s Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of
warrants outstanding at June 10, 2021 (there were no warrants outstanding at December 31, 2020):

Number of
Shares

Exercise
Price

Redemption
Price

Expiration
Date Classification

Initial Fair
Value

Public Warrants 17,250,000 $ 11.50 $ 18.00 June 10, 2026 Liability $ 42,435
Private Warrants 10,150,000 $ 11.50 N/A June 10, 2026 Liability $ 31,973

As of December 31, 2021, there have been no exercises of the warrants and the fair value was $100,467.

11) Contingent and Earn-Out Liabilities

Earn-Outrr Milesll tones

Certain of indie’s stockholders are entitled to receive up to 10,000,000 earn-out shares of the Company’s Class A common
stock if the earn-out milestones are met. The earn-out milestones represent two independent criteria, which each entitles the
eligible stockholders to 5,000,000 earn-out shares per milestone met. Each earn-out milestone is considered met if at any time
following the Transaction and prior to December 31, 2027, the volume weighted average price of indie’s Class A common
stock is greater than or equal to $12.50 or $15.00 for any twenty trading days within any thirty-trading day period, respectively.
Further, the earn-out milestones are also considered to be met if indie undergoes a Sale. A Sale is defined as the occurrence of
any of the following for indie: (i) engage in a “going private” transaction pursuant to Rule 13e-3 under the Exchange Act or
otherwise cease to be subject to reporting obligations under Sections 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; (ii) Class A common
stock ceases to be listed on a national security exchange, other than forff the failure to satisfy mff inimum listing requirements
under applicable stock exchange rules; or (iii) change of ownership (including a merger or consolidation) or approval of a plan
for complete liquidation or dissolution.

These earn-out shares have been categorized into two components: (i) those associated with stockholders with vested equity at
the closing of the Transaction that will be earned upon achievement of the earn-out milestones (the “Vested Shares”) and (ii)
those associated with stockholders with unvested equity at the closing of the Transaction that will be earned over the remaining
service period with the Company on their unvested equity shares and upon achievement of the Earn-Out Milestones (the
“Unvested Shares”). The Vested Shares are classified as liabia lities in the consolidated balance sheet and the Unvested Shares
are equity-classified share-based compensation to be recognized over time (see Note 17 - Share-Based Compensation). The
earn-out liability was initially measured at fair value at the closing of the Transaction and subsequently remeasured at the end of
each reporting period. The change in fair value of the earn-out liability is recorded as part of Other income (expe(( nse), net in the
consolidated statement of operations.

The estimated fair value of the earn-out liability was determined using a Monte Carlo simulation that simulated the future path
of the Company’s stock price over the earn-out period. The assumptim ons utilized in the calculation are based on the achievement
of certain stock price milestones including projected stock price, volatility, and risk-free rate.
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Escrow Shares

3,450,000 Class A common shares of indie were placed in escrow for the potential future release to the sponsors of TB2 in the
event the earn-out milestones are met. The earn-out milestones for the Escrow Shares are identical to those of the earn-out
shares. Achievement of each milestone entitles the shareholders to 50% of the total Escrow Shares. The Escrow Shares have
been accounted for as a liability and remeasured to fair value each reporting period.

At the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, the earn-out liability had an initial fair value of $119,759, which was
recorded as a long-term liability and a reduction to additional paid in capia tal in the consolidated balance sheet.

As of November 9, 2021, the first earn-out milestone was achieved while the second Earn-Out Milestone remains unachieved.
The achievement of the first earn-out milestone eliminated the variabia lity in the arrangement that previously prevented this
instrument to be equity-classified. As a result, the earn-out liabilities associated with the first Earn-Out Milestone were recorded
to Additional paid-in capital in the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value. At the same time, the unearned liabilities
associated with the second Earn-Out Milestones were also remeasured to its fair value and reclassified per ASC 815-40 to
Additional paid-in capital in the consolidated balance sheet. The total fair value associated with the first and second Earn-Out
Milestone is $158,517 and the change in fair value of $38,758 from its initial measurement date is recorded as part of Other
income (expense),x net in the consolidated statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2021, there was no liability remaining on the balance sheet.

Contingeii nt Consideratidd on

On May 13, 2020, in connection with the acquisition of Cityt Semi, the company recorded contingent consideration as a long-
term liability at a fair value of $1,180. The contingent consideration is comprised of two tranches. The first tranche is payablea ,
up to a maximum of $500, upon the achievement of cash collection targets within twelve months of the acquisition, and $456
was achieved in May 2021. The second tranche is payablea , up to a maximum of $1,500, upon the shipment of a product
incorporating the acquired developed technology. In September 2021, the Company paid off the first tranche of the contingent
consideration. The fair value of the second tranche contingent consideration liabilities was $980 as of December 31, 2021.

On October 1, 2021, in connection with the acquisition of ON Design Israel Ltd, the company recorded contingent
consideration as a long-term liability at a fair value of $4,000. The contingent consideration is comprised of two tranches. The
first tranche is payablea , up to a maximum of $2,500, upon the achievement of tapeouta within 30 months of the acquisition. The
second tranche is payablea , up to a maximum of $5,000, upon indie’s achievement of a design win within 36 months of the
acquisition. The fair value of the first and second tranche contingent consideration liabilities was $1,817 and $2,222,
respectively, and are recorded in Other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2021. The
change in fair value since the acquisition date is recorded in Other income (expense),x net in the consolidated statement of
operations.

See Note 3 - Business Combinations for additional information.

12) Simple Agreements for Future Equity (“SAFEs”)

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company entered into SAFEs with existing investors and third-party investors
for total proceeds of $25,765. The SAFEs require that the Company issue equity to the SAFE holders in exchange for their
investment upon an equity raise of at least $35,000. During April, 2021, the Company entered into SAFEs with a third-party
investor for a total purchase amount of $5,000. The SAFEs require that the Company issue equity to the SAFE holders in
exchange for their investment upon an equity financing (including a SPAC transaction) with an aggregate purchase price of at
least $35,000.

In connection with the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, all SAFEs converted into Class A membership units in
ADK LLC, and then into 7,466,891 shares of Class A common stock and 454,077 shares of Class V common stock of indie. At
the time of conversion, the SAFEs had a fair value of $86,100, which was recorded as a reduction of additional paid in capita al
in the consolidated balance sheet. The fair value of the SAFEs was $102,700 as of December 31, 2020. The change in fair value
between the last measurement date and the conversion date was recorded in Other income (expense),x net in the consolidated
statement of operations.
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13) Fair Value Measurements

The Company’s debt instruments are recorded at their carryinrr g values in its consolidated balance sheets, which may differ fromff
their respective fair values. The fair values of the Company’s convertible notes are estimated using the valuation of the
securities into which the debt is convertible, external pricing data, based on interest rates and credit ratings for similar issuances
with the same remaining term as the Company’s outstanding borrowings. The fair value of the Embry convertible notes was
determined using valuation inputs categorized as Level 3. The fair values of the Company’s term loans and Tropez note
generally approximated their carrying values.

At December 31, 2021, the Company held currency forward contracts of $3,075 to sell United States dollars and to buy
Canadian dollars at a forff warr rd rate. Any changes in the fair value of these contracts are reflected in the consolidated statement of
operations. The change in fair value at December 31, 2021 was de minimis.

The following tablea presents the Company’s fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities:

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities:
Warrant Liability $ — $ — $ 100,467 $ 100,467
ONDesign Israel Contingent Consideration - Tapeout $ — $ — $ 1,817 $ 1,817
ONDesign Israel Contingent Consideration - Design Win $ — $ — $ 2,222 $ 2,222
City Semi Contingent Consideration - Second Tranche $ — $ — $ 980 $ 980

Fair Value Measurements as of December 31, 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities:
SAFEs $ — $ — $ 102,700 $ 102,700
City Semi Contingent Consideration - First Tranche $ — $ — $ 500 $ 500
City Semi Contingent Consideration - Second Tranche $ — $ — $ 900 $ 900

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were all held in cash or Level 1 instruments
where the fair values approxima ate the carrying values.

Level 3 Disclosures

SAFEsFF

The SAFEs were valued using a probability-weighted expected returnt method (“PWERM”) valuation approach aligned to the
SAFEs provisions, including (i) conversion through qualified equity financing, (ii) conversion through acquisition of a special
purpose acquisition company, (iii) no conversion through equity or acquisition prior to December 31, 2021, (iv) a liquidation
event, and (v) a dissolution event. Determining the fair value of the SAFEs using the PWERM requires assumptions and
estimates forff both the probability of each scenario and the fair value determined under each scenario. The SAFEs were valued
through each scenario using an appropriate valuation approach, including calculations based on the terms of the SAFEs and a
Monte Carlo simulation, which utilized the Geometric Brownian Motion formulff a to simulate the conversion and payout of the
SAFEs. The significant unobservable inputs include the discount rate, constant volatility factor and the Geometric Brownian
Motion. Significant increases (decreases) in any of those inputs in isolation would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair
value measurement.

In connection with the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, all SAFEs converted into Class A membership units in
ADK LLC, and then into 7,466,891 shares of Class A common stock and 454,077 shares of Class V common stock of indie. At
the time of conversion, the SAFEs had a faiff r value of $86,100, which was valued based on the Company’s market close price of
$10.87 per share.
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Warrantstt

Warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes-Merton formula and a Monte Carlo Simulations analysis. Calculating the fair
value of warrants requires the input of subjective assumptions. Other reasonable assumptions could provide differingff results.
The carrying amount of the liability may fluff ctuate significantly and actual amounts paid may be materially different from the
liability’s estimated value.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no redemptions of the warrants and the carrying amount of the liability
fluctuatt ed due to fair value remeasurement.

Contingent Earn-Outstt

Contingent earn-outs were valued using a Monte Carlo analysis in order to simulate the future path of the Company’s stock
price over the earn-out period. The carrying amount of the liability may fluff ctuate significantly and actual amounts paid may be
materially differentff from the liability’s estimated value. As of November 9, 2021, the first earn-out milestone was achieved.
The existing liability was remeasured to its faiff r value and reclassified fromff a liabia lity to Additional paid-in capital in the
consolidated balance sheet. See Note 11 - Contingent and earn-out Liabilities for additional information.

The following tablea presents the significant unobservable inputs assumed for each of the fair value measurements:

of December 31,
2021

As of December 31,
2020

Input Input
Liabilities:
SAFEs
Discount rate N/A 75 %
Constant volatility facff tor N/A 40 %
Geometric Brownian Motion N/A 0.98

Warrants
Expected volatility 36.0 % N/A

City Semi Contingent Consideration - First Tranche
Discount rate N/A 10.3 %

City Semi Contingent Consideration - Second Tranche
Discount rate 10.8 % 10.3 %

ONDesign Israel Contingent consideration - Tapeout
Discount rate 4.37% N/A

ONDesign Israel Contingent consideration - Design Win
Discount rate 4.37% N/A

Contingent earn-outs - second milestone
Constant volatility facff tor 40 % N/A

14) Stockholders’ Equity

Post Transaction Stockholderl s’rr Equitytt

In connection with the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, all of the historical members’ equity in ADK LLC that was
issued and outstanding at the Closing were converted to either Class A or Class V common stock of the Company per its rights
and privileges as folff lows:
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As of June 10, 2021

Member Units Outstanding
Class A

Common Stock
Class V

Common Stock
Class A 1,381,424 12,612,470 25,791,473
Class B 293,221 9,564,150 —
Class C 400,000 11,520,101 —
Class D 236,521 1,568,565 5,806,776
Class E 112,916 1,309,971 2,229,122
Class F 492,110 16,380,782 —
Class G 10,019 278,533 —
Total 2,926,211 53,234,572 33,827,371

Class H units were redeemed for a cash payment of $900.

Pre-Merger MembMM ers’ Equitytt

The tablea and information set forthff below reflects information about the historical ADK LLC members’ equity immediately
prior to the closing as of June 10, 2021 and as of December 31, 2020:

As of June 10, 2021 As of December 31, 2020
Authorized Issued Outstanding Authorized Issued Outstanding

Class A 3,136,518 1,381,424 1,381,424 3,136,518 911,500 911,500
Class B 513,846 367,395 293,221 513,846 367,927 229,732
Class C 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 300,000 300,000
Class D 236,521 236,521 236,521 236,521 236,521 236,521
Class E 112,916 112,916 112,916 112,916 112,916 112,916
Class F 492,110 492,110 492,110 492,110 492,110 492,110
Class G 11,482 10,019 10,019 11,482 — —
Class H 5,000 4,500 4,500 5,000 4,500 4,500
Total 4,908,393 3,004,885 2,930,711 4,908,393 2,425,474 2,287,279

In connection with its formaff tion on February 9, 2007, the Company issued 911,500 Class A units to the four initial members.
On December 28, 2012, the Company issued 300,000 Class C units to an investor at an original issue price of $0.01 per unit for
total consideration of $3,000.

The Company reserved 185,000 Class A units and 100,000 Class C units in connection with the convertible notes described in
Note 9 — Debt. These units are not issued or outstanding until conversion of the outstanding principal in accordance with the
terms of the notes.

The Fifth Amended and Restated LLC Agreement (the “ADK LLC Operating Agreement”) authorized an increase of Class B
units fromff 243,000 units to 513,846 units. The Class B units are profit interests issued to employees, directors, and consultants.
See Note 17 — Share-Based Compensation.

On July 24, 2015, the Company issued 221,739 Class D units to an investor at an original issue price of $33.82 per unit for cash
consideration of approximately $7,215, net of issuance costs of $285. On August 28, 2015, the Company issued an additional
14,782 Class D units to an existing investor at an original issue price of $33.82 per unit for cash consideration of $500.

On July 25, 2017, the Company issued 112,916 Class E units to investors at an original issue price of $35.42 per unit for cash
consideration of $3,963, net of issuance costs of $37.

The Company issued warrants to purchase Class G units as part of amendments to the terms of debt agreements with Trinity
and PacWest, see Note 9 — Debt. In connection with entering into the term loan agreement with Trinity in March 2018, the
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Company issued an aggregate of 6,250 warrants with a strike price of $35.42 to purchase Class G units. In April 2018, as part
of an amendment to the loan and security agreement, the Company issued warrants to PacWest to purchase 3,388 Class G units
with a strike price of $35.42 (see Note 21 — Commitments and Contingencies). On October 1, 2020, in connection with the
new loan agreement with Trinity, the Company issued additional warrants to Trinity to purchase 1,844 Class G units at a strike
price of $35.42 under the same terms and featurest as previously issued Class G warrants.

Following the Company’s announcement of the Master Transactions Agreement (“MTA”), PacWest issued a letter dated
February 3, 2021 to the Company demanding 52,632 warrants in satisfaction of the provisions contained in the August 9, 2017
credit facility amendment. On June 8, 2021, the Company and PacWest entered into a settlement agreement and mutualt release
where both parties acknowledged and agreed that the original 3,388 warrants issued were in full compliance of the credit
facility amendment.

In June 2018, the Company issued 492,110 Class F units to investors at an issue price of $54.87 per unit for cash consideration
of $26,790, net of issuance costs of $210.

In May 2020, the Company issued 4,500 Class H units to the owners of Cityt Semi as part of the business combination, see Note
3 — Business Combinations.

The rights and privileges of the holders of the equity units are as follows:

Liquidatiii on Rightsi and Distributionii s withii Respect to Liquiditii ytt Event Rightsi

The Company’s Operating Agreement outlines the liquidation and other preferential rights granted to holders of Class C, D, E,
F, G and H units. These rights include preferential treatment in the case of an extraordinary distribution by the Company to its
members (not including any distribution of units), a sale of the Company, a liquidation event or unwind of the Company. The
distribution provisions are complex and depend on the amount of proceeds to be distributed. In the scenario where the proceeds
are sufficient to returnt the capita al investment of each class and provide greater than another 50% of the capita al investment of
each class on a participating basis, then Class F as the most senior preference and would be entitled to the amount of the
original issue price of the Class F Units, followed by Classes E, D, and C in that order, each in the respective amount of the
original issue price of its units, followed by Class H and G up to the original issue price. The remaining amounts availablea to be
distributed are shared among all of the classes of Units (except for Class G) according to their fully diluted percentages. If
distribution proceeds are not sufficient to returnt the capita al investment of each class and provide greater than another 50% of
the capita al investment of each class on a participating basis, then, the Operating Agreement provides numerous distribution
waterfalls that are designed to achieve the rights of each class in each scenario based on the specific amount of proceeds.
Generally, if a preferred class would receive through a fixed preference of 150% of its capita al as compared to 100% of its
capita al plus its participation in the residual tranche, then the preferred class would receive up to 150% of its capita al with no
participation. Class A and Class B receive distributions only in the residual tranche to the extent proceeds remain after the
preferences.

Conversion Righi ts

Each unit of Classes C, D, E, F, G and H shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, into such number of fully paid
and nonassessablea Class A units as is determined by dividing the original issue price for the units of Classes C, D, E, F, G or H
as applicablea , by the conversion price (original issue price) applicable to such Class C, D, E, F, G and H unit in effect on the
conversion date. Additionally, each Class C, D, E, F, G, or H unit shall automatically be converted into Class A units at the
Conversion Price applicablea to such units of Classes C, D, E, F, G or H immediately upon the Company’s sale of its securities
in a firm commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to a registration statement under the Securities Act in which (i) the
public offering per unit price is not less than $180.53 (adjusted for splits and reverse splits and other adjustments of Class F
Units) and (ii) the anticipated aggregate offering price is at least $200,000. The conversion price shall be the initial issuance
price as adjusted for any antidilution provisions as defined in the operating agreement.

Votingn Rightsi

Each Class A unit shall be entitled to one point four seven (1.47) votes per Class A unit. This ratio is revised from time to time
to equal (X) divided by (Y), where (X) equals the sum of (i) the Class A units issued to the initial members and their successors
and assigns plus (ii) the total number of authorized B units and G units, and (Y) equals the total number of Class A units issued
to the initial members and their successors and assigns.
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Holders of Class B units shall not be entitled to vote except as otherwise required by law. Each holder of Class C, D, E, and F
units shall be entitled one vote per Class A unit into which such Class C, D, E, and F units are convertible. Holders of Class G
and H units shall not be entitled to vote except as otherwise required by law or in the event the holders of Class G or H units
convert their units to Class A units as in the operating agreement.

15) Noncontrolling Interest

ADK Minority Htt oldeHH rs

In connection with the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, certain members of ADK LLC (the “ADK Minority
Holders”) retained approximately 26% membership interest in ADK LLC. The ADK Minority Ht olders may fromff time to time,
after December 10, 2021, exchange with indie, such holders’ units in ADK LLC forff an equal number of shares of indie’s Class
A common stock. As a result, indie’s ownership interest in ADK LLC will increase. The ADK Minority Ht olders’ ownership
interests are accounted forff as noncontrolling interests in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company’s
ownership of ADK LLC, was approximately 78% as of December 31, 2021.

In connection with the Transaction, the Company issued to certain members of ADK LLC an aggregate of 33,827,371 shares of
Class V common stock of indie (the “Class V Holders”). The shares of Class V common stock provides no economic rights in
indie to the holder thereof; however, each Class V Holder is entitled to vote with the holders of Class A common stock of indie,
with each share of Class V common stock entitling the holder to one (1) vote per share of Class V common stock at the time of
such vote (subject to customary conversion rate adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends and reclassifications). As of
December 31, 2021, the Company had an aggregate of 30,448,081 shares of Class V common stock issued and outstanding.

Noncontrollitt ng Interest in Wuxi

ADK LLC held 50% ownership in Wuxi as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. From time to time, Wuxi has sold equity
ownership and the transactions have reduced ADK LLC’s controlling interest in Wuxi on the consolidated balance sheets. As of
December 31, 2021, ADK LLC maintained its controlling ownership and financial interest in Wuxi. Accordingly, Wuxi’s
financial statements are consolidated with those of ADK LLC and its other wholly-owned subsidiaries. Minority it nterests held
in Wuxi are accounted forff as non-controlling interests in the Company’s consolidated finaff ncial statements.

16) Revenue

Disaggregatie on of Revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geographica region, as the Company’s management
believes it best depicts how the nature,t amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors.

The following tablea s present revenue disaggregated by geographya of the customer’s shipping location for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

United States $ 11,313 $ 4,281
Greater China 25,973 14,297
Latin America 5,192 1,530
Rest of Asia Pacific 1,006 1,478
Europe 4,928 1,024
Total $ 48,412 $ 22,610

Contract Balances

Certain assets or liabilities are recorded depending on the timing of revenue recognition, billings and cash collections on a
contract-by-contract basis. Contract liabilities primarily relate to deferred revenue, including advance consideration received
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from customers for contracts prior to the transfer of control to the customer, and therefore revenue is recognized upon delivery
of products and services or as the services are performed. The Company recorded unbilled revenue of $402 and $55 at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as part of its Prepaid expee enses and other current assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

The following tablea presents the liabilities associated with the engineering services contracts as of December 31, 2021 and
2020:

December 31,
2021 2020

Deferred revenue $ 1,840 $ 1,665

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, contract liabia lities were included as Defee rred revenue and classified as current liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet.

During the year ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized $1,665 and $2,143, respectively, of revenue
related to amounts that were previously included in deferred revenue at the beginning of the period. Deferred revenue fluctuates
over time due to changes in the timing of payments received from customers and revenue recognized forff services provided.

Revenue related to remaining performance obligations represents the amount of contracted development arrangements that has
not been recognized, which includes deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheet and unbilled amounts that will be
recognized as revenue in future periods. As of December 31, 2021, the amount of performance obligations that have not been
recognized as revenue was $8,972, of which approximately 55% is expected to be recognized as revenue over the next twelve
months and the remainder thereafter. This amount excludes the value of remaining performance obligations for contracts with
an original expected length of one year or less. Variablea consideration that has been constrained is excluded from the amount of
performance obligations that have not been recognized.

Concentrations

As identified below, some of our customers accounted forff more than 10% of the Company’s total revenue for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31,
2021 2020

Customer A 39.0 % 57.0 %
Customer B 4.6 % 12.9 %

The loss of these customers would have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial results.

The largest customer represented 31% of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2021 and the two largest customers
represented 34% and 12% of accounts receivablea as of December 31, 2020. No other individual customer represented more than
10% of accounts receivablea at either December 31, 2021 or 2020.

17) Share-Based Compensation

At the closing of the Transaction on June 10, 2021, ADK LLC’s share-based compensation awards (as such terms are defined
below) were converted into equity in indie at the Exchange Ratio of 27.80. Share and per share information below have been
converted from historical disclosure based on the Exchange Ratio.

2021 Omnibus Equity Itt ncII entive Plan

The Company’s Board of Directors adopted the indie Semiconductor, Inc. 2021 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021
Plan”) effective June 10, 2021, which provides forff the granting of nonqualified stock options, incentive stock options, restricted
stock awards, stock appreciation rights, performance stock awards, unrestricted stock awards, distribution equivalent rights or
any combination of the foregoing to employees and directors for a total of 10,368,750 shares. The primary purpose of the 2021
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Plan is to enhance the Company’s ability to attract, motivate and retain the services of qualified employees, officers and
directors.

The Company accounts forff share-based compensation arrangements with employees and non-employees in accordance with
ASC 718-10, Compensm ation — StocSS k ComCC pensm ation, which requires the Company to account for the compensation expense
related to all equity awards on a faiff r value based method. Further, the Company treats equity awards with multiple vesting
tranches as a single award for expense attribution purposes and recognize compensation expense on a straight-line basis over
the required service vesting period of the entire award.

Since inception of the 2021 Plan, equity awards granted are in the form of restrictive stock units (“RSU”). These RSUs
primarily have a four-yeaff r vesting schedule and vests annually in equal installments. The grant date fairff value of RSUs issued
per the 2021 Plan was valued based on the value of indie’s common stock on the date of grant. The RSUs are equity classified.
As of December 31, 2021, there were 6,311,665 award units in the 2021 Plan that were available forff grant.

Historical Profit IntII erests

Historically, per the ADK LLC Operating Agreement, ADK LLC issued Class B units (“Profits Interests” or “Class B units”) to
employees, directors and consultants. Class B units entitle the holders of such units to a share of ADK LLC’s profits and
distributions of ADK’s assets to the extent their capita al accounts are positive. Holders of Class B units do not have voting rights
except to the extent required by law.

The board of directors authorized 14,284,919 shares (or 513,846 units prior to the exchange) for grant under the ADK LLC
Operating Agreement. The Class B units generally have a four-yeaff r vesting schedule, in which 25% of units vest after 12
months and the remaining 75% vest monthly over the following three-year period. Upon the consummation of the Transaction,
the Class B units were converted into Class A common stocks at the Exchange Ratio of 27.80. Any unvested shares will
continue to vest over time following their original contractualt terms. No additional profit interests were granted post the
consummation of the Transaction.

Prior to the consummation of the Transaction, the grant date fairff value of the Class B units was determined using the Monte
Carlo simulation. The significant assumptim ons used in valuation include the constant risk-free rate, constant volatility factor and
the Geometric Brownian Motion. The following tablea presents the weighted average assumptions used in the valuations for the
Class B units on December 31, 2020:

December 31,
2020

Risk-free rate 1.5 %
Volatility factor 54.0 %
Geometric Brownian Motion 0.853

The Profit Interests are equity-classified awards that operate substantially the same as an RSU. The consummation of the
Transaction is considered to be a qualifying liquidation event, such that all historically vested units are now considered to have
value. As a result, the unrecognized compensation costs through the consummation date of the Transaction were recognized in
full as a change of control satisfying the in-substance performance condition became probable. No compensation cost was
recognized historically until the closing of the Transaction.

Phantom Units

On January 29, 2021, indie issued Phantom Units that give employees rights to receive, upon vesting, either 1,751,360 shares of
Class A common stock (or 62,998 Phantom Units prior to giving effect to the Exchange Ratio) or the equivalent in cash at the
election of indie (the “Phantom Units”). These Phantom Units had a grant date fairff value of $6.83 per share of Class A common
stock. The Phantom Units generally have a fourff -year vesting schedule, in which 25% of units vest after 12 months and the
remaining 75% vest monthly over the following three-year period. Certain awards vest based on specific perforff mance
conditions. Notwithstanding the foreff going, no Phantom Units vested until December 10, 2021.

These Phantom Units are equity-classified awards that operate substantially the same as an RSU. The grant date fairff value of
the Phantom Units was determined by dividing the expected equity value of the Company upon the Transaction by the
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Company’s expected capita alization structure at the time of the grant. No compensation cost was recognized historically until the
closing of the Transaction.

Unvested Earn-out Shares

A portion of the earn-out shares were issued to individuals with unvested equity awards. While the payout of these shares
requires achievement of the earn-out milestones, the individuals are required to complete the remaining service period
associated with these unvested equity awards to be eligible to receive the earn-out shares. As a result, these unvested earn-out
shares are equity-classified awards that operate substantially the same as an RSU. The aggregated grant date fairff value of these
shares totaled $3,919 (or $9.20 per share). The grant date fairff value of the earn-out shares was valued based on the fair value of
the earn-out liability at inception divided by total shares subject to the earn-out liability.

Stock compensation expense is recorded in research and development and general and administrative expenses based on the
classification of the work performed by the grantees.

The following tablea sets forth the share-based compensation for the periods presented:

December 31,
2021 2020

Research and development $ 9,721 $ —
Selling, general, and administrative 13,184 —
Total $ 22,905 $ —

The following tablea sets forth the changes in the Company’s outstanding aforementioned equity awards for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Number of Shares

Weighted
average grant date

fair value

Shares Retained to
Cover Statutory
Minimum

Withholding Taxes
Nonvested shares as of December 31, 2019 1,709,478 $ 0.09
Granted 3,358,240 $ 3.28
Vested (882,872) $ 0.55 —
Forfeited (343,024) $ 0.09
Nonvested shares as of December 31, 2020 3,841,822 $ 2.61
Granted 6,237,471 $ 9.00
Vested (3,070,760) $ 4.17 153,636
Forfeited (337,026) $ 4.04
Nonvested shares as of December 31, 2021 6,671,507 $ 7.79

As of December 31, 2021 there was $43,548 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to all nonvested shares, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average remaining vesting period of 3.4 years.

TeraXionXX Option Planl

On October 12, 2021, the Company assumed fully vested TeraXion options, which became exercisable to purchase 1,542,332
shares of indie Class A common stock with a faiff r value of $17,249 in connection with the acquisition. The options have a 10-
year term fromff the original grant date. The consummation of the TeraXion acquisition is considered to be a qualifying
liquidation event per the original option plan, all of the options became fullff y vested uponu the acquisition date. As such, there is
no further stock-based compensatm ion expense to be recognized.
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The folff lowing tablea sets forth the changes in the Company’s outstanding options for the year ended December 31, 2021:

Options

Weighted-
average exercise

price

Weighted-
average
remaining

contractual term
(years)

Aggregate
intrinsic value

Outstanding at December 31, 2020 — $ —
Assumed from acquisition 1,542,332 $ 0.23
Exercised (92,251) $ 0.71
Forfeited or expired — $ —
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 1,450,081 $ 0.20 5.93 $ 17,095
Exercisablea at December 31, 2021 1,450,081 $ 0.20 5.93 $ 17,095
Vested or expected to vest 1,450,081 $ 0.20 5.93 $ 17,095

18) Net Loss per Common Share

Basic and diluted net loss per common share was calculated as follff ows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Numerator:
Net loss $ (118,607) $ (98,364)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (30,563) (866)
Net loss attributable to indie Semiconductor, Inc. $ (88,044) $ (97,498)

Net loss attributable to common shares - dilutive $ (88,044) $ (97,498)

Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 70,012,112 31,244,414

Weighted average common shares outstanding—diluted 70,012,112 31,244,414

Net loss per share attributable to common shares— basic $ (1.26) $ (3.12)
Net loss per share attributable to common shares— diluted $ (1.26) $ (3.12)

On June 10, 2021, the Company completed a series of business transactions with TB2 pursuant to the MTA. The Transaction
materially impacted the number of shares outstanding. Weighted average shares outstanding in the tablea above have been
retroactively restated to give effect to the reverse recapita alization. See Note 1 - Naturet of Business and Basis of Presentation for
more information regarding the Transaction.

The Company’s potentially dilutive securities, which include SAFEs, unvested Class B units, unvested restricted stock units,
preferred units, warrants forff Class A units, warrants forff Class G units, and convertible debt, have been excluded fromff the
computation of diluted net loss per share as the effect would be to reduce the net loss per share. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 the weighted average number of shares outstanding used to calculate both basic and diluted net
loss per share attributablea to common shares is the same because the Company reported a net loss for each of these periods and
the effect of inclusion would be antidilutive. The Company excluded the following potential shares, presented based on
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amounts outstanding at each period end, from the computation of diluted net loss per share attributablea to stockholders for the
periods indicated because including them would have had an antidilutive effect:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

SAFEs — 4,711,711
Unvested Class B units 1,612,797 3,841,856
Unvested Phantom units 1,188,862 —
Unvested Restricted stock units 3,869,848 —
Convertible preferred units — 35,935,292
Warrants to purchase Class G units — 267,939
Convertible debt into Class A and preferred units — 285,000
Convertible Class V common shares 30,448,081 —
Public warrants for the purchase of Class A common shares 17,250,000 —
Private warrantr s forff the purchase of Class A common shares 10,150,000 —
Earn-out Shares 10,000,000 —
Escrow Shares 1,725,000 —

76,244,588 45,041,798

19) Income Taxes

The components of loss beforeff income taxes forff the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follff ows:

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020
United State $s (117,761) $ (96,544)
Foreign (1,173) (1,791)
Total $ (118,934) $ (98,335)

The components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020

Current expense:
Federal $ — $ —
State 8 —
Foreign 181 18
Total current expense: $ 189 $ 18
Deferred expense:
Federal $ — $ —
State — —
Foreign (516) 11
Total deferred expense: $ (516) $ 11
Total income tax expense $ (327) $ 29
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The components of deferreff d tax assets / (liabilities) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follff ows:

December 31,

2021 2020
Reserves and accrualrr s $ 310 $ 114
Investment in Ay Dee Kay, LLC 41,788 —
Net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards 11,493 1,071
Total Deferred Tax Assets before Valuation Allowance 53,591 1,185

Valuation Allowance (53,430) (1,040)
Deferred Tax Assets – net of Valuation Allowance 161 145

Fixed Assets $ (56) $ (33)
Intangibles (21,269) (145)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (21,325) (178)

Net Deferreff d Tax Liabilities $ (21,164) $ (33)

Changes in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows:

2021 2020
Valuation Allowance as on January 1st $ 1,040 $ 617
Increases recorded to tax provision 52,390 423
Decreases recorded as a benefit to income tax provision ——
Valuation Allowance as on December 31st $ 53,430 $ 1,040

As of December 31, 2021, the Company has $11,037 of deferred tax assets in domestic NOLs. This was composed of U.S.
Federal NOLs of $37,791, which have an indefinite carry-rr forward pursuant to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 and $36,081
of California NOLs, which have a carry-forwaff rd period of 20 years. Due to the California NOL suspension of tax years 2020
through 2022, the California 2021 NOL will be extended by one year to account for the 2022 suspension year. The Company
also has $4,418 of NOLs in China which have a 5-year carry-forward period.

At December 31, 2021, the Company also has a foreiff gn R&D Tax Credits in Canada in the amount of $895, which have a
carry-forward period of up to 20 years. In addition to the NOL carryforwff ards and tax credits, the Company’s other significant
deferred tax asset is its investment in ADK in the amount of $41,788 (net of federal tax benefit)ff . This is based on the differenceff
between the book carrying value of the investment and the tax basis in the investment pursuant to tax law.

In evaluating its abia lity to realize its net deferred tax assets, the Company considered all available positive and negative
evidence, such as past operating results, forecasted earnings, prudent and feasible tax planning strategies, and the future
realization of the tax benefitsff of existing temporary differences in accordance with the relevant accounting guidance under ASC
740. The Company has concluded that it is not possible to reasonably quantify future taxable income. Further, when
considering its history of generating net operating losses, management concluded that it is more likely than not that some or all
of the Company’s domestic deferred assets will not be realized and has established a fullff valuation allowance forff U.S. domestic
deferred tax assets. A similar conclusion regarding China and Hong Kong operations conducted through Wuxi and its
subsidiaries have been reached. As a result, the Company continues to maintain a fullff valuation allowance as of December 31,
2021 and 2020 for its China operations. The Company’s net deferred tax liabia lity position is the result of the UK, Israel and
Canada operations.

The Company does not provide for foreign income and withholding, U.S. Federal, or state income taxes expense or tax benefits
for the differenceff between the financial reporting basis over the tax basis of its investments in foreign subsidiaries to the extent
such amounts are indefinitely reinvested to support operations and continued growth plans outside the U.S. The Company
reviews its indefinite reinvestment assertion on a quarterly basis and evaluates its plans for reinvestment. This includes a review
of the Company’s ability to control repatriation, its abia lity to mobilize funds without triggering basis differenceff s, and the
profitability of U.S. operations, their cash requirements and the need, if any, to repatriate funds.ff If the Company’s intent and
ability with respect to reinvestment of earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries changes, deferred U.S. income taxes, foreignff income
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taxes, and foreiff gn withholding taxes may have to be accrued.r The Company will filff e a fedeff ral income tax returnt and various
state income tax returnst in the United States going forward. As a newly formed entity, indie Inc. 's first income tax filinff gs will
be for the tax year ending December 31, 2021. However, ADK LLC will continue to file a partnership returnt as it has
historically and ADK LLC tax returnst for years 2018-2020 remain open to examination by the IRS, and tax years 2017-2020
remain open to California State Tax examination.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate forff the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

December 31,
2021 2020

Income tax provision at U.S. statutory federal rate $ (25,509) $ (20,650)
State income tax provision, net of federal income tax effect (5,891) —
Foreign taxes provision 22 (72)
Noncontrolling interest 6,764 —
Valuation allowance reductions (increases) 24,150 470
Research and other tax credits (270) (37)
Tax benefits on vested and exercised equity awards 404 —
Partnership/non-taxable income — 20,512
Other 3 (194)
Provision for income taxes $ (327) $ 29

The calculation of the Company’s tax liabia lities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax laws and
regulations for the jurisdictions in which it operates or does business in. A tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be
recognized when it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including resolutions of any
related appeals or litigation processes, on the basis of the technical merits.

The Company records tax positions as liabilities and adjusts these liabia lities when its judgement changes as a result of the
evaluation of new information not previously available. Because of the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate
resolution may result in a payment that is materially different from the Company’s current estimate of the recognized tax
benefit liabilities. These differences will be reflected as increases or decreases to income tax expense in the period in which new
information is availablea . As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has not recorded any uncertain tax positions in its
financial statements.

The Company records interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in provision of income taxes. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, no accrued interest or penalties are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets, and the Company
has not recorded any related expenses.

The Company files tax returnst as prescribed by the tax laws of the jurisdictions in which it operates and is subject to
examinations by the various jurisdictions where applicablea . There are currently no pending tax examinations. The Company’s
tax years are still open under statutet from 2018 to 2020 for Federal purposes and from 2017 to 2020 for California. Foreign tax
statutet s are generally three to five years. The company’s significant foreign taxing jurisdiction are Canada, UK, Hungary, China
and Israel. The limitations periods in these jurisdictions are four-, one-, five-, three- and four-years respectively..

20) Supplemental Financial Information

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

91



December 31,
2021 2020

Accrued payroll and employee benefits $ 4,021 $ 107
Accrued purchase consideration from business combinations 7,500 500
City Semi deferred compensation 833 —
Accrued interest — 785
Other (1) 6,289 1,130
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 18,643 $ 2,522

(1) Amount represents accruals forff various operating expenses such as professional fees, open purchase orders, royalties and
other estimates that are expected to be paid within the next 12 months.

21) Commitments and Contingencies

Litiii gatii on

The Company may be a party to routine claims or litigation incidental to its business. The Company does not believe that it is a
party to any pending legal proceeding that is likely to have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or
results of operations or cash flows.

In connection with a credit facility amendment executed with PacWest on August 9, 2017, the Company agreed to issue the
bank warrants to acquire Membership Units. In 2018, the Company and the bank agreed that 3,388 warrants would be issued at
a strike price of $35.42 per unit, which was subsequently reflected in the Company’s books and records. Following the
Company’s announcement of the Master Transactions Agreement (“MTA”), on February 3, 2021, PacWest issued a letter to the
Company demanding 52,632 warrants in satisfaction of the provisions contained in the August 9, 2017 credit facility
amendment. On June 8, 2021, the Company and PacWest entered into a settlement agreement and mutualt release where both
parties acknowledged and agreed that the original 3,388 warrants issued were in full compliance of the credit facff ility
amendment.

Lease Commitmett nts

The Company’s lease arrangements consist primarily of corporate and manufacturing facility agreements. The leases expire at
various dates through 2028, some of which include options to extend the lease term. The options with the longest potential total
lease term consist of options for extension of up to five years following expiration of the original lease term. All of the leases
are operating leases. The Company is headquartered in Aliso Viejo, California and has various research and design centers,
sales support offices, and manufacturing facilities throughout the world. The key lease terms for the principal locations are
summarized below:

In July 2015, the Company entered into a fiveff -year operating lease for its 14,881 square foot headquarters in Aliso Viejo,
California, which is payablea monthly with periodic rent adjustments over the lease term. The lease requires a security deposit of
$30, which is recorded in other assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as well as a tiered, time-based letter of
credit that has now reached its lowest tier of $200. Subsequently, the rentable area was expanded to 18,000 square feet and the
lease was extended through the end of June 2023. Rent expense is approximately $38 per month.

In October 2015, the Company entered into a fiveff -year operating lease for its Scotland Design Center in Edinburgh, Scotland,
which is payablea monthly with periodic rent adjustments over the lease term. The lease expired in October 2020. During 2019,
the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement with a third party forff the Scotland Design Center facility. Separately, effective
January 2020, the Company entered into a lease for a property in Scotland. The lease agreement has a term through June 2024
and monthly rent of approximately $16 per month.

In October 2017, the Company entered into a 26-month operating lease for its Wuxi sales and design center. Rent for the
associated office is payablea monthly with periodic rent adjustments over the lease term. The lease was subsequently extended
through December 2022. Rent expense is approximately $8 per month.

INDIE SEMICONDUCTOR, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In May 2021, the Company entered into a seven-year operating lease forff a location in Detroit, Michigan, which is payablea
monthly with periodic rent adjustments over the lease term. The lease will expire in 2028 with an initial monthly rent of
approximately $22 per month.

In October 2021, the Company entered into a fiveff -year operating lease for its design center in Austin, Texas. Rent forff the
associated office is payablea monthly with periodic rent adjustments over the lease term, which expires in October 2026. Rent
expense is approxima ately $13 per month.

In October 2021, the Company acquired TeraXion and assumed its existing operating lease forff an office building and a
warehouse in Quebec City,t Canada. Rent for the associated office is payablea at approximately $38 per month. The lease will
expire on May 31, 2028. Rent for the associate warehouse is at approxima ately $3 per month. This lease will expire on
November 30, 2023.

The total monthly rent for the remainder locations of the Company around the world is not material.

Rent expense is recognized on a straight-lined basis over the lease term and is included in the consolidated statements of
operations for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020

Research and development. $ 966 $ 1,381
Selling, general, and administrative 252 551
Cost of goods sold 24 —
Total $ 1,242 $ 1,932

The following tablea summarizes the future minimum lease payments dued under operating leases as of December 31, 2021:

2022 $ 1,869
2023 1,674
2024 1,303
2025 1,177
2026 1,201
Thereafter 1,686
Total $ 8,910

Royalty Att greement

The Company has entered into license agreements to use certain technology within its design and manufacture of its products.
The agreements require royalty fees forff each semiconductor sold using the licensed technology. Total royalty expense incurred
in connection with these contracts duringd the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $810 and $386, respectively, which
is included in cost of goods sold in the consolidated statements of operations. Accrued royalties of $264 and $139 are included
in accruedrr expenses in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Tax Distributionstt

To the extent the Company has funds legally available, the board of directors will approve distributions to each member, prior
to March 15 of each year, in an amount per unit that, when added to all other distributions made to such member with respect to
the previous calendar year, equals the estimated fedeff ral and state income tax liabilities applicablea to such member as the result
of its, his or her ownership of the units and the associated net taxable income allocated with respect to such units forff the
previous calendar year. There were no distributions approved by the board of directors or paid by the Company with respect to
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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22) Geographical Information

Long-lived assets include property and equipment, net, which were based on the physical location of the assets as of the end of
each year.

December 31,
2021 2020

Canada $ 5,802 $ —
United States 2,786 1,718
Israel 1,297 —
China 843 272
Rest of world 362 179
Total $ 11,090 $ 2,169

23) Subsequent Events

For its consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021 and the year then ended, management reviewed and
evaluated material subsequent events fromff the consolidated balance sheet date of December 31, 2021 through April 8, 2022, the
date the consolidated finaff ncial statements were issued.

Acquisitiontt of Symeo GmbHGG

On October 21, 2021, indie entered into a definitive agreement with Analog Devices to acquire Symeo GmbH (“Symeo”) for
$10 million in cash at closing, $10 million in cash in 2023 and an equity-based earn-out of up to 858,369 shares of indie Class
A common stock based on future revenue growth. The Symeo transaction was approvea d by the German government on
January 4, 2022 and closed on the same day.

The transaction costs associated with the acquisition for the year ended December 31, 2021 were not material and were
expensed as incurred.

The Company expects to account for the acquisition of Symeo as a business combination and is currently evaluating the
purchase price allocation. It is not practicablea to disclose the preliminary purchase price allocation or unaudited pro forma
combined finaff ncial information for these transactions, given the short period of time between the acquisition date and the
issuance of these consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURES

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our ma gnagement, iincl diludi gng our hiChief Executiive ffiOfficer dand hiChief iFina inci lal ffiOfficer, hhave dconduct ded an evallua ition of hthe
effectiiveness of hthe ddesignign dand opera ition of our didiscllosure lcontrols dand proceddures ((as d fidefi dned iin lRule (13a-15(e)) dunder hthe
Se icuri ities hExcha gnge Act of 1934, as ame d dnded ( h(the “Exchha gnge Act”)))) as of Dece bmber 31, 2021 dand bbas ded on hithis evallua ition,
hhave lconcl d duded hthat, as a resullt of hthe materi lial weakknesses iin iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng as dde iscrib dbed b lbelow, our
didiscllosure cont lrols andd proceddures were not effectiive as of Dece bmber 31, 2021.

Per lRule (13a-15(e)), hthe term didiscllosure lcontrols dand proceddures means c lontrols dand hother proceddures of an iissuer hthat are
ddesigneignedd to ensure hthat i finformatiion irequi dred to bbe didiscllosedd byby hthe iissuer iin hthe reports hthat iit filfiles or b isubmits dunder hthe
Exchangehange Act ((15 U.S.C. 78a et se )q.) iis reco drd ded, processedd, summ iarizedd dand report ded iwi hithin hthe itime iperi dods spe icififiedd iin hthe
SEC’s lrules dand forms. iDis lclosure lcontrols dand proceddures i lincl dude, iwithhout lili imita ition, cont lrols dand proceddures dde isignedgned to
ensure hthat i finformatiion irequi dred to bbe didiscllosedd byby an iissuer iin hthe reports hthat iit fifilles or b isubmits dunder hthe hExcha gnge Act iis
accum lulatedd dand com imunicatedd to hthe iissuer’s ma gnagement, iincl diludi gng iits hiChief Executiive ffiOfficer dand hiChief iFinanciiall ffiOfficer,
or persons f iperformi gng isimililar func itions, as ap ipropriate to lalllow itimelyly dde ici isions gregardingrding re iquiredd di ldisclosure.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our ma gnagement iis res iblponsible for establiblia shingshing dand maiint iainingning dadequate iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng, as hsuch term
iis d fidefi dned iin Exchangehange Act Rulles (f)13a-15(f) dand d (f)15d-15(f). A com ypany’s iinte lrnal lcontrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng iis a process
ddesigneignedd to idprovide rea blsonable assurance regardinggarding hthe reli bliabilityility of fifina inci lal re iporti gng dand hthe preparatiion of fifina inci lal
statements for externall purposes iin ac dcordance iwi hth ggenerallylly accep dted acco iunti gng iprinci liples. A com ypany’s iinte lrnal lcontrol
over fifinanciiall re iporti gng iincl dludes hthose lpoliiciies andd proceddures hthat:

i. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonablea detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

ii. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditurest of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of iits i hinherent lili i imitations, iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng mayy not prevent or ddetect imisstatements. lAlso,
projeprojectiions of yany evallua ition of effectiiveness to future pe iri dods are subjesubject to hthe iri ksk hthat cont lrols mayy bbecome iin dadequate
becbecause of hch ganges iin co dinditiions, or hthat hthe ddeggree of com lipliance i hwith thhe lipoli icies or proceddures mayy ddet ieriorate.

A mate iriall we kakness iis a d fidefi iciencyy, or combibina ition of d fidefi icienciies, iin iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng suchh hthat hthere
iis a reasonablblea ipossibilbiliityy hthat a mate iriall imisstatement of our annuall or iint ierim fifina inci lal statements illwill not bbe preventedd or
ddetectedd on a itimelyly bbasiis.

dUnder hthe isupervi ision dand iwithh hthe parti iicip iation of our ma gnagement, iincl diludi gng our hiChief Executiive ffiOfficer dand our hiChief
iFina inci lal ffiOfficer, we dconduct ded an assessment of our iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng as of Dece bmber 31, 2021, bbas ded
on hthe framew kork iin Inte lrnal lControl - Integgrat ded Frame kwork ( )(2013), iiss dued byby hthe Commiittee of iSponsori gng gOrga inizatiions of
hthe Treaddwayy Com imi ission ( h(the “2013 COSO Frame kwork”)). As a res lult of hithis evallua ition, ma gnagement idide intififiedd hthe f llfoll iowi gng
mate iriall we kaknesses iin iinte lrnal cont lrol, hiwhi hch contiinue to exiist as of Dece bmber 31, 2021:

a. Control Environment: hThe Com ypany diddid not hhave a ffisufficiient bnumber of pers lonnel iwi hth assigig dned res ibiponsibilili yty dand
account biabilili yty for hthe ddesign,ign, opera ition dand ddocumentatiion of iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng iin ac dcordance
iwi hth hthe 2013 COSO Frame kwork.

a. Risk Assessment: hThe Compa yny diddid not hhave an effectiive iri ksk assessment process hthat d fidefi dned lclear fifina inci lal
reportinging objeobjectiives dand evalluatedd i krisks, iincl diludi gng idide intifyingfying dand analyzlyzinging iriskks lrelat ded to inon-routine transactiions
suchh as me grgers dand ac i iquisi itions, at a ffisufficiient lle lvel of ddet iaill to idide inti yfy lalll lrelevant iriskks of mate iriall imisstatement
across hthe Compa yny or i hiwithin ea hch ac iqui dred en iti yty.
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a. Information and Communication: hThe Com ypany diddid not hhave effec itive i finformatiion cont lrol processes, iincl diludi gng
hthose rel dlated to hthe use of ma lnual spread hdsheets, to ensure hthe reli bliabilityility of i finformatiion usedd iin certaiin computa itions
lrelat ded to fifina inci lal reportinging

a. Monitor ging Activities: hThe Compa yny diddid not hhave effec itive imoni itori gng ac iti ivitiies to assess hthe opera ition of iinternall
cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng, iincl diludi gng hthe iconti dnued iappropriateness of cont lrol ddesignign dand lle lvel of ddocumentatiion
maiint iai dned to support co lntrol effectiiveness.

a. Control Activities: As a consequence of hthe aforementiionedd d fidefi icienciies, hthe Compa yny diddid not hhave effec itive cont lrol
ac iti ivitiies lrelatedd to hthe ddesignsign andd opera ition of proce lss-levell co lntrols across cert iain keykey fifinanciiall re iporti gng processes.

hiWhille hthese mate iriall we kaknesses diddid not res lult iin mate iriall imisstatements of hthe Compa yny’s fifina inci lal statements as of dand for
hthe yyear d dended Dece bmber 31, 2021, hthese materi lial weakknesses create a reasonablblea ipossibilbiliityy hthat a mate iriall imisstatement of
account b lbalances or didiscllosures iin our cons lioliddat ded fifina inci lal statements ymay not bbe preventedd or ddetectedd iin a itimelyly manner.
Ac dicordingly,ngly, hthe Compa yny concl dludedd hthat hthe ddefificiie incies represent materi lial weakknesses iin iits iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal
reportinging andd hthat iinte lrnal cont lrol over fifina inci lal reportinging was not effecff itive as of Dece bmber 31, 2021.

hiThis Annuall Report ddoes not iincl dlude an attesta ition report of our i dinde dpendent regiregiste dred blipublic accountinging fifirm, KPMG LLP,
ddue to hthe establiblia hshedd lrules of hthe Secu iritiies andd Exchangehange Com imi ission.

Man gageme ’nt’s Remedi iiation Plan

hThe Compa yny’s rem diediatiion efforts are ongoing,ongoing, dand iit iwillll co intinue iits i iini itiatiives to iim lplement dand ddocument lipoli icies dand
pproceddures dand strengthengthen hthe Compa yny’s iinternall cont lrol ienvironment. Remedidia ition of hthe ididentifiifi ded mate iriall we kaknesses dand
strengthengtheningning hthe Compa yny’s iinternall cont lrol ienvironment ilwilll irequire a bsubstantiiall effort throughoutthroughout 2022 dand, ipossibly,bly, hthe
fifirst quarter of 2023. hThe materi lial weakknesses cannot bbe iconsidderedd com lpletelyly rem diediat ded iuntill hthe liapplicablblea lcontrols hhave
operatedd for a ffisuffi icient pe iri dod of itime dand ma gnagement hhas lconcl d duded, throughthrough te isti gng, hthat hthese lcontrols are opera iti gng
effectiively.ly. In ddiaddi ition, iit iis ipossiblble hthat certaiin lcontrols hthe Compa yny lplans to iim lplement iin 2022 iwillll not hhave operatedd for a
ffisuffi icient pe iri dod of itime iin 2022 to test htheiir opera iti gng effectiiveness as part of hthe Compa yny’s evallua ition of iinternall cont lrol

over fifinanciiall re iporti gng as of Dece bmber 31, 2022 dand mayy exte dnd to hthe f lfoll ilowi gng yyear.

To rem diediate hthe materi lial weakknesses ddes icrib dbed babove, hthe Compa yny iis pursuingpursuing hthe f llfollowingowing rem diediatiion steps, iin ddiaddi ition to
hthose idide intififiedd iin Item 4 of hthe 2021 hiThi drd Quarter Form 10-Q:

i. We iwillll co intinue to se kek, traiin dand ret iain i diindi idvidualls hthat hhave iappropriate kilskillls dand expe irience rel dlated to ddesigniigni gng
opera iti gng dand ddocumentinging iinternall cont lrols over fifina inci lal re iporti gng, lcoupl ded iwi hth hthe ddiadditiion of fifinance staff to
iimprove hthe current seg ggrega ition of lroles andd res ibiponsibilili ities; andd

ii. We hhave llau hnchedd a com ypany-widide i iinitiia itive to iim lplement a new ente irprise resource lplanningnning ((“ERP )”) ysystem
ca blpabla e of automa iti gng some of our ma lnual fifinanci lial rep iorti gng processes, henha inci gng our i finformatiion te h lchnol gyogy
cont lrol ienvironment, dand imi itiggatinging some of hthe iinte lrnal lcontrol ggaps a dnd lili imita itions hthat cannot bbe ddaddressedd byby hthe
current ysystem; dand

iiiiii. We hhave g gengagedd hithi drd partyy spe ici laliists to dconduct a com hprehe insive re iview, dupdate dand henhancement of hthe dde isiggn
dand ddocumentatiion of keykey b ibusiness processes to ensure hthe components of iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng are

ppresent dand func itioningoning iin ac dcordance iwithh hthe 2013 COSO Frame kwork; andand

iiv. We are iin hthe process of establiblia shingshing an iinternall diaudit functiion hiwhichh ilwilll perform iroutine iriskk assessments dand ggap
analysilysis of our cont lrol ienvironment dand report regulagularlyrly to hthe diaudit commiittee on hthe gprogress dand res lults of our
rem diediatiion lplan, iin lcludinguding hthe ididentifiifica ition, status, andd res lolutiion of iinte lrnal cont lrol ddefificiie incies.

We b lbeliieve hthat our rem diediatiion lplan ilwilll bbe ffisuffi icient to ddaddress hthe ididentifiifi ded mate iriall we kaknesses dand gstrengthhen our iinternall
cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng. As we icontinue to evalluate, dand kwork to iimprove our iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng,
we mayy ddetermiine hthat daddiditiionall measures to ddaddress cont lrol d fidefi icienciies or dimodifificatiions to hthe re dmedi iiation lplan are
necessa yry. It cannot bbe assuredd, hhowever, hwhen we iwillll dremediiate su hch materi lial weakknesses, nor can we bbe certaiin hwhethher
ddiaddi iti lonal ac itions illwill bbe irequiredd. Moreover, iit cannot bbe ass dured hthat ddiaddi iti lonal materi lial weakknesses iwillll not iarise iin hthe
future.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As ddes icrib dbed babove dunder “Managgement's Remedidia ition lPlan”, we are takingking ac itions to rem diediate hthe materi lial weakknesses iin
our iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal re iporti gng. Except as ddes icrib dbed babove, hthere were no hcha gnges iin iinternall cont lrol over fifina inci lal
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reportinging duringduring hthe f hfourth quarter of 2021 hthat hhave materiallyially affecff tedd, or are rea blsonablyy lilik lkelyy to mate iriallllyy affect, our
iinternall co lntrol over fifinanciiall re iporti gng.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATRR E GOVERNANCE

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to our principal financial officers, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, controller and other persons performing similar functions. The full text of our Code of Ethics is available on
our website at investors.indiesemi.com under “Governance.” Our Code of Ethics is a “code of ethics” as defined in Item 406(b)
of Regulation S-K. We will make any legally required disclosures regarding amendments to, or waivers of, provisions of our
Code of Ethics on our website.

The information required by this Item will be included in our 2022 Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item will be included in our 2022 Proxy Statement, which will be fileff d with the SEC and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNER ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item will be included in our 2022 Proxy Statement, which will be fileff d with the SEC and is
incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTRR IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item will be included in our 2022 Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the SEC within
120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, and is incorporated herein by this refereff nce.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item will be included in our 2022 Proxy Statement, which will be fileff d with the SEC within
120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 and is incorporated herein by this refereff nce.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filff ed as part of this Report:

1. All financff ial statements:tt

The following consolidated financial statements of indie Semiconductor, Inc. and subsidiaries are filed as part of this
report under Item 8 – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:

Form 10-K
Page No.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 48
Consolidated Balance Sheets 49
Consolidated Statements of Operations 50
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss 51
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Noncontrolling Interest 52
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow 53
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 55

2. Financial Statements Schedules:

Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts information is included in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements which are filed as part of this report under Item 8 - Financial Statements and Suppleu mentary Data.

All other finaff ncial statement scheduled s forff which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and, therefore, have
been omitted.

3. Exhibits:

Exhibits required to be filff es as part of this report are:

2.1† Master Transactions Agreement, dated effective December 14, 2020, by and among Surviving Pubco, Thunder
Bridge II, the Merger Subs named therein, indie, the ADK Blocker Group, ADK Service Provider Holdco, and the
indie Securityholder Representative named therein, and also included as Annex B-1 to the proxy statement/tt
prospectust (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-K filed by Thunder Bridge II with the SEC on
December 15, 2020).

2.2 Amendment to Master Transactions Agreement, dated effective May 3, 2021, by and among Surviving Pubco,
Thunder Bridge II, the Merger Subs named therein, indie, the ADK Blocker Group, ADK Service Provider Holdco,
and the indie Securityholder Representative named therein (included as Annex B-2 to the proxy statement/tt
prospectust and incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of Form S-4/A filed with the SEC on May 3, 2021).

2.3 Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 27, 2021, by and among indie, TeraXion, Purchaser and certain
stockholders of TeraXion and their ultimate beneficial owners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on September 2, 2021).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of indie Semiconductor, Inc., filed with the Secretary orr f State of
Delaware on June 10, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the
SEC on June 16, 2021).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of indie Semiconductor, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Form
8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on July 16, 2021).

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 8-K filed by the
registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021).

4.2 Specimen Warrant Certificate (included in Exhibit 4.3, as amended by Exhibit 4.4).

Exhibit
No. Description
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4.3 Warrant Agreement between Continental Stock Trust & Transfer Company and Thunder Bridge II (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Form 8-K filed by Thunder Bridge II with the SEC on August 14, 2019).

4.4 Warrant Agreement Assignment and Assumption Agreement (incorpor rated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Form
8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021).

4.5* Description of indie Semiconductor, Inc. Capital Stock
10.1 Eighth Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of indie LLC (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.4 of the Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.2 Subscription Agreement for the PIPE Investment (incorporr rated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K filed

by Thunder Bridge II with the SEC on December 15, 2020)
10.3+ indie Semiconductor, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Form 8-K

filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.4+ Form of Indemnification Agreement between registrant and certain officers and directors of registrant. (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.5 Exchange Agreement, dated June 10, 2021, between registrant and certain indie Equity Holders. (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.6 Tax Receivablea Agreement, dated June 10, 2021, between registrant and certain indie Equity Holders. (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.7 Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 10, 2021, between registrant and certain indie Equity Holders.

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Form 8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.8 Form of Lock-up Agreement by certain indie Equity Holders. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Form

8-K filed by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021)
10.9 Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 8, 2019, between Thunder Bridge II, Sponsor and the holders party

thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Form S-1/A (File No. 333-232688) filed by Thunder Bridge II
with the SEC on July 29, 2019)

10.10 Private Placement Warrants Purchase Agreement between Thunder Bridge II and Thunder Bridge Acquisition II
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Form S-1/A (File No. 333-232688) filed by Thunder Bridge II
with the SEC on July 29, 2019)

10.11 Sponsor Letter Agreement by and among Thunder Bridge II, Sponsor and indie, dated December 14, 2020
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Form 8-K filed with by Thunder Bridge II the SEC on December 15,
2020)

10.12 Loan and Security Agreement, dated January 13, 2015, and relevant amendments thereto, by and between Square 1
Bank (now Pacific Western Bank) and indie LLC. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Form 8-K filed
by the registrant with the SEC on June 16, 2021).

10.13 Form of Option Settlement Agreement by and among indie, TeraXion, Purchaser and certain holders of options to
purchase TeraXion capita al stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
by the registrant with the SEC on September 2, 2021)

21.1* List of Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1* Consent of KPMG LLP
31.1* Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2* Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32* Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101 Inline XBRL Interactive Data Files formatted in Inline XBRL Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i)

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020; (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020; (iii) Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Loss for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020; (iv) Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020; (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2021
and 2020; and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

Exhibit
No. Description

____________

* Filed herewith.
+ Indicates a management or compensatory plan.
† Schedules to this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Registration S-K. The Registrant hereby agrees to furnish a

copy of any omitted schedules to the Commission upon request.
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ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized on April 8, 2022.

indie Semiconductor, Inc.

By: /s/ Donald McClymont
Name: Donald McClymont
Title: Chief Executive Officerff

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this amendment no. 3 to registration statement has been signed
by the following persons in the capaca ities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date

/s/ Donald McClymont Chief Executive Officer and Director April 8, 2022
Donald McClymont (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Thomas Schiller Chief Financial Officer and EVP of Strategy April 8, 2022
Thomas Schiller (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Ichiro Aoki President and Director April 8, 2022
Ichiro Aoki

/s/ David Aldrich Chairman of the Board of Directors April 8, 2022
David Aldrich

/s/ Diane Brink Director April 8, 2022
Diane Brink

/s/ Peter Kight Director April 8, 2022
Peter Kight

/s/ Karl-Thomas Neumann Director April 8, 2022
Karl Thomas Neumann

/s/ Jeffrey Owens Director April 8, 2022
Jeffreyff Owens

/s/ Sonalee Parekh Director April 8, 2022
Sonalee Parekh
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Board of Directors

David Aldrich
Retired Chairman of the Board, Skyworks Solutions, Inc.

Donald McClymont

Dr. Ichiro Aoki
President, indie Semiconductor

Diane Biagianti
Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Glaukos Corporation

Diane Brink
Independent Director, Belden

Peter Kight
Chairman of the Board, Repay

Dr. Karl-Thomas Neumann
CEO and Founder, KTN Investment and Consulting

Jeffrey Owens
Retired Executive Vice President and CTO, Delphi Automotive PLC

Sonalee Parekh
Senior Vice President of Corporate Development and  
Investor Relations, Hewlett Packard Enterprise

Executive Management

Donald McClymont

Dr. Ichiro Aoki
President

Chet Babla
Senior Vice President, Strategic Marketing

Ellen Bancroft
General Counsel

Lionel Federspiel
Executive Vice President, Engineering

Darshan Gopal
Director, Product and Test Engineering

Paul Hollingworth
Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing

David Kang
Engineering Fellow

Dr. Scott Kee

Ghislain Lafrance
Executive Vice President, indie Semiconductor 
President, TeraXion

Steve Machuga

Thomas Schiller

Ramesh Singh
Executive Vice President and General Manager

Vincent Wang
Executive Vice President, Asia Sales and Marketing

Michael Wittmann
Vice President, Marketing 

Transfer Agent and Register
Continental Stock Transfer and Trust Company 

1 State Street, 30th Floor 
New York, NY 10004-1561 
(212) 509-4000 
www.continentalstock.com 

Our transfer agent can help you with a variety of stockholder-related 

transfers, account status and other administrative matters.  

Investor Relations
You can contact indie’s Investor Relations team directly to order an 
Investor’s Kit or to ask investment-oriented questions about indie 
Semiconductor at: 

indie Semiconductor
32 Journey
Aliso Viejo, CA, 92656 
(949) 418-8637
ir@indiesemi.com

-

Exchange Commission at: www.indiesemi.com. 

Independent Registered Public Accountants

KPMG LLP

indie Semiconductor
32 Journey
Aliso Viejo, CA, 92656 
(949) 608-0854

Common Stock
indie Semiconductor common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global 
Select Market® under the symbol INDI.

Annual Meeting
The annual meeting of stockholders will be held virtually on  



www.indiesemi.com
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